
 

 
 

Law & Democracy 
Democratic Services 

 

 

 

TO COUNCILLOR: 
 

Mrs R H Adams 
N Alam 

L A Bentley 
G A Boulter 
J W Boyce 

Mrs L M Broadley 
F S Broadley 
D M Carter 

M H Charlesworth 

M L Darr 
R F Eaton 

Mrs L Eaton JP (Mayor) 
D A Gamble 

F S Ghattoraya 
Mrs S Z Haq 

Miss P V Joshi 
J Kaufman 

Mrs L Kaufman (Deputy Mayor) 

Miss A Kaur 
C D Kozlowski 

Mrs H E Loydall 
K J Loydall JP 
D W Loydall 

Mrs S B Morris 
R E R Morris 
Dr I K Ridley 

 

Dear Sir or Madam 
 

I hereby SUMMON you to attend a meeting of the FULL COUNCIL to be held at the COUNCIL 
OFFICES, STATION ROAD, WIGSTON on THURSDAY, 20 FEBRUARY 2020 at 7.00 PM for the 
transaction of the business set out in the Agenda below. 

 

 Yours faithfully 
 

 

Council Offices 
Wigston 
12 February 2020 

 
 

Mrs Anne E Court 
Chief Executive 

 

I T E M  N O . A G E N D A P A G E  N O ’ S 
 

1.   Calling to Order of the Meeting  

 The meeting of the Council will be called to order to receive Her Worship The 
Mayor and Deputy Mayor. 

 

2.   Apologies for Absence  

 To receive apologies for absence from Members to determine the quorum of the 
meeting in accordance with Rule 7 of Part 4 of the Constitution. 

 

3.   Declarations of Interest  

 Members are reminded that any declaration of interest should be made having 
regard to the Members’ Code of Conduct. In particular, Members must make 
clear the nature of the interest and whether it is 'pecuniary' or ‘non-pecuniary'. 

 

4.   Minutes of the Previous Meeting(s)  

 To read, confirm and sign the minutes of the previous meeting(s) in accordance 
with Rule 19 of Part 4 of the Constitution. 

 

 a.   Tuesday, 17 December, 2020 5 - 9 

 b.   Tuesday, 04 February, 2020 (Extraordinary) 10 - 11 

~ Page 1 ~



 

Full Council (Council Tax & Budget 
Setting (2020/21) etc.) 
Thursday, 20 February 2020 

 Printed and published by Democratic Services,  
Oadby and Wigston Borough Council, Council Offices, 

Station Road, Wigston, Leicestershire, LE18 2DR 
 

5.   Action List Arising from the Previous Meeting(s)  

 To read, confirm and note the Action List arising from the previous meeting(s).  

 a.   Tuesday, 17 December, 2020  

  There is no Action List arising from the previous meeting held on 17 
December 2020. 

 

 b.   Tuesday, 04 February, 2020 (Extraordinary) 12 

6.   Motions on Notice  

 To consider any Motions on Notice in accordance with Rule 14 of Part 4 of the 
Constitution. 

 

 a.   Supporting Plastic Free Oadby 13 

  Proposed by Councillor David M Carter 
Seconded by Councillor Garth (Bill) A Boulter  

 

7.   Petitions, Deputations and Questions  

 To receive any Petitions, Deputations and, or, to answer any Questions by 
Members or the Public in accordance with Rule(s) 11, 12, 13 and 10 of Part 4 of 
the Constitution and the Petitions Procedure Rules respectively. 

 

8.   Mayor's Announcements  

 To receive any announcements from the Mayor in accordance with Rule 2 of 
Part 4 of the Constitution. 

 

 a.   List of Official Mayoral / Deputy Mayoral Engagements 14 - 18 

9.   Leader's Statement  

 To receive any statement from the Leader of the Council in accordance with 
Article 2.9.2(ii) of Part 2 of the Constitution. 

 

10.   2020/21 Budget (including approval of Council Tax and Housing 
Revenue Account Rents) & Medium-Term Financial Strategy (2021/22 
to 2024/25) 

19 - 107 

 Report of the Chief Finance Officer / Section 151 Officer 
 

In accordance with Rules 18.3 and 18.4 of Part 4 of the Constitution and Part 3 
of Schedule 2 of the Local Authorities (Standing Orders) (England) Regulations 
2001 (as amended), the names of the Members who cast a vote for the motion 
or against the motion or who abstain from voting will be recorded for this item 
of business and will be recorded in the minutes of the meeting’s proceedings. 

 

11.   Pay Policy Statement (2020/21) 108 - 119 

 Report of the Chief Executive / Head of Paid Service  

12.   Report of the Local Government & Social Care Ombudsman 120 - 128 

 Report of the Head of Law & Democracy / Monitoring Officer  

13.   Appointment of a Member Representative to Outside Bodies 129 - 131 

 Report of the Trainee Solicitor  

~ Page 2 ~



 

Full Council (Council Tax & Budget 
Setting (2020/21) etc.) 
Thursday, 20 February 2020 

 Printed and published by Democratic Services,  
Oadby and Wigston Borough Council, Council Offices, 

Station Road, Wigston, Leicestershire, LE18 2DR 
 

 
For more information, please contact: 

 
Democratic Services 

Oadby and Wigston Borough Council 
Council Offices 

Station Road, Wigston 
Leicestershire  

LE18 2DR 
 

t:  (0116) 257 2775 
e:  democratic.services@oadby-wigston.gov.uk 

 
 

You can access all available public meeting documents  
and audio recordings electronically on: 

 

  

 

   

Our website oadby-
wigston.gov.uk under 

'Your Council’ and 
‘Meeting Dates, 

Agendas & Minutes’  

Your smart iPad, 
Android or 

Windows tablet 
device with the 

‘Modern.Gov’ app 

Our audio platform 
soundcloud.com/ 
oadbywigstonbc or 
smart device with the 
‘SoundCloud’ app 

 

 

~ Page 3 ~

https://moderngov.oadby-wigston.gov.uk/ieDocHome.aspx?bcr=1
https://moderngov.oadby-wigston.gov.uk/ieDocHome.aspx?bcr=1
https://apps.apple.com/gb/app/modern-gov/id1453414073?mt=8
https://play.google.com/store/apps/details?id=uk.co.moderngov.modgov&hl=en
https://www.microsoft.com/en-gb/p/moderngov/9pfpjqcvz8nl
https://soundcloud.com/oadbywigstonbc
https://soundcloud.com/oadbywigstonbc
https://itunes.apple.com/gb/app/soundcloud-music-audio/id336353151?mt=8
https://itunes.apple.com/gb/app/soundcloud-music-audio/id336353151?mt=8


Full Council  
Tuesday, 17 December 2019 

Mayor’s 
Initials  

 

 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE FULL COUNCIL HELD AT THE  
COUNCIL OFFICES, STATION ROAD, WIGSTON ON TUESDAY, 17 DECEMBER  

2019 COMMENCING AT 7.15 PM 

 
PRESENT 
 
Mrs L Kaufman Deputy Mayor 
D M Carter Vice-Chair, Acting 
 

COUNCILLORS  
 
Mrs R H Adams  
N Alam  
L A Bentley  
G A Boulter  
J W Boyce Leader of the Council 
Mrs L M Broadley  
F S Broadley  
M H Charlesworth Deputy Leader of the Council 
M L Darr (Left at 8.38 pm) 
F S Ghattoraya Deputy Leader of the Opposition 
Mrs S Z Haq  
Miss P V Joshi Leader of the Opposition 
J Kaufman  
C D Kozlowski  
Mrs H E Loydall  
K J Loydall JP  
D W Loydall  
Mrs S B Morris  
R E R Morris  
Dr I K Ridley  
 

OFFICERS IN ATTENDANCE  
 
S J Ball Trainee Solicitor 
J Carr Planning Policy Manager 
D M Gill Head of Law & Democracy / Monitoring Officer 
S Hinds Deputy Chief Executive 
C Mason Chief Finance Officer / Section 151 Officer 
S Tucker Democratic & Electoral Services Manager / Deputy Monitoring Officer 
A Ward Economic Regeneration Manager 
 
 

42.   CALLING TO ORDER OF THE MEETING 
 
The meeting of the Council was called to order to receive Her Worship The Deputy Mayor. 
 
The meeting was led in prayer by the Deputy Mayor. 
 
It was moved by the Leader of the Council, seconded by J Kaufman and 
 
UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED THAT: 
 
Councillor D M Carter deputise as Vice-Chair for the duration of the meeting. 

~ Page 4 ~

Agenda Item 4a.



Full Council  
Tuesday, 17 December 2019 

Mayor’s 
Initials  

 

 

43.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 
An apology for absence was received from Her Worship the Mayor, Councillor Mrs L Eaton 
JP. 
 
Apologies for absence were also received from Councillor R F Eaton and Councillor Miss A 
Kaur. 

44.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
None. 

45.   MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 
 
By affirmation of the meeting, it was 
 
UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED THAT: 
 
The minutes of the previous meeting held on 24 September 2019 be taken as 
read, confirmed and signed. 

46.   ACTION LIST ARISING FROM THE PREVIOUS MEETING 
 
By affirmation of the meeting, it was 
 
UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED THAT: 
 
The absence of any actions arising from the previous meeting held on 24 
September 2019 be noted by Members. 

47.   MOTIONS ON NOTICE 
 
None. 

48.   PETITIONS, DEPUTATIONS AND QUESTIONS 
 
None. 

48a.   QUESTIONS ON NOTICE 
 
The Deputy Mayor confirmed that one question had been received from Councillors under 
Rule 13.2 of Part 4 of the Constitution of the Council. 
 
Question from Cllr Michael Charlesworth (Wigston All Saints Ward) to 
Councillor Lee A Bentley, Chair of Development Control Committee: 
 
‘Does Oadby and Wigston Borough Council have to abide by the Communication Act 2003 
that imposes on the owner/occupier of a building an agreement permitting access to that 
building by an operator for the purpose of determining whether it is suitable for the 
installation of electronic communications apparatus, even where the owner/occupier 
objects?’ 
 
Answer: 
 
The Council has to abide by the Communication Act 2003 that imposes on the 

~ Page 5 ~



Full Council  
Tuesday, 17 December 2019 

Mayor’s 
Initials  

 

 

owner/occupier of a building an agreement permitting access to that building by an 
operator for the purpose of determining whether it is suitable for the installation of 
electronic communications apparatus, even where the owner/occupier objects, by virtue of 
the case of The University of London –v- Cornerstone Telecommunications Infrastructure 
Ltd [2019] EWCA Civ 2017. 

49.    MAYOR'S ANNOUNCEMENTS 

49a.   LIST OF OFFICIAL MAYORAL / DEPUTY MAYORAL ENGAGEMENTS 
 
The Deputy Mayor requested an amendment to the list of Deputy Mayoral engagements 
attended between May to September 2019, insofar as she did not attend the Navatri 
Festival on 5 October 2019. 
 
By affirmation of the meeting, it was: 
  
UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED THAT: 
 
The amended list of Official Engagements attended by The Mayor and/or 
Deputy Mayor be noted. 

50.   LEADER'S STATEMENT 
 
The Leader of the Council presented a Statement outlining his recent work, the 
administration’s plans and an overview of recent decisions taken since the previous 
meeting of the Council. 

51.   APPOINTMENT OF PERMANENT CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 
The Council gave consideration to the report as set out on pages 12-13 of the agenda, 
which asked it to approve the appointment of a permanent Chief Executive. 
 
It was moved by the Leader of the Council, seconded by the Deputy Leader of the Council 
and 
 
UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED THAT: 
 
Anne Court be appointed as the Council’s permanent Chief Executive with 
immediate effect and that from 1 April 2020 her contract be varied from 37.5 
hours to 30 hours per week. 

52.   OADBY AND WIGSTON HOUSING STRATEGY (2019-24) 
 
The Council gave consideration to the report as set out on pages 14-27 of the agenda, 
which asked it note the Council’s overall strategic position on Housing and the outcome of 
the public consultation on the Housing Strategy 2019-2024. 
 
It was moved by G A Boulter, seconded by L A Bentley and 
 
UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED THAT: 
 
The content of the report be noted and the Housing Strategy (2019-2024) be 
approved. 

~ Page 6 ~



Full Council  
Tuesday, 17 December 2019 

Mayor’s 
Initials  

 

 

53.   STATEMENT OF LICENSING POLICY (2020-2025) 
 
The Council gave consideration to the report as set out on pages 28-72 of the agenda 
which asked it to approve the revised Statement of Licensing Policy (2020-2025). 
 
It was moved by Mrs L M Broadley, seconded by the Deputy Leader of the Council and 
 
UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED THAT: 
 
The revised Statement of Licensing Policy (2020-2025) be approved, to take 
effect from 1 January 2020. 

54.   A46 PARTNERSHIP (NOMINATION OF MEMBER TO SERVE) 
 
The Council gave consideration to the report as set out on pages 73-74 of the agenda, 
which asked it to nominate a Member to attend meetings of the A46 Partnership to 
represent the Borough Council. 
 
It was moved by K J Loydall JP, seconded by J Kaufman and 
 
UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED THAT: 
 
The Leader of the Council, J W Boyce, be nominated to act as the Borough 
Council representative at meetings of the A46 Partnership. 

55.   EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 
By affirmation of the meeting it was 
 
UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED THAT: 
 
The press and public be excluded from the remainder of the meeting in 
accordance with Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972 (Exempt 
Information) during consideration of the item(s) below on the grounds that it 
involved the disclosure of exempt information, as defined in the respective 
paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act and, in all the 
circumstances, the public interest in maintaining the exempt item(s) 
outweighed the public interest in disclosing the information. 
 
Councillor M L Darr left the Chamber at 8.38 pm and did not return. 

56.   DEVELOPMENT UPDATE (EXEMPT PRESENTATION) 
 
The Council gave consideration to the exempt presentation delivered by the Economic 
Regeneration Manager. 
 
By affirmation of the meeting it was 
 
UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED THAT: 
 
The content of the presentation be noted. 

57.   ICT SERVICE PROVISION UPDATE (EXEMPT REPORT) 
 
The Council gave consideration to the exempt report as set out on pages 75-100 of the 

~ Page 7 ~



Full Council  
Tuesday, 17 December 2019 

Mayor’s 
Initials  

 

 

agenda. 
 
It was moved by Mrs S B Morris, seconded by D W Loydall and 
 
UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED THAT: 
 
The contents of the report be noted and recommendations B and C be 
approved. 

 
THE MEETING CLOSED AT 8.54 PM 

 
 

   

 Mayor 
 

 Thursday, 20 February 2020 
 

 
Printed and published by Democratic Services, Oadby and Wigston Borough Council, 

Council Offices, Station Road, Wigston, Leicestershire, LE18 2DR

~ Page 8 ~



Full Council (Extraordinary) 
Tuesday, 4 February 2020 

Mayor’s 
Initials  

 

 

MINUTES OF THE EXTRAORDINARY MEETING OF THE FULL COUNCIL HELD AT THE 
COUNCIL OFFICES, STATION ROAD, WIGSTON ON TUESDAY, 4 FEBRUARY 2020 

COMMENCING AT 7.00 PM 

 
PRESENT 

 

 
Mrs L Kaufman Deputy Mayor 
D M Carter Vice-Chair, Acting 
 

COUNCILLORS  
 
L A Bentley  
Mrs L M Broadley  
F S Broadley  
M H Charlesworth Deputy Leader of the Council 
F S Ghattoraya Deputy Leader of the Opposition 
Mrs S Z Haq  
Miss P V Joshi Leader of the Opposition 
J Kaufman  
C D Kozlowski  
Mrs H E Loydall  
K J Loydall JP  
D W Loydall  
R E R Morris  
Dr I K Ridley  
 

OFFICERS IN ATTENDANCE  
 
T Cawthorne Regulatory Services Manager 
Mrs A E Court Chief Executive / Head of Paid Service 
D M Gill Head of Law & Democracy / Monitoring Officer 
C Mason Chief Finance Officer / Section 151 Officer 
S Tucker Democratic & Electoral Services Manager / Deputy Monitoring Officer 
 

58.   CALLING TO ORDER OF THE MEETING 
 
The meeting of the Council was called to order to receive Her Worship The Deputy Mayor. 
 
It was moved by Mrs H E Loydall, seconded by K J Loydall JP and 
 
UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED THAT: 
 
Councillor D M Carter deputise as Vice-Chair for the duration of the meeting. 

59.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 
An apology for absence was received from Her Worship the Mayor, Cllr Lynda Eaton JP 
and Councillors R F Eaton, D A Gamble and Mrs S B Morris. 
 
An apology for absence was also received by Councillors Mrs R H Adams, N Alam, J W 
Boyce and G A Boulter, who had all notified the Monitoring Officer in advance of the 
meeting of a conflict of interest concerning the sole item of business to be transacted at 
the meeting. 
 

~ Page 9 ~

Agenda Item 4b.



Full Council (Extraordinary) 
Tuesday, 4 February 2020 

Mayor’s 
Initials  

 

 

60.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
None. 

61.   PROPOSED SELECTIVE LICENSING SCHEME (2020-2025) 
 
The Full Council gave consideration to the report (as set out at pages 1 - 245 of the 
agenda reports pack)  which asked it to determine whether or not to adopt a Selective 
Licensing Scheme (2020-2025) (“the Scheme”) for the South Wigston Ward. 
 
An amendment was moved by Councillor J Kaufman and seconded by Councillor Mrs L M 
Broadley, proposing that the Officer recommendation(s) be approved, subject to the 
inclusion of a payment by instalments option as per the terms set out at paragraphs 9.9 
and 9.10 of the report (at page 10).  
 
The instalment option would consist of: 
 
 the first half of the application fee to be paid on submission of the licence application; 

 the second half of the application fee to be paid within three months of the date of 
submission of the licence application; and 

 payment of the enforcement fee to be made upon issue of the licence itself (within 
three months). 

 
Members also specifically requested that in addition to an Annual Statement being 
presented to Full Council covering the progress of the Scheme during its five-year 
operation, a standing item should be added to the agenda for future meetings of the 
Licensing & Regulatory Committee, keeping Members informed with regard to matters 
such as the implementation of the Scheme, enforcement action taken and measurable 
outcomes. 
 
The amendment was adopted into the substantive recommendation(s), which were then 
put to the vote and unanimously carried, as amended. 
 
UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED THAT: 
 
(i) The recommendation(s) as set out at paragraph(s) 11 of the report (as set 

out at pages 10 - 11) be approved, subject to the inclusion of a payment 
by instalments option as per the terms set out at paragraphs 9.9 and 9.10 
of the report (as set out at page 10); and 

(ii) A Selective Licensing Scheme (2020-2025) be approved for the South 
Wigston Ward. 

 
THE MEETING CLOSED AT 8.02 PM 

 
 

   

 Chair 
 

 Thursday, 20 February 2020 
 

 
 

Printed and published by Democratic Services, Oadby and Wigston Borough Council, 
Council Offices, Station Road, Wigston, Leicestershire, LE18 2DR 

~ Page 10 ~



 

 

Full Council (Extraordinary)  
Tuesday, 04 February 2020 

Chair’s  
Initials 

 

 

FULL COUNCIL (EXTRAORDINARY) 

ACTION LIST 

Arising from the Meeting held on Tuesday, 04 February 2020 
 

No. 
Minute Ref. /  

Item of Business 
*Action Details /  
Action Due Date 

Responsible 
Officer(s)’ 

Initials 

Action 
Status 

1. 61. - Proposed 
Selective Licensing 
Scheme (2020-2025) 

A standing item to be added to 
the agenda for future meetings 
of the Licensing & Regulatory 
Committee, keeping Members 
informed with regard to matters 
such as the implementation of 
the Scheme, enforcement action 
taken and measurable outcomes. 

Due by Ongoing 

DaGi 
ToCa 

On Target 
to Complete 
/ Ongoing 

 
* | All actions listed are those which are informally raised by Members during the course of debate 
upon a given item of business which do not form part of - but may be additional, incidental or 
ancillary to - any motion(s) carried. These actions are for the attention of the responsible Officer(s). 

~ Page 11 ~

Agenda Item 5b.



 

 

MOTION ON NOTICE 

 

Full Council | Thursday, 20 February 2020 

 

Supporting Plastic Free Oadby 

 

1. That Oadby and Wigston Borough Council (“the Council”) supports the effort to 

reduce single-use plastic in Oadby and the work of Plastic Free Oadby by: 

 

1.1. Offering an example to the town, by reducing the amount of single-use 

plastic in all Council premises and activities; 
 

1.2. Appointing a Councillor to represent the Council on the Plastic Free Oadby 

Steering Group; 
 

1.3. Encouraging and promoting Borough-wide plastic free events and 

initiatives; and 
 

1.4. Making information about the reduction of plastic use available to local 

residents via all Council-ran communication channels, including on the 

Council’s website, its social media platforms and Letterbox. 

 

2. That the Council supports the initiative being piloted in Oadby and then for it to be 

rolled out to Wigston and South Wigston. 

 

   

Councillor David M Carter   Councillor Garth (Bill) A Boulter 

(Proposer)     (Seconder) 

 

 

The above motion was duly received by the Head of Law & Democracy on 9 January 

2020 in accordance with Rule 14, Section 1 of Part 4 of the Constitution of the Council. 

~ Page 12 ~

Agenda Item 6a.



Events attended by the Mayor (May 2019 – February 2020) 
 

MAY 2019 
 

17  The Royal Yeomanary  Annual Frezenberg Dinner  
 

JUNE 2019 
 

6 Dean of Leicester  75 Anniversary D-Day service  
8 O&W Muslim Association  Eid Celebration  
9 Wigston Scout Group  Annual Summer Fete  
11 Everyone Active - Parklands Leisure Centre Opening of the £1/4 Million Gym Refurbishment 
15 Bishop of Leicester  Civic Reception  
16 Oadby & Wigston Lions Fantasy & Adventure  
22 Leicester City Council  Armed Forces Day Parade  
24 Oadby & Wigston Lions Presentation Evening  
25 Leicestershire & Rutland Sport  Summer Championship  
26 Ian Robinson Joint Concert 
27 Lord Mayor of Leicester Civic Service  

 
JULY 2019 
 

1 Leicestershire Scouts  AGM  
2 Wigston Academy Summer Madness  
4 East Midlands in Bloom  Visit of Judges  
4 Warning Zone Osprey Cruise Rutland Water  
6 Wigston Club for Young People Summer Fun Day  
7 Wigston Magna Dog Training Club Annual Dog Show  
7 Ravaz Riaz  Mitzvah Event  
8 Thythorn Field Primary School Awards Assembly  
13 St Peter's Church, Oadby  Oadby Remembers  
17 De Montfort University  Graduation Ceremony  

20 ABF The Soldiers' Charity Family Open Day & Hog Roast  

25 Chairman Leicestershire CC  Summer Evening at Beaumanor Hall  

30 Leicester Scouts & Guides  International Camp  

~
 P

age 13 ~

A
genda Item

 8a.



AUGUST 2019 
 

3 Ayelstone Lane Allotment Association  Allotment Day  

5 Leicester Children’s Holidays  See Children Off On Their Holiday  

14 Age UK Oadby & Wigston Opening Of Day Care Facility  
21 Helen Loydall Senior Citizen Forum  

 
SEPTEMBER 2019 
 

2 Wigston Rotary Club  Lunch & presentation  
3 OWBC Armed Forces Covenant Breakfast Event  
7 Wigston Framework Knitters  Sock Day  
7 Leicester Children's Holidays  Summer Celebration Picnic in the Park  
8 Framework Knitters Company  Annual Service  
11 ABF The Soldiers Charity  Beating Retreat Ceremony  
15 City of Leicester RAFA  79th Anniversary Battle of Britain Service  
20 Peter Cousins  Opening of Greater Wigston Heritage Centre  
20 Blaby DC  Chairman at home  
21 Mayor Charnwood  Great Central Railway Dinner 

22 Melton BC   Mayor's Civic Service  

26 Pride of the Borough  Annual Awards  

27 OWBC Cllr Lee Bentley  Thythorn Community Centre opening 

 
OCTOBER 2019 
 

1 Birstall Fire Station  Engagement Morning  
1 University of Leicester  Cricket, Race & Empire  
3 Harborough DC Chairman’s Civic Service  
4 O&W Hindu Community Navatri Festival  
5 O&W Lions  Charity Swim  
10 Leicestershire & Rutland Rural Achievement  Rural Achievement Award Dinner  
11 Leicester Grammar School Foundation Day Service 
11 ABF Soldiers Charity  Band Concert 
13 Lord Lieutenant  County Service for Leicestershire  

~
 P

age 14 ~



16 Thaliwal & Veja Solicitors Foodbank Collection 
19 The Royal Society of St George  Trafalgar Dinner  
22 Leics & Rutland Magistrates Association Autumn Event & AGM  
26 LCC on behalf of RBL  Royal British Legion Festival of Remembrance  
27 O&W Lions  Charter Lunch  
28 Chairman Harborough DC  Quiz Night and Fish & Chip Supper 
30 Lord Mayor Ghost Walk  
31 Wigston Academy Dance Showcase  

 
NOVEMBER 2019 

 
2 Wigston & District Air Cadets  Dining In night  
3 High Sheriff of Leicestershire  High Sheriff's Legal Service  
8 AGE UK  Armed Forces Breakfast Event  
9 Leicester Festival of Music & Drama 2019 Festival  
9 Oadby Light Switch on  Oadby Town Centre Planning Team  
9 Churches Together in Oadby Prize Giving for Christmas Card Design  
10 OWBC Remembrance Service & Parade  
10 Oadby Royal British Legion  Remembrance Service & Parade  
10 ABF The Soldiers' Charity The Sikh Welfare & Cultural Society & Brahma Kumaris 
11 OWBC Remembrance 2 Mins Silence Service  
14 Leicestershire Police Intercultural Evening 
14 OWBC Interfaith Week All in Goof Faith  
17 SSAFA President's Luncheon  

 

DECEMBER 2019 

 
1 Oadby Baptist Church  Marie Curie Lights to Remember  
7 South Wigston Chamber of Commerce Christmas Capers  
10 Senior Citizens Action Group  Christmas Concert 
11 Wigston Academy Winter Wonderland  
13 University of Leicester  Festive drinks  
14 Salvation Army Christmas Charity Concert  
18 OWBC Christmas Carol Concert 

~
 P

age 15 ~



JANUARY 2020 

 
16 University of Leicester  Degree Congress 2020  
21 De Montfort University Graduation Ceremony 
27 Leicester HMD Holocaust Memorial Service 

 
 
FEBRUARY 2020 

 
4 All Saints Church of England Primary School  ‘Wings of Peace’ Memorial Service 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

~
 P

age 16 ~



Events attended by the Deputy Mayor (May 2019 – February 2020) 
 

JUNE 2019 

 
26 Wigston Academy Student Award Evening  

 
JULY 2019 

 
4 Muslim School Oadby  Annual Results Day  
9 Wigston College Student Award Evening 

 

AUGUST 2019 
 

17 Leicester Cathedral  Richard III Evensong  
 

SEPTEMBER 2019 
 

14 Oadby & Wigston Swimming Club OWSC Swim Gala  
21 Rainbows Hospice  Community Open Day  
27 Cedar Court Care Home Harvest Festival  

 

OCTOBER 2019 
 

5 O&W Hindu Community Navatri Festival  
7 De Montfort University  A Celebration of Guru Nanak Dev Ji 

 

DECEMBER 2019 
 

10 Senior Citizens Action Group Christmas Concert 
14 Salvation Army Christmas Charity Concert  

 
JANUARY 2020 
 

27 OWBC Holocaust Memorial Service 
29 OWBC The Awarding of Christmas Shop Front Competition Prize 

 

~
 P

age 17 ~



 

Full Council     
(Council Tax & 
Budget Setting 
(2020/21) etc.) 

Thursday, 20 
February 2020 

Matter for Information 
and Decision 

 

Report Title: 2020/21 Budget (including approval of Council  
Tax and Housing Revenue Account Rents) & Medium-Term 

Financial Strategy (2021/22 to 2024/25) 

 
 

“Committed to Financial Sustainability & Resilience  
to enable Community Investment” 

Report Author(s): Clive Mason (Chief Financial Officer / Section 151 Officer) 
 

Purpose of Report: The primary purpose of the report is to advise Full Council and for it to:  
 
A. Approve: 

 
i. General Fund Budget for 2020/21 and Medium Term Financial 

Strategy (MTFS) 2021/22 to 2024/25; including the Council 
Tax (Band D) for 2020/21; 

ii. The proposed changes to Fees and Charges for 2020/21; 
iii. Housing Revenue Account (HRA) and proposed Rent for 

2020/21; and the HRA plan over the Medium Term to 2024/25; 
iv. Capital Programme for 2020/21; and 
v. Treasury Management Strategy (and other associated policies 

and strategies). 
 

B. Consider: 
 

i. The statutory Section 25 Report by the Chief Financial Officer. 

Report Summary: The Policy, Finance and Development Committee, held on the 11 
February 2020, considered all of the following and recommends that Full 
Council approves items 1 to 5 below, the: 
 
1. 2020/21: 

 
i. General Fund Budget and Council Tax increase; and 
ii. Housing Revenue Accounts and Rent increase. 
 

2. Medium Term Financial Strategy (2021/22 to 2024/25) for both the 
General Fund and HRA; 
 

3. Capital Programme;  
 
4. Fees and Charges; and 
 
5. Treasury Management Strategy and other related policies and 

strategies. 
 
Further, Full Council should consider the statutory Section 25 Report by 
the Chief Financial Officer and comment as necessary. 
 
All the above are discussed in detail in Appendix 1. 

~ Page 18 ~

Agenda Item 10



Recommendation(s): 
 Cross-Reference 

In covering 
report;  

Paragraph 

In 
Appendix 
1; Section 

A. That Full Council approves the: 

  The General Fund Budget for 
2020/21 and MTFS 2021/22 to 
2024/25 (including Reserves & 
Capital), and; 

2.1 
Table 1 
2.2 (a) 

4 

1.0, 
2.0, 
3.0 

  An increase of £5 in Council Tax 
for 2020/21 i.e. the Band D 
charge will increase to £229.50 
(£224.50, 2019/20), and; 

Table 1 
2.2 (c) 

The formal 
resolution 

on the 
Council Tax 
[Item (a) to 

(e)] 

  The Housing Revenue Account 
for 2020/21 and MTFS 2021/22 
to 2024/25 (including Reserves 
& Capital), and; 

3.1 
Table 2 
3.2 (a)  

4  

3.0, 
5.0 

  An increase in 
o rent of 2.7%, an average 

rent increase of £2.03 per 
week, taking it to £77.44 per 
week (£75.41, 2019/20),  

o specific charges of 2.7%, 
and; 

3.1 
Table 2 
3.2(b) 

5.0 

  The future savings, income 
generation, growth proposals 
and fees & charges proposals, 
and; 

2.1 1.0 

  2020/21 Treasury Management, 
Capital, Investment and Flexible 
Use of Capital Receipts 
Strategies; Minimum Revenue 
Provision Statement and 
Prudential Indicators. 
 

5 4.0 

* The 6 items above have to be agreed collectively because they are 
interdependent on each other. 

B. That Full Council considers 
the Section 25 Report and 
comments as it considers 
necessary. 

7 
 

7.0 

 

~ Page 19 ~



Senior Leadership, 
Head of Service, 
Manager, Officer and 
Other Contact(s): 

Clive Mason (Chief Financial Officer / Section 151 Officer) 
(0116) 257 2736 
clive.mason@oadby-wigston.gov.uk     
 
Chris Raymakers (Financial Services Manager) 
(0116) 257 2891 
chris.raymakers@oadby-wigston.gov.uk  

Corporate 
Objectives: 

Providing Excellent Services (CO3) 

Vision and Values: “A Stronger Borough Together” (Vision) 
Accountability (V1) 

Report Implications:- 

Legal: There are no implications arising from this report. 

Financial: The implications are as set out throughout this report 

Corporate Risk 
Management: 

Decreasing Financial Resources / Increasing Financial Pressures (CR1) 
Reputation Damage (CR4) 
Economy / Regeneration (CR9) 

Equalities and Equalities 
Assessment (EA): 

There are no implications directly arising from this report. 
EA not applicable. 

Human Rights: There are no implications directly arising from this report. 

Health and Safety: There are no implications directly arising from this report. 

Statutory Officers’ Comments:- 

Head of Paid Service: The report is satisfactory. 

Chief Finance Officer: As the author, the report is satisfactory. 

Monitoring Officer: The report is satisfactory. 

Consultees: None. 

Background Papers:  Various documents within Finance. 
 Report entitled ‘Draft 2020/21 Budget (including approval of Council 

Tax) & Medium-Term Financial Strategy (2021/22 to 2024/25)’ to 
Policy, Finance and Development Committee on 11 February 2020 

Appendices: 1. Budget 2020/21 and Medium-Term Financial Strategy (2021/22 - 
2024/25) 

 

1. Introduction 

1.1 Since the summer of 2019, members, the senior leadership team and the wider officer 
cohort have been considering various savings & invest to save, income generation and 
growth proposals. All of these proposals have directly informed the budget that was 
presented to the Policy, Finance and Development Committee on the 11 February 2020; 
where they were agreed and has now recommended it to Council for approval. The detailed 
budget and related documents are shown in Appendix 1. 

~ Page 20 ~

mailto:clive.mason@oadby-wigston.gov.uk
mailto:chris.raymakers@oadby-wigston.gov.uk
https://moderngov.oadby-wigston.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=221&MID=1706#AI13128
https://moderngov.oadby-wigston.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=221&MID=1706#AI13128
https://moderngov.oadby-wigston.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=221&MID=1706#AI13128


 
1.2 The aim of the General Fund and Housing Revenue Account (HRA) budgets and the  

associated Medium Term Financial Strategies (MTFS) is to achieve: 
 
 Financial resilience, 
 Financial self-sustainability, which will enable members to embark on a programme of 
 Community Investment. 
 

1.3 Further, the 2020/21 General Fund and HRA budgets and respective MTFS will: 
 
(i) Inevitably introduce new ways of working, but these will aim to ensure that the Council’s 

agreed corporate priorities and outcomes are achieved more efficiently and effectively.  
(ii) Seek to ensure that over the medium term the Council is setting a balanced budget, and 

where there may be planned deficits, that reserves or other efficiency plans are in place 
to meet those deficits. 

 
2. 2020/21 General Fund Budget and MTFS (2021/22 to 2024/25) 

 
2.1 The detailed 2020/21 General Fund budgets and associated MTFS (2021/22 to 2024/25) is 

shown in Appendix 1, paragraph 1.17 and is summarised in Table 1 below: 
 

Summary of General Fund for 2020/21 and by the end of 
the MTFS Period (2024/25) 

Table 1 

 2020/21 
£ 

2024/25 
£ 

Net expenditure 6.1m 6.2m 

Budget requirement 6.4m 6.3m 

Budget contribution to/(from) reserve 270k £111k 

Council Tax requirement 4m 4.5m 

Council Tax base 17,520.5 17,916.3 

Council Tax Band D 
(increase over preceding year) 

229.5 
(£5; 2.23%) 

249.5 
(£5; 2.04%) 

 
2.2 In Appendix 1, paragraph: 

 
(a) 1.26, shows that for the General Fund (Unallocated) Reserve that by the end of: 
 

 2020/21, reserves will be £612k and maintained at the 10% minimum level. 
 The MTFS period (2024/25), the 10% minimum level of General Fund reserves is 

maintained. 
 
(b) 2.1, the overall spend and income by subjective analysis for all Council services is 

shown, incorporating respective Fees and Charges noted at paragraph 1.4. 
 
(c) 6.0, the Formal 2020/21 Council Tax Resolution, Council Tax Base and the Council Tax 

by Property Band for Precepting Authority and the Billing Authority. This resolution is so 
drafted on the assumption that the Council will support the proposals in the budget 
report for Oadby & Wigston Borough Councils’ Council Tax for 2020/21. 

 
3. 2020/21 Housing Revenue Account and MTFS (2021/22 yo 2024/25) 

 
3.1 The detailed 2020/21 HRA budgets and associated MTFS (2021/22 to 2024/25) is shown in 

Appendix 1, paragraph 5.1 and is summarised in Table 2 below: 

~ Page 21 ~



Summary of Housing Revenue Account for 2020/21 and by 
the end of the MTFS Period (2024/25) 

Table 2 

 2020/21 
£ 

2024/25 
£ 

Gross expenditure 4.4m 4.6m 

Gross income 5.0m 5.3m 

Total capital charges and appropriations 575k 650k 

Estimated (surplus)/deficit for the year (27k) (72k) 

Average rent increase 
(Average rent per dwelling) 

2.7% 
(£77.44) 

2.5% 
(£85.48) 

 
3.2 In Appendix 1, paragraph: 

 
(a) 5.1, shows that the HRA reserve for: 
 

 2020/21, estimated to stand at £741k at the end of the year. 
 Increasing to £961k by the end of the MTFS period. 

 
(b) 5.2, for other specific charges, these are increased by 2.7%. 
 

4. Capital Programme 
 

4.1 Appendix 1, paragraph 3 shows that the total capital programme for 2020/21 will total 
£2.5m; with the General Fund allocation being £969k and the HRA allocation being £1.5m. 
This capital programme will be finance by the following: 

 
 £000 
 

 Unsupported borrowing:     544 
 Grants & Contributions:     180 

 Section 106:   245 
 Major Repairs Reserve:     1,500 
 

5. Treasury Management Strategy, Capital and Investment Strategies, The Minimum 
Revenue Provision Statement, The Flexible Use of Capital Receipts Strategy and 
Prudential Indicators 
 

5.1 The Council is required to annual approve a range of Treasury related strategies and 
statements, these are shown in Appendix 1, paragraph 4. These various documents will 
provide the Council with the governance needed to enable it to effectively manage its cash 
balances; investment and borrowing activity and other Treasury related business. 
 

5.2 The significant changes when compared to previous years include the commencement of a 
programme of commercial activity i.e. investing in a Property Fund and the use of new 
Minimum Revenue Provision policies that will support the acquisition of commercial activity. 
 

6. Budget Consultation 
 

6.1 On an annual basis the Council is required to consult with the Business Community in respect 
of the budget. At the time of drafting this report the consultation had not closed, but the 
results will be presented to Council at the meeting. 
 
 

~ Page 22 ~



7. Section 25 Statement On The Robustness Report Required By The Chief Financial 
Officer 
 

7.1 Appendix 1, paragraph 8.0 is the statutory Robustness Report required to be issued by the 
Chief Financial Officer (Section 151 Officer).  
 

7.2 In summary, the budget proposed for 2020/21 does include a budget deficit, but PFD 
supported the recommendation that this is funded from a contribution from reserves. This 
draw for reserves will be from the Earmarked Reserves allocations for Commercial 
Investment, which means that the Council is able to maintain its General Fund (Unallocated) 
Reserve at 10% of Net Expenditure; its agreed minimum level. 
 

7.3 Over the MTFS period, there is a second year of a deficit budget in 2021/22 but thereafter 
the Council moves into a surplus position; this is as a consequence of the Council taking 
proactive action to: 
 
 Increase Council Tax by the maximum allowed, 
 Introducing a Zero Based Budgeting programme of fundamental budgets reviews, 
 Ongoing service transformation for services, and the 
 Commencement of a programme of commercial investment. 
 
It is therefore fair to conclude that the Council is taking proactive action to manage its 
budgetary concerns. 
 

7.4 However, members should be cognisant of the risks facing the Council over the medium 
term, these include: 
 
(i) changes in direct government funding, such as: 
 
 Revenue Support Grant having now been withdrawn; 
 New Homes Bonus being withdrawn from 022/23; 
 Business Rates revaluation from 2021/22; and that the  
 Fair Funding review is likely to impact from 2021/22 onwards. 
 
(ii) impacts from the market itself, especially Brexit and the ever changing demands from 

the Councils customers. 
 
Consequently, all of the above will inevitably provide challenges to the continued provision of 
council services but it should assist the Council in achieving its aims of financial sustainability 
and resilience to enable community investment. 

~ Page 23 ~



 1 
 

 

 

 

 
 

Oadby & Wigston Borough Council 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Budget 2020/21 

and 

Medium-Term Financial Strategy 

2021/22 - 2024/25 

~ Page 24 ~

Appendix 1



 2 
 

Contents 
           Page Number 

Council Tax Summary                 3 

How the money is spent                 4 

2020/21 Budget and MTFS 

 1.0  Strategic Budget Summary 5 
 Savings and Invest to Save 5 

 Income Generation 12 

 Growth: Non-Staff 16 

 Other Expenditure Assumptions 21 

 Summary Impact of all budget changes – comparing the 2019/20 Budget to the 
‘Draft’ Budget 2020/21 

21 

 Government Grant and Corporate Funding Proposals 22 

 Summary Budget 25 

 Revenue Reserves 27 

 2.0  Revenue Operational Budgets and Medium Term Financial Strategy 30 
 Subjective Analysis of Spend and income 30 

 Service Budgets by Service 31 

o Senior Leadership Team 31 
o Finance and Resources 31 
o Law & Governance 32 
o The Built Environment 33 
o Community & Well-Being + Depot 33 
o Customer Services & Transformation 34 

 3.0  Capital 35 
 4.0  Treasury Management 36 

o Treasury Management Strategy and Plan 36 
o Capital Strategy 42 
o Investment Strategy 45 
o Minimum Revenue Provision Statement 50 
o Flexible Use of Capital Receipts Strategy 55 
o Prudential Indicators (including Capital Financing Requirement) 57 

     5.0  Housing Revenue Account 63 
 6.0  Formal 2020/21 Council Tax Resolution  68 

 Oadby & Wigston Borough Council Formal Resolution 68 

 Tax Base 2020/21 69 

 2020/21 Council Tax by Property Band for each Precepting Authority and the Billing 
Authority 

69 

7.0  Robustness of the 2020/21 Budget & Medium Term Financial Strategy 70 
 Robustness and Budget Setting 70 

 Challenges Facing the Council 71 

 Governance 72 

 Risks 73 

 Sensitivity for 2020/21 Budget 78 

 Revenue Reserves 79 

 CIPFA Resilience Index 81 

 Conclusion of S.25 Robustness Statement 82 

  

~ Page 25 ~



 3 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 

Total Band D 

Equivalent

Total Band D 

Equivalent

£000 £ £000 £

6,456 370.55 Net Expenditure 6,119 349.25

(144) (8.28) Add Contribution to/(from) Reserves 269 15.39

6,312 362.27 Budget Requirement 6,388 364.64

90 5.14 Less Collection Fund Deficit (Surplus) 7 0.40

6,402 367.41 6,395 365.04

Financed By:

0 0.00 Less Government Revenue Support Grant 0 0.00

(1,349) (77.43) Less Retained National Domestic Rates (1,362) (77.77)

(877) (50.34) Less Other Grants & Financing Adjustments (877) (50.06)

(264) (15.14) Less New Homes Bonus (135) (7.71)

3,912 224.50 Council Tax for Oadby & Wigston 4,021 229.50

1,292.18 Add Leicestershire County Council Not yet 

discloseable

223.23 Add Police and Crime Commisioner for 

Leicestershire

233.23

66.64 Add Leicestershire and Rutland Combined 

Fire Authority

Not yet 

discloseable

1,806.55 Total Council Tax 462.73

17,423.2 Council Tax Base (Band D Equivalent) 17,520.5

Oadby & Wigston Borough Council

Council Tax Summary

2019/20 2020/21

2019/20 2020/21

£ £ £

Oadby & Wigston Borough Council 224.50 229.50 5.00 2.23%

Leicestershire County Council 1,292.18 Not yet 

discloseable

#VALUE! #VALUE!

Police and Crime Commisioner for 

Leicestershire

223.23 233.23 10.00 4.48%

Leicestershire and Rutland 

Combined Fire Authority

66.64 Not yet 

discloseable

#VALUE! #VALUE!

Total Council Tax 1,806.55 462.73

2020/21 Council Tax - Comparison with 2019/20
Increase

~ Page 26 ~



 4 
 

 

 

£000 £000 £000

Expenditure Employees Pay (including National Insurance & Pension) 5,760

Other 322 6,082

Buildings Maintenance & Cleaning 156

Energy & Water 141

Rent 183

Non-Domestic Rates 196 676

Transport 241

Supplies & Services Supplies 269

Services 2,120

Members Allowances 183 2,572

Benefits and Transfer Payments Housing Benefits 8,890

Grant to Other Organisation 80

Other 117 9,087

Other Expenditure Cost of Capital 1,053

HRA Recharge (1,196)

Other (266)

Gross Expenditure 18,249

Income Income & Fees Sales, Fees & Charges (2,085)

Rents (164)

Interest (91)

Government Grants (8,959)

Other Grants & Contributions (831)

Gross Income (12,130)

Net Expenditure 6,119

How your money will be spent in 2020/21

~ Page 27 ~



 5 
 

1.0 STRATEGIC BUDGET SUMMARY 
 

 Savings, Income Generation, Growth and Revenue Implications of 

Capital  
 

1.1 Since the summer of 2019 officers have been reviewing their budgets to develop revenue 

savings, income generation and growth proposals for the forthcoming year (2020/21) and the 

Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) period (2021/22 to 2024/25). The proposals have 

been split over three distinct phases: 

  

 Phase 1: Facing the Future 2; this is a strategic review of senior management 

provision and other organisational changes. 

 Phase 2: First Proposals; these are a series of service led proposals generated over 

the summer and early autumn. 

 Phase 3: Second Proposals; these are a second series of service led proposals 

generated over the winter of 2020. 

 

1.2 All the proposals that have been generated have been discussed with members over the 

December 2019/January 2020 period and in summary the proposals are shown in Table 1 

below and discussed in more detail in the following paragraphs. 

 

 
 

 Savings & Invest to Save 

 

1.3 In respect in of savings and invest to save proposals, for 2020/21 this totals £744k, increasing 

to £1.03m by 2024/25. The details of the savings proposed are shown in Table 2 below, most 

are minor in nature however these proposals do include the following proposals that are worthy 

of separate commentary: 

 

i. Senior Leadership Team: Facing the Future 2; total savings of £192k in 2020/21, 

increasing to £208k by 2024/25. 

Service Revenue Budget Changes

Growth in 

Expenditur

e

Savings in

Expenditur

e

Income

Generation

Invest

2 Save

Total 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Senior Leadership Team Facing the Future 2 0 (193) 0 0 (193) (193) (193) (193) (193)

Total 0 (193) 0 0 (193) (193) (193) (193) (193)

Finance & Resources First Proposals 150 (18) 0 0 132 45 47 61 57

Second Proposals 0 (21) (87) 1 (107) (129) (129) (129) (130)

Total 150 (39) (87) 1 25 (84) (82) (68) (73)

Law & Governance First Proposals 36 (7) (651) 0 (622) (122) (122) (50) (122)

Second Proposals 44 0 (2) 0 42 (23) (28) (36) (36)

Total 80 (7) (653) 0 (580) (145) (150) (86) (158)

The Built Environment First Proposals 126 (51) (27) 0 48 93 73 68 8

Second Proposals 0 (92) 0 0 (92) (107) (503) (490) (513)

Total 126 (143) (27) 0 (44) (14) (430) (422) (505)

Community & Wellbeing First Proposals 25 (88) (41) 0 (104) (109) (109) (109) (109)

Second Proposals 0 (39) 0 (136) (175) (287) (399) (421) (354)

Total 25 (127) (41) (136) (279) (396) (508) (530) (463)

Customer Services & Transformation First Proposals 0 (70) 0 0 (70) (70) (70) (70) (70)

Second Proposals 0 (30) 0 0 (30) (35) (35) (35) (35)

Total 0 (100) 0 0 (100) (105) (105) (105) (105)

Corporate Budgets First Proposals 435 0 0 0 435 372 308 263 169

Second Proposals 0 0 0 0 0 (56) (56) (56) (56)

Total 435 0 0 0 435 316 252 207 113

TOTAL BUDGET PROPOSALS Facing the Future 0 (193) 0 0 (193) (193) (193) (193) (193)

First Proposals 772 (234) (719) 0 (181) 209 127 163 (67)

Second Proposals 44 (182) (89) (135) (362) (637) (1,150) (1,167) (1,124)

Total 816 (609) (808) (135) (736) (621) (1,216) (1,197) (1,384)

2020/21 Net Savings, Income and Growth

Table 1

~ Page 28 ~



 6 
 

Organisations are continually evolving to meet ever changing demands, policy and the 

market and this means that the Senior Leadership Team and managers must continually 

consider the resources required and corresponding structures needed to ensure that the 

Corporate Plan and agreed outcomes are delivered. This strategic review, Facing the 

Future 2, follows on from the strategic review that was approved as part of the 2019/20 

budget; this time around the net savings are £193k. 

 

ii. Various Service Reviews: total savings of £117k in 2020/21and for each year thereafter 

A number of individual service reviews will be undertaken during 2020/21 and it is 

anticipated that each will generate ongoing savings. The reviews to be undertaken and 

the estimated savings are: 

 Corporate Assets/Depot: Improved ways of working together between services; 

2020/21: £18k, 2021/22 onwards: £35k 

 Development Control: Deletion of Career Grade Post; 2020/21: £37k and each year 

thereafter. 

 Depot: Efficiencies through process reviews; 2020/21: £35k and each year 

thereafter. 

 Community & Wellbeing: Restructure of Community & Wellbeing; £34k and £42k for 

each year thereafter. 

 Customer Services: Restructure of team; 2020/21 £70k and each year thereafter. 

 

iii. Finance & Resources; the closure of all Public Conveniences except for Peace 

Memorial Park (PMP) will generate savings of £5k in 2020/21 and £16k for each year 

thereafter. The Public Conveniences closure programme was agreed at Service Delivery 

Committee on the 28th January. The estimated cost of continuing toilet provision at PMP is 

approximately £9k per annum; however, a further £1k has been included to provide 

funding for the roll-out of a Community Toilet Scheme. 

 

iv. The Built Environment: 

a) savings from the now in-house Cleaning services will generate savings of £66k in 

2020/21 and for each year thereafter. This is the result of an immediate saving of 

£25k and the strong potential for further service efficiencies of £41k are expected to 

be achieved. 

 

b) the development of a Joint Local Plan & Strategy with Neighbour Councils (2020/21: 

£13k and £28k for each year thereafter). The Council is working with 2 other 

neighbouring Councils with the aim of developing a joint local plan and strategy for 

the combined geographical area. Such an approach will bring with it significant and 

complimentary planning benefits for the wider area. In addition, it is expected that 

the cost of developing the Local Plan and Strategy will be reduced. 

 

v. Community & Well-Being; savings of £40k in 2020/21 and for each year thereafter will 

be generated from various budgets from within the service. 

 

However, it should be noted that within the Community & Well-Being service there are a 

number of budget savings; these are in respect of Children and Young People (£27k), 

Active/Recreation and Leisure (£8k) and Crime & Disorder Partnership (£5k). However, 

none of these savings have been prompted by the Council as a source to save money; 

all these changes are the result of alternative funding that has either: 

~ Page 29 ~



 7 
 

 been sourced from within the Councils Reserves, or 

 by partners who have secured alternative funding as they no longer need direct 

Council support or have requested non-cash support in  lieu of financial 

contribution (i,e. The Council used to provide a £23k financial contribution to 

Leicestershire County Council to support Leicestershire families, the County have 

now said they no longer wish to receive this money but would like office space in 

lieu of this payment; this has a triple benefit for the Council in that as well as 

directly saving scare financial resource, it allows improvements in collaborative 

working with partners & wider community use of its “owned” facilities). 

 

vi. Customer Services & Transformation; by electronically delivering and repurposing 

the Councils Letterbox magazine, this is likely to generate a saving of £30k in 2020/21 

and for each year thereafter. Such an approach has been followed by the private sector 

for many years, with many local authorities following suite. 

 

vii. Corporate Budgets; during 2020/21 the Council will undertake a Zero Based Budgeting 

Review of all its services. This review will be a fundamental rebasing of all Council 

provided services and as well as assessing services against the 3 principles of Value for 

Money (i.e. Economy, Efficiency and Effectiveness) the review will also include relevant 

benchmarking of services in respect of net cost and current service standards. The aim 

of this review will be to enable the Council to better align its resources to ensure that it 

meets its Corporate Priorities and chosen outcomes. A target saving has been included 

in the MTFS budget, starting in 2021/22 at £56k and for each year thereafter. 

 

~ Page 30 ~



 8 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Savings in

Expenditure

Invest

2 Save

Savings in

Expenditure

Invest

2 Save

Savings in

Expenditure

Invest

2 Save

Savings in

Expenditure

Invest

2 Save

Savings in

Expenditure

Invest

2 Save

£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £

Senior Leadership Team

Facing the Future 2 (192,940) 0 (192,940) 0 (192,940) 0 (192,940) 0 (192,940) 0

(192,940) 0 (192,940) 0 (192,940) 0 (192,940) 0 (192,940) 0

Finance & Resources

First Proposals (18,053) 0 (29,291) 0 (29,291) 0 (29,291) 0 (29,291) 0

8 Corporate Assets Miscellaneous reductions in budgets (12,300) 0 (12,300) 0 (12,300) 0 (12,300) 0 (12,300) 0

9 Public Conveniences Toilets Closure (5,053) 0 (16,291) 0 (16,291) 0 (16,291) 0 (16,291) 0

10 Public Open Space Public Open Space Instructor no longer 

required.

(700) 0 (700) 0 (700) 0 (700) 0 (700) 0

Second Proposals (21,428) 790 (38,920) (1,250) (38,920) (1,250) (38,920) (1,250) (38,920) (1,250)

5 Corporate Assets Bins - Moratorium on new street furniture (3,520) 0 (3,520) 0 (3,520) 0 (3,520) 0 (3,520) 0

6 Corporate Assets Cricket Pitches (415) 0 (415) 0 (415) 0 (415) 0 (415) 0

7 Corporate Assets Improve joint working methods with 

Grounds Maintenance and Cemetary 

Grounds staff.

(17,493) 0 (34,985) 0 (34,985) 0 (34,985) 0 (34,985) 0

8 Corporate Assets Sale/Gift of St Peter's Church Hall Car Park 0 1,290 0 (750) 0 (750) 0 (750) 0 (750)

9 Corporate Assets Manchester Gardens Allotments - sell plots 

to tenants

0 (500) 0 (500) 0 (500) 0 (500) 0 (500)

(39,481) 790 (68,211) (1,250) (68,211) (1,250) (68,211) (1,250) (68,211) (1,250)

Law & Governance

First Proposals (6,700) 0 (6,700) 0 (6,700) 0 (6,700) 0 (6,700) 0

9 DRM Minor budget adjustments (1,200) 0 (1,200) 0 (1,200) 0 (1,200) 0 (1,200) 0

10 Licences Computer Software (5,500) 0 (5,500) 0 (5,500) 0 (5,500) 0 (5,500) 0

(6,700) 0 (6,700) 0 (6,700) 0 (6,700) 0 (6,700) 0

2022/23 2023/24 2024/252020/21 2021/22

Savings & Invest to Save; Budget 2020/21 and over the MTFS (2021/22 to 2024/25

Table 2 

~
 P

age 31 ~



 9 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Savings in

Expenditure

Invest

2 Save

Savings in

Expenditure

Invest

2 Save

Savings in

Expenditure

Invest

2 Save

Savings in

Expenditure

Invest

2 Save

Savings in

Expenditure

Invest

2 Save

£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £

The Built Environment

First Proposals (51,400) 0 (51,400) 0 (51,400) 0 (51,400) 0 (51,400) 0

8 Economic Development Savings associated with the cost of 

installing Public Wifi in town centres

(4,900) 0 (4,900) 0 (4,900) 0 (4,900) 0 (4,900) 0

9 Economic Development Town Centre Manager Shared Services (3,200) 0 (3,200) 0 (3,200) 0 (3,200) 0 (3,200) 0

10 Economic Development Markets (2,800) 0 (2,800) 0 (2,800) 0 (2,800) 0 (2,800) 0

11 Planning Policy Leicester and Leicestershire Strategic 

Growth Plan/Duty to Co-operate 

(4,000) 0 (4,000) 0 (4,000) 0 (4,000) 0 (4,000) 0

12 Planning Control Advertising (1,000) 0 (1,000) 0 (1,000) 0 (1,000) 0 (1,000) 0

13 Building Control Journals, Books & Subscriptions (1,500) 0 (1,500) 0 (1,500) 0 (1,500) 0 (1,500) 0

14 Building Cleaning Contract (25,000) 0 (25,000) 0 (25,000) 0 (25,000) 0 (25,000) 0

15 Planning GIS & Gaxetteer, saving from better service. (9,000) 0 (9,000) 0 (9,000) 0 (9,000) 0 (9,000) 0

Second Proposals (91,716) 0 (106,716) 0 (113,076) 0 (99,256) 0 (103,436) 0

1 Cleaning Reduction of Cleaning Service (41,416) 0 (41,416) 0 (41,416) 0 (41,416) 0 (41,416) 0

2 Cleaning Private Sector Cleaning Company 0 0 0 0 (12,360) 0 (18,540) 0 (24,720) 0

3 Development Control Deletion of one Career Graded 

Development Control Officer post

(37,300) 0 (37,300) 0 (37,300) 0 (37,300) 0 (37,300) 0

4 Planning Policy Development of a Joint Local Plan & 

Strategy for 3 partner councils.

(13,000) 0 (28,000) 0 (22,000) 0 (2,000) 0 0 0

(143,116) 0 (158,116) 0 (164,476) 0 (150,656) 0 (154,836) 0

Table XSavings & Invest to Save; Income Generation; Budget 2020/21 and over the MTFS (2021/22 to 2024/25
2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25

Table 2 

~
 P

age 32 ~



 10 
  

Savings in

Expenditure

Invest

2 Save

Savings in

Expenditure

Invest

2 Save

Savings in

Expenditure

Invest

2 Save

Savings in

Expenditure

Invest

2 Save

Savings in

Expenditure

Invest

2 Save

£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £

Community & Wellbeing

First Proposals (88,000) 0 (88,000) 0 (88,000) 0 (88,000) 0 (88,000) 0

1 Children & Young Persons LCC: Supporting Leicestershire Families; 

service no longer operational.

(23,000) 0 (23,000) 0 (23,000) 0 (23,000) 0 (23,000) 0

2 Children & Young Persons Area Youth Games: Action will continue, via 

the South Leicestershire School Sports 

Partnership, who will deliver utilising 

external funding.

(1,500) 0 (1,500) 0 (1,500) 0 (1,500) 0 (1,500) 0

3 Children & Young Persons School Holiday Programme: Working in 

partnership with the SLM/Everyone Active 

and as part of the Leisure Contract, for them 

to deliver the Summer camps.

(2,500) 0 (2,500) 0 (2,500) 0 (2,500) 0 (2,500) 0

4 Active GP Referral: Working in partnership with 

the SLM/Everyone Active and as part of the 

Leisure Contract, for them to deliver the 

Summer camps.

(3,000) 0 (3,000) 0 (3,000) 0 (3,000) 0 (3,000) 0

5 Recreation and Leisure Legacy Maker Post: Able to utilise the ring-

fenced small ear-marked funding to 

support this expenditure from 2020 for two 

years. 

(5,000) 0 (5,000) 0 (5,000) 0 (5,000) 0 (5,000) 0

6 Crime & Disorder Partnership OWBC Contribution: A reduction of £5,000  

from the Council's contribution to the 

Community Safety Partnership Plan, as 

agreed with the Chair of the CSP.

(5,000) 0 (5,000) 0 (5,000) 0 (5,000) 0 (5,000) 0

7 Brooks Hill A reduction of £4,500 (identified from a 

range of budget codes associated with the 

Park Ranger's working budget).

(4,500) 0 (4,500) 0 (4,500) 0 (4,500) 0 (4,500) 0

8 Depot Improved processes to better align staff 

resources to service delivery. Savings 

identified as £42k, however a budget of 

£10k would be required for Agency staff (to 

cover sick leave/annual leave etc)

(35,000) 0 (35,000) 0 (35,000) 0 (35,000) 0 (35,000) 0

9 Depot Lease of this vehicle comes to an end on 31 

Oct 2019. Suggest not renewing the lease 

going forwards.

(8,500) 0 (8,500) 0 (8,500) 0 (8,500) 0 (8,500) 0

Second Proposals (38,734) (136,000) (62,234) (225,000) (62,234) (337,000) (62,234) (359,000) (62,234) (292,000)

1 Refuse & Recycling Reduce Winter Garden Waste Collection 0 0 (16,000) 0 (16,000) 0 (16,000) 0 (16,000) 0

2 Across Entire Service Reduction in Mileage (4,734) 0 (4,734) 0 (4,734) 0 (4,734) 0 (4,734) 0

3 Community & Well-Being Restructure with Community & Well-Being (34,000) 0 (41,500) 0 (41,500) 0 (41,500) 0 (41,500) 0

4 Lesiure Leisure Contract (136,000) (225,000) (337,000) (359,000) (292,000)

(126,734) (136,000) (150,234) (225,000) (150,234) (337,000) (150,234) (359,000) (150,234) (292,000)

2022/23 2023/24 2024/252020/21 2021/22

Savings & Invest to Save; Budget 2020/21 and over the MTFS (2021/22 to 2024/25

Table 2 

~
 P

age 33 ~



 11 
 

 

 
 

 

Savings in

Expenditure

Invest

2 Save

Savings in

Expenditure

Invest

2 Save

Savings in

Expenditure

Invest

2 Save

Savings in

Expenditure

Invest

2 Save

Savings in

Expenditure

Invest

2 Save

£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £

Customer Services & Transformation

First Proposals (70,000) 0 (70,000) 0 (70,000) 0 (70,000) 0 (70,000) 0

1 Customer Services Service Restructure (70,000) (70,000) (70,000) (70,000) (70,000)

Second Proposals (30,000) 0 (35,000) 0 (35,000) 0 (35,000) 0 (35,000) 0

1 Marketing & Insights Removal of Letterbox (30,000) 0 (30,000) 0 (30,000) 0 (30,000) 0 (30,000) 0

2 Refuse & Recycling Garden Waste Renewals - Removal of 

Rolling Renewals

0 0 (5,000) 0 (5,000) 0 (5,000) 0 (5,000) 0

(100,000) 0 (105,000) 0 (105,000) 0 (105,000) 0 (105,000) 0

Corporate Budgets

First Proposals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Second Proposals 0 0 (55,750) 0 (55,750) 0 (55,750) 0 (55,750) 0

1 All services ZBB Savings Provision - Moderate Risk if not 

achieved

0 0 (55,750) 0 (55,750) 0 (55,750) 0 (55,750) 0

0 0 (55,750) 0 (55,750) 0 (55,750) 0 (55,750) 0

TOTAL BUDGET PROPOSALS

Facing the Future (192,940) 0 (192,940) 0 (192,940) 0 (192,940) 0 (192,940) 0

First Proposals (234,153) 0 (245,391) 0 (245,391) 0 (245,391) 0 (245,391) 0

Second Proposals (181,878) (135,210) (298,620) (226,250) (304,980) (338,250) (291,160) (360,250) (295,340) (293,250)

Total for Savings & Invest to Save Proposals (744,181) (963,201) (1,081,561) (1,089,741) (1,026,921)

Table XSavings & Invest to Save; Income Generation; Budget 2020/21 and over the MTFS (2021/22 to 2024/25
2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25

Table 2 

~
 P

age 34 ~



 12 
 

 

 Income Generation 

 

1.4 The Council generates a fair proportion of its own funding from the various services it 

provides, by way of example these income streams range from: 

 

 fees and charges that generates income from both discretionary services (i.e. Leisure) 

through to statutory services (i.e. various Licenses, Planning etc.)  

 Income from investments. 

 

 As part of this budget round new income generations proposals have been developed or 

income budgets have been realigned to reflect demand. The income generation total £808k in 

2020/21, reducing to £754k in 2024/25. The detail of each income generation line is shown in 

Table 4 below with further commentary on the more significant items in the following 

paragraphs. 

 

i. Finance: Investment Income of £83k in 2020/21 from a Diversified Property Fund 

Investment and for each year thereafter. 

 

It is essential that the Council starts to use its treasury management function in a more 

effective way to enable the Council to achieve the maximum leverage from its cash 

holdings (primarily its working capital). By more effectively managing its cash holdings 

the Council will be able to invest in medium term investment vehicles, such as a Property 

Fund. It is therefore proposed, as permitted within the Councils Treasury Management 

Strategy, that the Council should invest £2.5m in a Property Fund – the aim will be to 

invest in a UK, property based diversified fund. Current net returns are showing 

approximately 4.5% and therefore a gross yield of £93k – resulting in a net income to the 

budget of £83k after deducting the £10k that was approved last year but was not 

followed up. 

 

ii. Law & Governance: Income of £550k is estimated in 2020/21 for the Selective 

Licensing scheme, with a further £50k for each year thereafter. 

 

Over the past year or so members have received numerous reports in respect of the 

above licensing scheme; it is not proposed to go into the detail here. However, it is 

expected that over the 5-year period of the licensing scheme that a minimum of £800k 

will be generated. It is expected that around £550k will be generated in the first year with 

a further £250k over the following 4 years. It is proposed that £500k of the £550k 

received in the first year will be immediately earmarked and then released over the 5-

year period; thus enabling a sustainable income stream to be delivered. 

 

It should be noted that considering the ‘spreading’ noted above, it is fair to say that the 

£808k income generated in 2020/21 and noted in Table 4  is ‘technically’ overstated and 

a truer profile of income generation per annum is shown in Table 3 below (i.e. removing 

the lump sum receipt and including the annual spreading). 

 

~ Page 35 ~



 13 
 

 
 

iii. Law & Governance: Licensing income budgets in 2020/21 have been increased by 

£101k and for each year thereafter. 

 

However, it should be noted that the changes to income budgets in respect of Taxi 

Licensing (£90k) and Alcohol & Entertainment Licences (£11k) are technical changes to 

the Councils budgets to reflect actual demand; these increases are not reflective of 

actual increases in Fees & Charges. In respect of Taxi Licensing, there is an additional 

cost related to the processing of such Licenses, this is noted within the Growth proposals 

later in this report. 

 

iv. Community & Wellbeing (including Depot): Income from Green Waste charging of 

£41k is included in 2020/21 and for each year thereafter. This additional income results 

from a £5 increase in the 2019/20 Green Waste charged (£35) to £40 per bin. The 

additional estimated income is a prudent recognition of additional income; the modelling 

took into account the current total paying customer base of 10,308, less an allowance for 

‘drop-offs’, ‘early renewers’ and a further ‘prudency’ factor. 

 

Members should note that in November 2019 PFD Committee agreed, in principle, a £5 

increase in the Green Waste but this agreement was ‘subject to further information being 

received’. This delay in the decision meant that the increase in charge would not have 

been able to be included in the budget report to PFD in January because to get the 

charge in place for the 1st April meant that pre-billing work had to be done in late 

December. Consequently the Leader of the Council has exercised the ‘empowerment’ 

given to him in the Council’s Constitution to authorise the increase in the Green Waste 

collection charge. 

2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Total Income per Annum (808) (331) (727) (735) (754)

Selective Licensing to 

Earmarked Reserves

500 0 0 0 0

Net Income per Annum (308) (331) (727) (735) (754)

Reallocation of Seletive 

Licensing

(100) (100) (100) (100) (100)

Total Income per Annum 

after Reallocation

(408) (431) (827) (835) (854)

Reallocation of Selective Licensing Income to give total 

Income per Annum

Table 3

~ Page 36 ~



 14 
 

 

Income

Generation

Income

Generation

Income

Generation

Income

Generation

Income

Generation

£ £ £ £ £

Senior Leadership Team

Facing the Future 2 0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0

Finance & Resources

First Proposals 0 0 0 0 0

Second Proposals (86,451) (88,345) (88,875) (89,205) (89,638)

1 Corporate Assets Memorial Wall - Wigston Cemetery (900) (990) (1,080) (1,170) (1,260)

2 Corporate Assets Rescind lawn cem policy-allow kerbs 

Wigston Cem

(2,531) (3,750) (4,125) (4,300) (4,578)

3 Corporate Assets Charge for parking permits Aylestone Lane (520) (1,105) (1,170) (1,235) (1,300)

4 Finance Invest in Property Fund (82,500) (82,500) (82,500) (82,500) (82,500)

(86,451) (88,345) (88,875) (89,205) (89,638)

Law & Governance

First Proposals (651,400) (151,400) (151,400) (151,400) (151,400)

1 Selective Licensing Income from SL, then a Contribution to 

Earmarked Reserve to spread income over 

term of Licence.

(500,000) 0 0 0 0

2 Selective Licensing Contribution from Earmarked Reserve. (50,000) (50,000) (50,000) (50,000) (50,000)

3 Taxi Licences Realigning Private Hire Vehicles budget to 

reflect actual demand.

(8,800) (8,800) (8,800) (8,800) (8,800)

4 Taxi Licences Realigning Private Hire Vehicles budget to 

reflect actual demand.

(81,600) (81,600) (81,600) (81,600) (81,600)

5 Licences Alcohol & Entertainment Licences (11,000) (11,000) (11,000) (11,000) (11,000)

Second Proposals (2,000) (22,800) (27,500) (35,500) (35,500)

1 Pest Control Cessation of Service (2,000) (11,500) (11,500) (11,500) (11,500)

2 Environmental Health Environmental Health Shared Service 0 (11,300) (16,000) (24,000) (24,000)

(653,400) (174,200) (178,900) (186,900) (186,900)

2020/21 2021/22

Income Generation; Budget 2020/21 and over the MTFS (2021/22 to 2024/25 Table X
2022/23 2023/24 2024/25

Table 4 

~
 P

age 37 ~



 15 
 

 

Income

Generation

Income

Generation

Income

Generation

Income

Generation

Income

Generation

£ £ £ £ £

The Built Environment

First Proposals (27,400) (27,400) (27,400) (27,400) (27,400)

1 Homelessness Additional subsidy to meet higher cost of 

rented accommodation.

(12,000) (12,000) (12,000) (12,000) (12,000)

2 Building Control Additional income from Application Fees 

(**)

(9,000) (9,000) (9,000) (9,000) (9,000)

3 Economic Development Markets (2,400) (2,400) (2,400) (2,400) (2,400)

4 Planning Control Various higher incomes (Pre-Application 

Advice, High Hedges, Discharge of 

Conditions)

(4,000) (4,000) (4,000) (4,000) (4,000)

Second Proposals 0 0 (390,374) (390,374) (409,122)

1 Development Control To establish a Planning Consultancy to 

compete with the private sector

0 0 (29,060) (29,060) (47,808)

2 Economic Development Investment in Commercial Property 0 0 (201,000) (201,000) (201,000)

(27,400) (27,400) (417,774) (417,774) (436,522)

Community & Wellbeing

First Proposals (41,000) (41,000) (41,000) (41,000) (41,000)

1 Refuse & Recycling Green Waste (41,000) (41,000) (41,000) (41,000) (41,000)

Second Proposals 0 0 0 0 0

(41,000) (41,000) (41,000) (41,000) (41,000)

Customer Services & Transformation

First Proposals 0 0 0 0 0

Second Proposals 0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0

Corporate Budgets

First Proposals 0 0 0 0 0

Second Proposals 0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL BUDGET PROPOSALS

First Proposals (719,800) (219,800) (219,800) (219,800) (219,800)

Second Proposals (88,451) (111,145) (506,749) (515,079) (534,260)

Total for each type of Proposal (808,251) (330,945) (726,549) (734,879) (754,060)

2020/21 2021/22

Income Generation; Budget 2020/21 and over the MTFS (2021/22 to 2024/25 Table X
2022/23 2023/24 2024/25

~
 P

age 38 ~



 16 
 

 Growth: Non-Staff 

 

1.5 The growth that is shown in Table 5 is completely unavoidable and is due to a mix of regulatory 

and contractual pressures. The net growth for 2020/21 is £816k and reduces to £398k by 

2024/25. The significant items are discussed in the following paragraphs: 

 

Finance: Total growth of £150k in 2020/21, and reducing to £80k for each year thereafter. The 

more significant items are: 

o £85k: the establishment of a BDP increase, 2020/21; £15k increasing to £30k by 2024/25 

and the use of a one-year provision to develop a Commercial Investment Strategy & 

Business Plan. 

o £27k: Contractual software upgrades due to previous systems no longer being supported 

(iTrent & Cash Receipting) 

o £13k: a marginal increase in various repairs and maintenance budgets for the Councils 

corporate assets. 

o £10k: increased cost for Treasury Management Advisor service. 

 

Law & Governance:  Total growth of £80k in 2020/21, reducing to £36k per annum for each 

year thereafter. The more significant items are: 

o £44k: a one-year increase (2020/21) in the establishment within the Environment Health 

that will enable a strategic review of the service to be undertaken to develop options for 

future provision of the service. 

o £18k contribution to Earmarked Reserves per annum to meet the future years cost of 

OWBC’s Local Elections; this will develop a 4-yearly total pot of £72k. The corresponding 

£72k in 2023/24 is the estimated one-off cost of the aforementioned elections; however 

these have not been routinely budgeted for and therefore need to be recognised in the 

MTFS. Please note that this is a gross cost, the net cost will be ‘nil’ as it will be funded 

from the aforementioned Earmarked Reserve. 

o £13k: members will recall that when ‘income’ was discussed that there was an associated 

cost for Taxi Licensing, this is that item. 

o £6k: marginal increases in various software, equipment, subscription and travel budgets. 

 

Built Environment: Total growth of £127k in 2020/21, reducing to £87k by 2024/25: 

o £63k contribution to Earmarked Reserves per annum to meet the future years cost of 

OWBC’s Local Plan; this will develop a total pot of £252k. The corresponding £252k 

(£40k: 2020/21, £85k: 2021/22, £65k: 2022/23 and £60k: 2023/24) is the estimated cost 

of the aforementioned Local Plan but as these have not been routinely budgeted for they 

need to be recognised in the MTFS. Please note that this is a gross cost, the net cost will 

be ‘nil’ as it will be funded from the aforementioned Earmarked Reserve. 

o £24k is in respect of contractual and non-chargeable building control costs, a marginal 

increase in the travel budget for the Councils statutory homelessness and 

planning/building control services and an increase in the cost of renting homelessness 

accommodation. 

 

Community & Wellbeing: Total growth of £25k in 2020/21, reducing to £20k by 2024/25: 

o £4k cost of purchasing “Battery Bikes” to support the development of the Councils green 

agenda. They will be made available for use by staff for when they travel across the 

Borough. 

o £20k is in respect of the cost of the software licence for the In-Cab/On-Board system. 

~ Page 39 ~



 17 
 

 

Corporate Budgets: Total growth of £435k in 2020/21, this gradually reduces over the MTFS 

period to £165k and relates to: 

o £262k removal of the salary savings provision. In prior years budgets the Council included 

a savings provision of £287k; the aim being that this would be met from in-year salary 

vacancies. Although staff ‘headcount’ turnover in 2019/20 was 13.5% (15.4%, 2018/19) 

on a cost basis this only reflected a forecast salary saving of £25k (£153k, 2018/19); to 

hold a provision of £25k is considered more prudent . 

o £173k as a consequence of additional Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) charges; these 

are the statutory revenue charges that are reflective of past decisions in respect of the 

capital programme. This profile of MRP over the MTFS period reduces to a net saving of 

£93k in 2024/25 due to the MRP impacts of past capital decisions falling away.

~ Page 40 ~



 18 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

Growth in 

Expenditure

Growth in 

Expenditure

Growth in 

Expenditure

Growth in 

Expenditure

Growth in 

Expenditure

£ £ £ £ £

Senior Leadership Team

0 0 0 0 0

Finance & Resources

First Proposals 150,000 74,000 76,000 90,000 86,000

1 Finance Asset Valuation Fee 9,000 0 0 9,000 0

2 Finance Cash Receipting Licence, increase because 

'old' system no longer supported.

13,300 13,300 13,300 13,300 13,300

3 Finance Short Term Borrowing Costs - Day-to-Day 

Cash Flow

6,000 6,000 6,000 6,000 6,000

4 Finance Bad Debts Provision Increase + Provision for 

Commercial Investment Development

85,000 18,000 20,000 25,000 30,000

5 Finance Increased cost for Treasury Management 

Advisor service

10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000

6 Human Resources Due to support ending for current version 

of iTrent HR system, necessary to upgrade 

to latest version.

14,000 14,000 14,000 14,000 14,000

7 Corporate Assets Maintenance budgets for various assets 

(cemeteries, offices, community centres, 

car parks)

12,700 12,700 12,700 12,700 12,700

Second Proposals 0 0 0 0 0

150,000 74,000 76,000 90,000 86,000

2022/23 2023/24 2024/252020/21 2021/22

Growth; Budget 2020/21 and over the MTFS (2021/22 to 2024/25)

Table 5 

~
 P

age 41 ~



 19 
 

 

 

 

Growth in 

Expenditure

Growth in 

Expenditure

Growth in 

Expenditure

Growth in 

Expenditure

Growth in 

Expenditure

£ £ £ £ £

Law & Governance

First Proposals 36,000 36,000 36,000 108,000 36,000

1 Elections Spreading of Cost of Local (OWBC) 

Elections; contribution to Earmarked 

Reserve

17,500 17,500 17,500 17,500 17,500

2 Elections Cost of Local (OWBC) Elections, financed 

from Earmarked Reserve

0 0 0 72,000 0

3 Pest Control Removal of Incorrect Income Budget 0 0 0 0 0

3 DRM Software Maintenance Contract 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000

4 DRM Mayor Making 600 600 600 600 600

5 Electoral Registration Equipment Maintenance 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000

6 Legal Professional Subscriptions 1,100 1,100 1,100 1,100 1,100

7 Taxi Licensing Realigning Private Hire Vehicles budget to 

reflect actual demand.

12,800 12,800 12,800 12,800 12,800

8 Selective Licensing Travel Expenses 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000

Second Proposals 44,000 0 0 0 0

1 Environmental Health Temp Environmental Health Officer - 12 

Mths 

44,000 0 0 0 0

80,000 36,000 36,000 108,000 36,000

The Built Environment

First Proposals 126,500 171,500 151,500 146,500 86,500

1 Local Plan Spreading of Cost of Local Plan; 

contribution to Earmarked Reserve

63,000 63,000 63,000 63,000 63,000

2 Local Plan Cost of Local Plan, financed from Earmarked 

Reserve

40,000 85,000 65,000 60,000 0

3 Homelessness Higher cost of rented accommodation 12,000 12,000 12,000 12,000 12,000

4 Building Control Higher cost of Shared Service for non-

chargeable services.

1,200 1,200 1,200 1,200 1,200

5 Building Control Higher cost of Inspection Fees (**) 9,000 9,000 9,000 9,000 9,000

6 Community Housing Alarms 200 200 200 200 200

7 Planning Control Travel Expenses 1,100 1,100 1,100 1,100 1,100

Second Proposals 0 0 0 0 0

126,500 171,500 151,500 146,500 86,500

Growth; Budget 2020/21 and over the MTFS (2021/22 to 2024/25
2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25

Table 5 

~
 P

age 42 ~



 20 
 

 

 

 

Growth in 

Expenditure

Growth in 

Expenditure

Growth in 

Expenditure

Growth in 

Expenditure

Growth in 

Expenditure

£ £ £ £ £

Community & Wellbeing

First Proposals 24,500 20,300 20,300 20,300 20,300

1 Wellbeing Battery Bikes 4,200 0 0 0 0

2 Refuse On-Board Software Licence 20,300 20,300 20,300 20,300 20,300

Second Proposals 0 0 0 0 0

24,500 20,300 20,300 20,300 20,300

Customer Services & Transformation

First Proposals 0 0 0 0 0

Second Proposals 0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0

Corporate Budgets

First Proposals 435,000 372,000 308,000 263,000 169,000

1 Salary Savings Provision Reversal of SSP to reflect past and current 

vacancies.

262,000 262,000 262,000 262,000 262,000

2 Minimum Revenue Provision Additional MRP for updated capital 

programme.

173,000 110,000 46,000 1,000 (93,000)

Second Proposals 0 0 0 0 0

435,000 372,000 308,000 263,000 169,000

TOTAL BUDGET PROPOSALS

Facing the Future 0 0 0 0 0

First Proposals 772,000 673,800 591,800 627,800 397,800

Second Proposals 44,000 0 0 0 0

Total for each type of Proposal 816,000 673,800 591,800 627,800 397,800

Total for Growth Proposals 816,000 673,800 591,800 627,800 397,800

2022/23 2023/24 2024/252020/21 2021/22

Growth; Budget 2020/21 and over the MTFS (2021/22 to 2024/25)

Table 5 

~
 P

age 43 ~



 21 
 

 

 

1.6 Other Expenditure assumptions: As part of the routine nature of preparing budgets, 

certain assumptions are included and these are listed below: 

 

i. Employee Pay 

The Council is part of the local government national pay bargaining process and as such 

a 2% increase in pay has been included for 2020/21, and also for each year thereafter. 

For 2020/21 this increase has increased the cost of pay by £92k. 

 

ii. Employer Oncosts 

Employers National Insurance (NI) is paid for all employees and the respective rates 

based on earnings are applied. In addition, all local government employees are ‘auto-

enrolled’ into the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) – officers have to 

effectively ‘opt-out’ of the scheme. OWBC is part of the Leicestershire LGPS scheme, 

which is administered by Leicestershire County Council; this scheme is reviewed on a 

Triennial basis. In 2020/21 OWBC will be in the first year of the new triennial period. For 

the MTFS, the current NI of 13.8% and LGPS assumptions for the next three years 

(2020/21: 33%; 2021/22: 34%; 2022/23: 35%) have been applied. 

 

iii. OWBC ‘payable’ Business Rates 

The Council owns and operates a number of properties across the Borough for which it is 

responsible for paying Business Rates on; the amount estimated is £198k. 

 

iv. Contractual Inflation 

The Council has in place a number of contracts to enable it to deliver its services (i.e. 

Utility and Fuel, ICT services etc.) and have clearly stated ‘inflationary’ increase within 

their Terms & Conditions; where these are known relevant budgets have been duly 

increased to reflect this inflation. 

 

v. Non-Contractual Inflation 

All other expenditure budgets managed by services have not had inflationary increases 

applied. Although this does reduce the capacity of services to ‘spend’ and therefore to 

‘deliver’; it is essential that resource increases are minimised to ensure that consequential 

increases to our customers and Council Tax & Business Rates payers are minimised. 

 

 Summary Impact of all budget changes – comparing the 2019/20 Budget to 

the ‘Draft’ Budget 2020/21 

 

1.7 As shown in Table 6 below, overall the 2020/21 revenue changes to the budget in respect of 

Savings & Invest to Save, Income Generation and Growth have resulted in a net decrease in 

the Council’s budget of £337k (-5%) when compared to the 2019/20 Original Budget and a 

reduction of £516k (-8%) when compared to the 2019/20 Quarter 3 Forecast Outturn. However, 

the following should be noted: 

 Until now, Corporate Budgets have been shown separately in this report, this was to 

enable members to have full transparency of where budget changes have occurred. 

Going forward from here the Corporate Budgets have been included within Finance & 

Revenues as these budgets are primarily ‘support service’ budgets and for ease of budget 

management it is easier to have them amalgamated. 

~ Page 44 ~



 22 
 

 The above variance analysis is the ‘true’ variance analysis in respect of proper practice as 

it fully reconciles to the requirements of what should be included in Net Expenditure. 

However, members will recall that in 2020/21 Selective Licensing is expected to receive 

£500k of income that will be allocated across services. If this adjustment is made the 

variance between the 2020/21 and the 2019/20 budget is as follows: 

 

o Original Budget is a net increase of £63k; +1%. 

o Forecast Outturn is a net decrease of £116k; -2%. 

 

 
 

 

Government  Grant and Corporate Funding Proposals 

 

 Government Grant 

 

1.8 The government provides a fair proportion of the core funding of the Council. Some of this 

funding is in relation to specific services e.g. Housing Benefit, but also some of the funding is in 

support of general activity. With regard to the latter, each year the government issues a 

‘Provisional Financial Settlement’ (PFS) that notifies local government of its core funding – the 

PFS relating to 2020/21 was announced on the 20th December 2019. The PFS is based on a 

number of primary funding streams and the Council’s ability to raise Council Tax, together this 

is known as “Core Funding Power”. With regard to each funding steam, please note the 

following: 

 

o New Homes Bonus (NHB), the Government confirmed that the New Homes Bonus for 

2020/21 would be £135k; this is in line with what was expected. The Government’s 

intention is to phase out this grant over a 2 year period with the last NHB grant being paid 

in 2021/22. 

Service

Direct Facing the 

Future 2

Non-Staff Staff

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Law & Governance 780 737 780 35 (20) (651) 36 6 186 -76% -75%

Community & Wellbeing 1,491 1,584 1,491 (263) (74) (41) 25 261 1,399 -6% -12%

Customer Services & Business 

Transformation

617 554 617 (100) (49) 0 0 (31) 437 -29% -21%

Senior Leadership Team 477 519 477 0 (28) 0 0 36 485 2% -7%

Planning, Development & 

Regneration

842 761 842 (143) 9 (27) 127 (25) 783 -7% 3%

Finance & Resources 2,851 3,011 2,851 (125) (31) 0 150 152 2,997 5% 0%

Salary Saving (287) (287) (287) 262 0 0 0 0 (25) -91% -91%

HRA Recharge (1,195) (1,150) (1,196) 0 0 0 0 0 (1,196) 0% 4%

Capital Financing 880 906 880 173 0 0 0 0 1,053 20% 16%

Net Expenditure 6,456 6,635 6,455 (161) (193) (719) 338 399 6,119

Original Budget 6,456 (337) 6,119 -5%

Forecast Outturn 6,635 (516) 6,119 -8%

Proposed Budget 2020/21 6,119

Selective Licensing allocated to Earmarked Reserve 500

Selective Licensing reallocated for First Year of new Selective Licensing scheme (100)

Proposed Budget 2020/21 adjusted for Selective Licensing 6,519

Original Budget 6,456 63 6,519 1.0%

Forecast Outturn 6,635 (116) 6,519 -2%

Variance analysis based on Proper Practice i.e. including all gross income and expenditure (Selective Licensing)

Variance analysis after deducting the £500k Selective Licensing income from gross income 

To 

2019/20 

Original 

Budget

To 

2019/20 

Forecast 

Outturn

Original 

Budget

Forecast 

Outturn

Proposed 

Budget

Budget Changes

Savings Income Growth

Base 

Budget

Table 6

Variance2019/20 2020/21

Summary of Total Budget Movements (Original Budget for 2019/20 to Base Budget 2020/21)

~ Page 45 ~



 23 
 

 

In the past the Council has included NHB in its base budget (i.e. to finance day-to-day 

revenue expenditure) – this is a high risk strategy as NHB is a ‘reward’ grant for delivering 

housing and therefore as future delivery is not an exact science using such a grant as an 

element of the Councils core funding is relatively high risk. It is therefore proposed that 

the Council now reduces its reliance on NHB, and so for: 

 

 2020/21: 25% of the grant is held within the base, 75% is allocated to the 

Commercial Investment Earmarked Reserve. 

 2021/22: 100% is allocated to the Commercial Investment Earmarked Reserve. 

 2022/23: No further NHB is budgeted to be received by the Council 

   

o Revenue Support Grant (RSG), the Government confirmed that RSG for 2020/21 would 

remain at zero; this is in line with what was previously expected. 

 

o Other General Fund Grants (OGFG), the Council is estimating to receive external grant 

funding of £110k in respect of Universal Credit New Burdens, Flexible Homelessness 

Support Grant and Homelessness Reduction Grant. It is possible that the Council may 

receive more grant over the year but as this grant can vary the amount received in 

2019/20 has been included, any changes to funding will be reported as part of the 

Council’s routine budget monitoring process.  

 

Fair Funding 

1.9 Members will be aware that prior to the election the government was in the process of reviewing 

the funding for local government; this process is more widely known as the Fair Funding Review 

(FFR). The aim of this review is to develop a new funding methodology that will more equitably 

distribute central government funding across the local government family. As most funding 

streams for District Councils are in the process of coming to an end (NHB) or have actually 

come to an end (RSG) a conclusion to the FFR is critical to ensure there is some future funding 

certainty to both immediate and medium term financial planning. Unfortunately, however, the 

FFR will not be implemented until 2021/22 at the earliest and following the December general 

election, the new government is expected to review the FFR distribution principles to ensure 

that it meets their political priorities. 

1.10 Like many Councils across England, the Council is engaging with external funding ‘experts’ who 

are providing financial modelling solutions that use currently known FFR principles and 

knowledge. Based on the latest information available, there is a strong likelihood that the 

Council will be negatively impacted by FFR over the medium term; for 2020/21 there is no FFR 

due to the delay in implementation but from 2021/22 the estimated loss of government support 

is £86k which increases to £343k by 2024/25. These amounts have been included in the MTFS. 

 

 Corporate Funding Proposals 

 

Council Tax Base 

 

1.11 Via approved officer delegations, the Chief Financial Officer agrees the Council Tax Base (CTB) 

for the forthcoming year. The Council Tax Base takes all properties within the Borough, adds in 

~ Page 46 ~



 24 
 

known additions and reductions and then equates these properties to a Band D equivalent. For 

2020/21 the CTB will stand at 17,520.5, which is an increase of 0.6% over 2019/20 (17,423.2). 

 

 Council Tax and Business Rates 

 

1.12 In the provisional settlement announced by the government on the 20th December 2019; District 

Councils are permitted to increase their Council Tax by 2% or £5, whichever is the higher. For 

2020/21, if the Council was to increase the Council Tax by: 

 

o 1.99%, this gives a Council Tax of £228.97, an increase of £4.47 over 2019/20 (£224.50). 

Taking into account the CTB rise mentioned earlier, this will generate an additional £100k 

over 2019/20. 

o £5, this gives a Council Tax of £229.50, an increase of 2.23%. Taking into account the 

CTB rise mentioned earlier, this will generate an additional £109k over 2019/20. It is 

recommended that the Council therefore increases its Council Tax by the maximum of £5. 

 

1.13 Members should note that if members increase Council Tax by £5, this will be: 

o greater than the “average increase in earnings across Leicestershire” of 2.07% (April 

2018 to March 2019), but 

o lower than the increase in the state pension of 2.6% (April 2019). 

 

1.14 The Council receives 40% of the Business rates collected and, after allowing for the tariff 

payment, it estimates this to be £1.4m in 2020/21, an increase of 1%. Over the subsequent 

MTFS period, a nil increase has been included for 2021/22 due to the risks associated with FF 

and a 1% increase for each year thereafter.  

 

Collection Fund Surplus/Deficit  

 

1.15 The Collection Fund is the statutory account for the Council Tax and Business Rates income 

and the payments to preceptors of their respective shares. Any surplus or deficit on the 

Collection Fund at year end is distributed to the preceptors, as per legislation. The Council is 

required to make an estimate of the projected surplus or deficit of each component of the 

Collection Fund at year end in order for the preceptors to bring their share of the surplus or 

deficit into the budget setting process. 

 

1.16 The estimated year end position of the Collection Fund is shown in Table 7 below along with 

the share that is apportioned to the Council. This is a reduction in the deficit of £83k compared 

to the 2018/19 deficit included in the 2019/20 budget. The reduction is due to benefit that has 

been accrued to the Council as a participant in the local Pilot Scheme. Unfortunately this was a 

one-year Pilot and it is expected that the deficit will increase back to pre-pilot levels; 

consequently in the following years of the MTFS a deficit of £90k is included. 

 

~ Page 47 ~



 25 
 

 

 Summary Budget  

1.17 Assuming Council approves a £5 increase in Council Tax for 2020/21, and that similar amounts 

are offered by government (and accepted by the Council) over the MTFS period, this results in 

the funding statement shown in Table 8 and Table 9 below. At this time, the Council has not 

balanced its budget and has a deficit budget (funding gap) of £101k for 2020/21, but as the 

MTFS period progresses this reduces to a surplus position by 2022/23 and then by 2024/25 the 

Council is forecasting a surplus of £246k; this is shown in the Red Line in Table 9 below. It 

should be noted that over the 5-year MTFS period, there is a forecast surplus of £796k; 

however, because not all of the years are individually ‘balanced’, further action is required as 

this is considered an ‘unbalanced budget’. 

 

Table 7

(Surplus)/Deficit OWBC Share

£000 £000

Council Tax (103) (13)

Business Rates 37 20

Total (66) 7

Collection Fund

Estimated (Surplus)/Deficit

2019/20

~ Page 48 ~



 26 
 

 
 

1.18 Following consultations with the majority group in late-January 2020, a number of budget 

proposals and assumptions were discussed; all were agreed subject to: 

 A reduced Public Convenience closure programme. 

 Use of Forum earmarked reserves (the Council Priority Earmarked Reserve) to fund the 

Borough Floral Display scheme. 

 Accelerate the pace of commercial investment. 

 Use earmarked reserves to fund the estimated budget gaps in 2020/21 and 2021/22. 

 

1.19 The consequences of using reserves are that, as is their nature, they can only be used once. By 

applying earmarked reserves (Commercial Investment) means that the Council is reducing its 

capacity to part-fund its proposed commercial investment activity; the consequential impact of 

this is that such investments will not be brought ‘on stream’ as early as the Council would have 

wished which means that its income generation capacity to provide funds to support community 

Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget

Budget Q3 Forecast 

Outturn

2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Senior Leadership Team 477,000 519,000 484,695 494,077 503,647 513,408 523,364

Finance & Resources (including Corporate Budgets) 2,851,000 3,011,000 2,997,860 2,911,946 2,994,076 3,033,920 3,056,184

Law & Governance 780,000 737,000 185,812 632,904 633,962 709,853 649,949

The Built Environment 842,000 761,000 782,231 822,849 416,945 436,812 365,152

Community & Wellbeing 1,491,000 1,584,000 1,398,566 1,315,464 1,236,048 1,248,850 1,344,725

Customer Services & Transformation 617,000 554,000 437,304 438,238 444,291 450,464 456,762

Salary Saving Provision (287,000) (287,000) (25,000) (25,000) (25,000) (25,000) (25,000)

HRA Recharge (1,195,000) (1,150,000) (1,195,600) (1,195,600) (1,195,600) (1,195,600) (1,195,600)

Capital Financing 880,000 905,500 1,053,000 1,080,000 1,065,000 1,071,000 1,031,000

Net Expenditure 6,456,000 6,634,500 6,118,868 6,474,879 6,073,369 6,243,708 6,206,536

Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget

2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Net Expenditure 6,456,000 6,634,500 6,118,868 6,474,879 6,073,369 6,243,708 6,206,536

Cont to/(from) Reserves

- General Fund to/(from) - planned (144,305) (138,978) (100,951) (42,827) 378,039 316,302 246,356

- General Fund to/(from) - unplanned 0 (53,340) 0 0 0 0 0

- EarR: to CIR 0 0 101,250 94,000 0 0 0

- EarR: to Risks & Projects (Select Lic) 0 0 500,000 0 0 0 0

- EarR: from Projects & Risks (Select Lic) 0 0 (100,000) (100,000) (100,000) (100,000) (100,000)

- EarR: from Projects & Risks (Local Plan Reserve) 0 0 (40,000) (85,000) (65,000) (60,000) 0

- EarR: from Projects & Risks (Local Election Reserve) 0 0 0 0 0 (72,000) 0

- EarR: from Council Priority Reserve (Forums Reserve) 0 0 (17,000) (17,000) (17,000) (17,000) 0

- EarR: from Ground Maintenance Reserve 0 0 (35,000) (35,000) (35,000) (35,000) (35,000)

- EarR: from Health & Wellbeing Reserve 0 0 (38,722) 0 0 0 0

Budget Requirement 6,311,695 6,442,182 6,388,445 6,289,052 6,234,408 6,276,010 6,317,892

NDR (1,349,000) (1,439,000) (1,362,490) (1,362,490) (1,376,115) (1,389,876) (1,403,775)

S31 Grant (767,000) (767,000) (767,000) (767,000) (767,000) (767,000) (767,000)

Revenue Support Grant 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Other General Fund Grants (110,000) (150,487) (110,000) (110,000) (110,000) (110,000) (110,000)

Fair Funding Review Adj 0 0 0 86,000 172,000 257,000 343,000

New Homes Bonus - to base @ 100% (263,800) (263,800) 0 0 0 0 0

New Homes Bonus - to base @ 25% 0 0 (33,750) 0 0 0 0

New Homes Bonus - to reserves @ 75% 0 0 (101,250) 0 0 0 0

New Homes Bonus - to reserves @ 100% 0 0 (94,000) 0 0 0

Collection Fund (Surplus)/Deficit 89,612 89,612 7,000 90,000 90,000 90,000 90,000

Total Grant (2,400,188) (2,530,675) (2,367,490) (2,157,490) (1,991,115) (1,919,876) (1,847,775)

Council Tax Requirement 3,911,507 3,911,507 4,020,955 4,131,562 4,243,293 4,356,134 4,470,117
- Council Tax Base 17,423.2 17,423.2 17,520.5 17,618.6 17,717.3 17,816.5 17,916.3

- % Increase in Council Tax Base: 0.56% 0.56% 0.56% 0.56% 0.56%

- Per Band D (preferred option): 224.50 224.50 229.50£                  234.50£              239.50£              244.50£              249.50£              

- % Increase in Band D Council Tax: 2.23% 2.18% 2.13% 2.09% 2.04%

- £ Increase per Band D: 5.00£             5.00£          5.00£          5.00£          5.00£          
- £ Increase in total Council Tax Debit: 109,448£                110,607£            111,731£           112,841£            113,983£            

Council Tax key comparator information

- a 1% increase in Council Tax, based on 2019/20 Base equates to: 39,116£                  

- a 1% increase in Council Tax, based on new 2020/21 Base equates to: 61,179£                  

- additional Council Tax, based on new 2020/21 Base equates to: 109,446£                

Budget

2019/20

2019/20

Q3 Forecast 

Outturn

Table 8

Budget 2020/21 & MTFS (2020/21 to 2024/25) - to be approved February 2020 Table 9

Budget 2020/21 & MTFS (2020/21 to 2024/25) - to be approved February 2020

~ Page 49 ~



 27 
 

investment will be delayed and/or, reduced – this goes against the principle of making the 

Council financially sustainable and resilient. 

 

 Revenue Reserves  
 

 General Fund Reserves; their purpose and recent review 

 

1.20 The Council is required by law to maintain a General Fund (Unallocated) Reserve (GFR) but is 

free to determine at what level this reserve is to be maintained, this Councils Policy is to 

maintain this at 10% of Net Expenditure. The purpose of this reserve is to ensure that the 

Council has funding available to meet ‘unforeseen’ events – however, if the Council choses to 

use these funds members must note that it is required to reinstate the GFR to its agreed level 

as soon as possible; this would usually involve the Council either reallocating funds previously 

allocated to Earmarked Reserves, curtailing expenditure to generate an underspend or increase 

its revenue income. 

 

1.21 In addition, the Council can maintain a number of Earmarked Reserves (ER); these are held to 

fund specific work-streams, priorities, risks or to meet future costs relating to current or ongoing 

projects.  

 

1.22 It is essential that Earmarked Reserves are actively managed to ensure they remain reflective 

of current Council policy, business but also reflect local and national market conditions. Until 

March 2019, as well as maintaining the GFR the Council also held a host of different ER’s, 

some of which had not been used for a significant number of years. Consequently, in liaison 

with all Heads of Service (HoS), a review has been undertaken into all Earmarked Reserves. 

This review required all HoS to consider the reserves held in light of current political and service 

priorities, known risks and potential future liabilities (members should note that this review 

excluded all ER’s relating to the HRA, S.106 contributions and capital). The conclusions of this 

review are: 

 

1.23 General Fund – this is to remain at 10% of Net Expenditure. However, the operation of the GFR 

is to change so that members can see that any surplus or deficits that result from the operation 

of services (net expenditure) is passed through the General Fund. When the GFR exceeds or is 

below the 10% ‘net expenditure’ threshold, appropriate contributions are made to or from other 

Earmarked Reserves (via the Budget Surplus Reserve) – in this way the GFR should remain in 

balance, thereby ensuring short-term financial resilience. 

 

1.24 Budget Surplus Reserve – this reserve is to be created to act as a ‘smoothing’ reserve between 

all Earmarked Reserves and the GFR. 

 

1.25 Earmarked Reserves – as mentioned earlier, all ER’s have been reviewed to ensure that the 

required funding is available to meet corporate priorities and the result is the formation of three 

ER’s: 

 

o ER: Projects & Risks Reserve – it is estimated that this reserve will open at the 1st April 

2020 with a balance of £435k. This ER contains all the separate mini-ER’s that ensure 

that the Risks and Projects held by the Council are duly financed. 

~ Page 50 ~



 28 
 

o ER: Housing (Private Sector) Reserve – it is estimated that this reserve will open at the 1st 

April 2020 with a balance of £129k. This is a new ER and its purpose is to hold onto 

‘seed’ funding for future general fund housing projects.  

o ER: Commercial Investment Reserve – it is estimated that this reserve will open at the 1st 

April 2020 with a balance of £564k. This is a new ER and its purpose is to hold onto 

funding that will support the acquisition of commercial property acquisitions. Members will 

recall that the purpose of such acquisitions is to generate a long-term revenue income 

stream. To help minimise future impacts of MRP, the Council will be required to ensure 

that any such acquisitions maintain a “Loan to Value” below 100%; this reserve will aim to 

achieve that objective. 

 

1.26 As shown in the funding statement at Table 9, the various financial impacts of Government 

grant, Council Tax and net service expenditure all have direct impact on the Councils Reserves 

(General Fund and Earmarked), and the estimated movements for each year of the MTFS are 

shown in Table 10 below. 

 

 
 

1.27 Members must note that the budgetary impacts on the Council’s reserves are that: 

 The GFR is maintained at 10% of Net Expenditure over the duration of the MTFS. 

 There is a net contribution to the Commercial Investment Reserve in 2020/21 because of 

the New Homes Bonus contribution is higher than the drawdown that is used to support 

the amount to finance the budget deficit; this is a similar situation in 2021/22. These 

drawdowns may mean that the delivery of investment income to support community 

investment could be delayed. 

2019/20 Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget

Q3 Forecast 

Outturn

2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25

Q2 Forecast 

Outturn

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

General Fund (Unallocated) Reserve

b/f 599,902 663,450 611,887 647,488 607,337 624,371

Cont from/(to) Services (53,340) (100,951) (42,827) 378,039 316,302 246,356

Cont from/(to) Budget Surplus Reserve 116,888 49,388 78,428 (418,190) (299,268) (250,073)

c/f 663,450 611,887 647,488 607,337 624,371 620,654

Net Expenditure 6,634,500 6,118,868 6,474,879 6,073,369 6,243,708 6,206,536

Minimum Level of Reserves @ 10% 663,450 611,887 647,488 607,337 624,371 620,654

Variance of GFR to Minimum Level of Reserves (10%) 0 0 0 0 0 0

Budget Surplus Reserve

b/f 0 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000

Cont from/(to) BS Reserve 0 0 0 0 0 0

Cont from/(to) General Fund (116,888) (49,388) (78,428) 418,190 299,268 250,073

Cont from/(to) ER: General

Cont from/(to) ER: Housing (Private Sector)

Cont from/(to) CIS Reserve 117,888 49,388 78,428 (418,190) (299,268) (250,073)

c/f 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000

Earmarked Reserve: Projects & Risks Reserve

b/f 457,149 435,071 784,849 628,349 491,849 288,349

Cont from Services - Selective Licensing 500,000

Cont from Services - Local Plan 63,000 63,000 63,000 63,000 63,000

Cont from Services - Local Election 17,500 17,500 17,500 17,500 17,500

Cont (to) Services - Selective Licensing (100,000) (100,000) (100,000) (100,000) (100,000)

Cont (to) Services - Local Plan (40,000) (85,000) (65,000) (60,000) 0

Cont (to) Services - Local Election 0 0 0 (72,000) 0

Cont (to) Services - Council Priorities (Forums) (17,000) (17,000) (17,000) (17,000) 0

Cont (to) Services - Grounds Maintenance (35,000) (35,000) (35,000) (35,000) (35,000)

Cont (to) Services - Health & Wellbeing (22,078) (38,722) 0 0 0 0

Cont from/(to) BS Reserve 0 0 0 0 0

c/f 435,071 784,849 628,349 491,849 288,349 233,849

Earmarked Reserve: Housing (Private Sector) Reserve

b/f 129,190 129,190 129,190 129,190 129,190 129,190

Cont from/(to) BS Reserve 0 0 0 0 0

c/f 129,190 129,190 129,190 129,190 129,190 129,190

Earmarked Reserve: Commercial Investment Reserve

b/f 681,466 563,578 615,440 631,012 1,049,202 1,348,470

Cont from Services (from New Homes Bonus) 101,250 94,000 0 0 0

Cont from/(to) BS Reserve (117,888) (49,388) (78,428) 418,190 299,268 250,073

c/f 563,578 615,440 631,012 1,049,202 1,348,470 1,598,543

General Fund + Budget Surplus/Other EarmarkedReserves Table 10

~ Page 51 ~



 29 
 

 

1.28 However, it is fair to conclude that, in respect of: 

 Financial Sustainability, over the duration of the MTFS the Council continues to be 

sustainable; although there are some risks in the early years due to estimated budget 

deficits. 

 Financial Resilience, the Council has taken action to remove a number of budgetary 

constraints that could have forced future funding gaps; but also endorsed innovative 

means of building capacity into service delivery. However, there are some short-term 

challenges that need to be addressed to ensure that such challenges are kept to the 

minimum. 

1.29 Table 11 below tabulates the potential risks surrounding the use of Reserves and it 

demonstrates that over the medium term that the criteria shown in the table are achieved. As 

the Councils commercial activity commences, it is likely that these criteria will change; but that 

is what demonstrates a robust and pragmatic governance framework. 

 

  

Reserves Risk Table 11

2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25

1. General Fund maintained above 0 (Nil) balance, each year of MTFS. Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

2. General Fund maintained at 10% minimum, each year of MTFS

3. Budget Surplus Reserve maintained positive, each year of MTFS

4. Earmarked Reserve: Projects & Risks, positive at end of MTFS

5. Earmarked Reserve: Housing (Private Sector), positive at end of 

MTFS

6. Earmarked Reserve: Commercial Investment, positive at end of 

MTFS

7. Earmarked Reserve: Housing (Private) Investment - funding 

maintained for investment
8. Earmarked Reserve: Commercial Investment - funding maintained 

for investment

~ Page 52 ~



 30 
 

2.0  REVENUE OPERATIONAL BUDGETS AND MEDIUM TERM 

FINANCIAL STRATEGY  
 

2.1 Council (All services): Subjective Analysis of Spend and Income 

 
 

NB. 

 Controllable Budgets – Support Service Costs (e.g. HR and Financial Services) are not 

allocated out to the service budgets in the tables above but are shown as individual services in 

their own right. 

 The following subjective budget pages cover all services except for the: 

o Salary Savings Provision, this is a one line adjustment that will be held under a separate cost 

centre during 2020/21 and in-year salary savings will be reallocated against it. 

o HRA Recharge, this is a direct recharge from the General Fund to the Housing Revenue 

Account based on currently estimated apportionments of cost. 

o Capital Charges; this is Minimum Revenue Provision i.e. revenue impact of the cost of capital, 

due to past capital investment decisions.  

Budget 19/20 

Forecast 

2019/20 Budget 2020/21 Budget 2021/22 Budget 2022/23 Budget 2023/24 Budget 2024/25

Income & Fees Fees & Charges (1,382,040) (1,447,560) (2,082,960) (1,593,135) (1,622,350) (1,622,505) (1,641,408) 

Income & Fees Sales (2,500) (3,900) (2,500) (2,500) (2,500) (2,500) (2,500) 

Income & Fees Rent (149,600) (139,900) (163,600) (163,600) (524,914) (524,914) (524,914) 

Income & Fees Government Grants (8,959,000) (7,836,700) (8,959,000) (8,959,000) (8,959,000) (8,959,000) (8,959,000) 

Income & Fees Other Grants & Contributions (695,400) (707,400) (831,400) (920,400) (1,032,400) (1,054,400) (987,400) 

Income & Fees Interest (8,200) (8,200) (90,700) (90,700) (90,700) (90,700) (90,700) 

Income & Fees Total (11,196,740) (10,143,660) (12,130,160) (11,729,335) (12,231,864) (12,254,019) (12,205,922) 

Employees Salary 4,954,495 4,905,185 5,201,907 5,230,239 5,326,594 5,426,442 5,521,631 

Employees Pension 403,200 403,200 558,200 555,450 610,450 610,450 610,450 

Employees Hired Staff 130,600 395,962 187,600 187,600 187,600 187,600 187,600 

Employees Employee Insurance 37,000 36,000 37,000 37,000 37,000 37,000 37,000 

Employees Recruitment (500) 38,700 (500) (500) (500) (500) (500) 

Employees Training 36,200 41,700 36,200 36,200 36,200 36,200 36,200 

Employees Travel Expenses 20,600 19,600 18,466 18,266 18,266 18,266 18,266 

Employees Uniform & Laundry 15,900 13,500 15,800 15,800 15,800 15,800 15,800 

Employees Other Staff Costs 26,700 27,300 27,200 27,200 27,200 27,200 27,200 

Employees Total 5,624,195 5,881,147 6,081,873 6,107,255 6,258,610 6,358,458 6,453,647 

Buildings Rents 171,400 138,300 183,400 183,400 183,400 183,400 183,400 

Buildings Rates 199,800 208,000 194,747 183,509 183,509 183,509 183,509 

Buildings Repairs & Maintenance 133,700 130,160 137,790 135,750 135,750 135,750 135,750 

Buildings Energy Costs 95,000 79,400 95,000 95,000 95,000 95,000 95,000 

Buildings Water Services 46,400 43,200 46,400 46,400 46,400 46,400 46,400 

Buildings Premises Cleaning 222,700 72,130 (17,916) (17,916) (30,276) (36,456) (42,636) 

Buildings Grounds Maintenance 41,300 36,800 36,569 35,350 34,975 34,800 34,522 

Buildings Total 910,300 707,990 675,990 661,493 648,758 642,403 635,945 

Supplies & Services Catering 2,200 2,900 2,800 2,800 2,800 2,800 2,800 

Supplies & Services Members Allowances 182,800 180,200 182,800 182,800 182,800 182,800 182,800 

Supplies & Services Office Expenses 149,700 133,200 119,700 98,700 98,700 98,700 98,700 

Supplies & Services Communication & Computing 365,500 409,000 404,500 404,500 399,000 399,000 399,000 

Supplies & Services Services 1,402,600 1,501,700 1,410,300 1,401,300 1,401,300 1,410,300 1,401,300 

Supplies & Services Equipment, Furniture & Materials 268,050 257,250 268,615 264,215 263,815 263,815 263,815 

Supplies & Services Expenses 4,800 1,000 800 800 800 800 800 

Supplies & Services Insurance - Service Related 182,900 182,900 182,900 182,900 182,900 182,900 182,900 

Supplies & Services Total 2,558,550 2,668,150 2,572,415 2,538,015 2,532,115 2,541,115 2,532,115 

Transport Operating Costs 249,000 249,500 240,500 240,500 240,500 240,500 240,500 

Transport  Total 249,000 249,500 240,500 240,500 240,500 240,500 240,500 

Benefits &  Transfer Payments Contributions Paid 50,300 26,000 19,300 19,300 19,300 19,300 19,300 

Benefits &  Transfer Payments Grants 79,800 71,200 79,500 79,500 79,500 79,500 79,500 

Benefits &  Transfer Payments Benefits 8,890,300 7,673,000 8,890,300 8,890,300 8,890,300 8,890,300 8,890,300 

Benefits &  Transfer Payments Discretionary Relief 10,000 6,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 

Benefits &  Transfer Payments Total 9,030,400 7,776,200 8,999,100 8,999,100 8,999,100 8,999,100 8,999,100 

Reserve - Revenue Transfers Bad Debts 30,200 15,200 115,200 48,200 50,200 55,200 60,200 

Reserve - Revenue Transfers Reserve - Revenue Transfers (148,010) (236,100) (27,510) 17,490 (2,510) 64,490 (67,510) 

Reserve-Revenue Transfers Total (117,810) (220,900) 87,690 65,690 47,690 119,690 (7,310) 

Savings Target Savings Target 0 0 (240,940) (267,240) (265,940) (253,940) (251,940) 

Savings Target Total 0 0 (240,940) (267,240) (265,940) (253,940) (251,940) 

Grand Total 7,057,895 6,918,427 6,286,468 6,615,479 6,228,969 6,393,308 6,396,136 

Sum of Worksheets 7,057,895 6,918,427 6,286,468 6,615,479 6,228,969 6,393,308 6,396,136 

Salary Savings (287,000) 0 (25,000) (25,000) (25,000) (25,000) (25,000) 

Facing the Future

HRA Recharge (1,195,600) (1,150,000) (1,195,600) (1,195,600) (1,195,600) (1,195,600) (1,195,600) 

Capital Charges 880,000 905,500 1,053,000 1,080,000 1,065,000 1,071,000 1,031,000 

Total 6,455,295 6,673,927 6,118,868 6,474,879 6,073,369 6,243,708 6,206,536 

Consolidated Budget 2020/21 to 2024/25 Subjective Analysis

~ Page 53 ~



 31 
 

2.2 Service Budgets by Service 

 

Senior Leadership Team 

 

 

Finance & Resources 

 

Budget 

2019/20

Forecast 

2019/20

Budget 

2020/21

Budget 

2021/22

Budget 

2022/23

Budget 

2023/24

Budget 

2024/25

Employees Salary 433,291 405,400 469,100 478,482 488,052 497,813 507,769 

Employees Hired Staff 0 200 0 0 0 0 0 

Employees Recruitment 0 17,200 0 0 0 0 0 

Employees Training 0 600 0 0 0 0 0 

Employees Travel Expenses 400 3,000 400 400 400 400 400 

Employees Other Staff Costs 400 800 400 400 400 400 400 

Employees Total 434,091 427,200 469,900 479,282 488,852 498,613 508,569 

Supplies & Services Catering 0 300 0 0 0 0 0 

Supplies & Services Office Expenses 1,300 1,300 1,300 1,300 1,300 1,300 1,300 

Supplies & Services Communication & Computing 900 500 900 900 900 900 900 

Supplies & Services Services 40,100 62,600 40,100 40,100 40,100 40,100 40,100 

Supplies & Services Equipment, Furniture & Materials 900 1,700 900 900 900 900 900 

Supplies & Services Total 43,200 66,400 43,200 43,200 43,200 43,200 43,200 

Savings Target Savings Target 0 0 (28,405) (28,405) (28,405) (28,405) (28,405) 

Savings Target Total 0 0 (28,405) (28,405) (28,405) (28,405) (28,405) 

Grand Total 477,291 493,600 484,695 494,077 503,647 513,408 523,364 

Senior Leadership Team 2020/21 to 2024/25 Subjective Analysis

Budget 

19/20 

Forecast 

2019/20

Budget 

2020/21

Budget 

2021/22

Budget 

2022/23

Budget 

2023/24

Budget 

2024/25

Income & Fees Fees & Charges (394,100) (397,460) (407,020) (407,695) (407,850) (408,005) (408,160) 

Income & Fees Rent (11,200) (11,500) (13,200) (13,200) (13,200) (13,200) (13,200) 

Income & Fees Government Grants (8,959,000) (7,830,400) (8,959,000) (8,959,000) (8,959,000) (8,959,000) (8,959,000) 

Income & Fees Other Grants & Contributions 0 (2,700) 0 0 0 0 0 

Income & Fees Interest (8,100) (8,100) (90,600) (90,600) (90,600) (90,600) (90,600) 

Income & Fees Total (9,372,400) (8,250,160) (9,469,820) (9,470,495) (9,470,650) (9,470,805) (9,470,960) 

Employees Salary 1,306,104 1,278,960 1,285,807 1,293,815 1,319,475 1,345,649 1,372,346 

Employees Pension 403,200 403,200 558,200 555,450 610,450 610,450 610,450 

Employees Hired Staff 0 105,800 0 0 0 0 0 

Employees Employee Insurance 37,000 36,000 37,000 37,000 37,000 37,000 37,000 

Employees Recruitment (500) 16,800 (500) (500) (500) (500) (500) 

Employees Training 36,200 37,500 36,200 36,200 36,200 36,200 36,200 

Employees Travel Expenses 4,600 2,900 4,600 4,600 4,600 4,600 4,600 

Employees Uniform & Laundry 400 400 400 400 400 400 400 

Employees Other Staff Costs 19,400 19,200 19,400 19,400 19,400 19,400 19,400 

Employees Total 1,806,404 1,900,760 1,941,107 1,946,365 2,027,025 2,053,199 2,079,896 

Buildings Rents 0 800 0 0 0 0 0 

Buildings Rates 149,700 154,500 144,647 133,409 133,409 133,409 133,409 

Buildings Repairs & Maintenance 105,400 101,760 109,290 107,250 107,250 107,250 107,250 

Buildings Energy Costs 64,400 50,600 64,400 64,400 64,400 64,400 64,400 

Buildings Water Services 41,300 37,100 41,300 41,300 41,300 41,300 41,300 

Buildings Premises Cleaning 900 1,130 900 900 900 900 900 

Buildings Grounds Maintenance 22,800 2,000 21,069 19,850 19,475 19,300 19,022 

Buildings Total 384,500 347,890 381,606 367,109 366,734 366,559 366,281 

Supplies & Services Catering 0 100 0 0 0 0 0 

Supplies & Services Office Expenses 45,000 43,100 45,000 45,000 45,000 45,000 45,000 

Supplies & Services Communication & Computing 246,200 280,700 273,500 273,500 273,500 273,500 273,500 

Supplies & Services Services 627,700 781,900 656,700 647,700 647,700 656,700 647,700 

Supplies & Services Equipment, Furniture & Materials 125,650 124,350 127,015 127,015 127,015 127,015 127,015 

Supplies & Services Insurance - Service Related 182,900 182,900 182,900 182,900 182,900 182,900 182,900 

Supplies & Services Total 1,227,450 1,413,050 1,285,115 1,276,115 1,276,115 1,285,115 1,276,115 

Benefits &  Transfer Payments Benefits 8,890,300 7,673,000 8,890,300 8,890,300 8,890,300 8,890,300 8,890,300 

Benefits &  Transfer Payments Discretionary Relief 10,000 6,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 

Benefits &  Transfer Payments Total 8,900,300 7,679,000 8,900,300 8,900,300 8,900,300 8,900,300 8,900,300 

Reserve-Revenue Transfers Bad Debts 30,000 15,000 115,000 48,000 50,000 55,000 60,000 

Reserve-Revenue Transfers Reserve-Revenue Transfers (125,500) (143,000) (125,500) (125,500) (125,500) (125,500) (125,500) 

Reserve-Revenue Transfers Total (95,500) (128,000) (10,500) (77,500) (75,500) (70,500) (65,500) 

Savings Target Savings Target 0 0 (29,948) (29,948) (29,948) (29,948) (29,948) 

Savings Target Total 0 0 (29,948) (29,948) (29,948) (29,948) (29,948) 

Grand Total 2,850,754 2,962,540 2,997,860 2,911,946 2,994,076 3,033,920 3,056,184 

Finance & Resources Budget 2020/21 to 2024/25 Subjective Analysis

~ Page 54 ~



 32 
 

 

Law & Governance 

 

Budget 

2019/20 

Forecast 

2019/20

Budget 

2020/21

Budget 

2021/22

Budget 

2022/23

Budget 

2023/24

Budget 

2024/25

Income & Fees Fees & Charges (217,240) (308,300) (857,840) (367,340) (367,340) (367,340) (367,340) 

Income & Fees Government Grants 0 (6,300) 0 0 0 0 0 

Income & Fees Other Grants & Contributions 0 (7,500) 0 0 0 0 0 

Income & Fees Total (217,240) (322,100) (857,840) (367,340) (367,340) (367,340) (367,340) 

Employees Salary 567,900 589,000 617,800 586,092 597,750 609,641 621,737 

Employees Pension 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Employees Hired Staff 38,800 27,800 38,800 38,800 38,800 38,800 38,800 

Employees Training 0 2,800 0 0 0 0 0 

Employees Travel Expenses 5,700 5,900 7,000 7,000 7,000 7,000 7,000 

Employees Uniform & Laundry 400 400 300 300 300 300 300 

Employees Other Staff Costs 2,200 3,700 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 

Employees Total 615,000 629,600 666,900 635,192 646,850 658,741 670,837 

Buildings Rents 3,100 3,700 3,100 3,100 3,100 3,100 3,100 

Buildings Rates 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 

Buildings Total 3,600 4,200 3,600 3,600 3,600 3,600 3,600 

Supplies & Services Catering 1,700 2,200 2,300 2,300 2,300 2,300 2,300 

Supplies & Services Members Allowances 182,800 180,200 182,800 182,800 182,800 182,800 182,800 

Supplies & Services Office Expenses 52,900 47,100 52,900 52,900 52,900 52,900 52,900 

Supplies & Services Communication & Computing 48,900 44,900 45,200 45,200 39,700 39,700 39,700 

Supplies & Services Services 70,300 78,300 70,300 70,300 70,300 70,300 70,300 

Supplies & Services Equipment, Furniture & Materials 22,100 33,000 22,200 21,800 21,400 21,400 21,400 

Supplies & Services Total 378,700 385,700 375,700 375,300 369,400 369,400 369,400 

Benefits &  Transfer Payments Contributions Paid 100 1,000 100 100 100 100 100 

Benefits &  Transfer Payments Total 100 1,000 100 100 100 100 100 

Reserve - Revenue Transfers Reserve - Revenue Transfers 0 0 17,500 17,500 17,500 89,500 17,500 

Reserve - Revenue Transfers Total 0 0 17,500 17,500 17,500 89,500 17,500 

Savings Target Savings Target 0 0 (20,148) (31,448) (36,148) (44,148) (44,148) 

Savings Target Total 0 0 (20,148) (31,448) (36,148) (44,148) (44,148) 

Grand Total 780,160 698,400 185,812 632,904 633,962 709,853 649,949 

Law & Governance Budget 2020/21 to 2024/25 Subjective Analysis

~ Page 55 ~



 33 
 

The Built Environment 

 

Community & Wellbeing + Depot 

 

Budget 

2019/20

Forecast 

2019/20

Budget 

2020/21

Budget 

2021/22

Budget 

2022/23

Budget 

2023/24

Budget 

2024/25

Income & Fees Fees & Charges (344,400) (326,200) (350,800) (350,800) (379,860) (379,860) (398,608) 

Income & Fees Sales 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Income & Fees Rent (138,400) (128,400) (150,400) (150,400) (511,714) (511,714) (511,714) 

Income & Fees Government Grants 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Income & Fees Other Grants & Contributions (10,800) (12,000) (10,800) (10,800) (10,800) (10,800) (10,800) 

Income & Fees Total (493,600) (466,600) (512,000) (512,000) (902,374) (902,374) (921,122) 

Employees Salary 688,200 728,325 743,600 754,218 765,048 776,095 787,363 

Employees Hired Staff 0 86,162 57,000 57,000 57,000 57,000 57,000 

Employees Recruitment 0 4,700 0 0 0 0 0 

Employees Travel Expenses 4,800 5,100 5,900 5,900 5,900 5,900 5,900 

Employees Uniform & Laundry 400 300 400 400 400 400 400 

Employees Other Staff Costs 3,700 2,600 3,400 3,400 3,400 3,400 3,400 

Employees Total 697,100 827,187 810,300 820,918 831,748 842,795 854,063 

Buildings Rents 142,600 108,700 154,600 154,600 154,600 154,600 154,600 

Buildings Rates 8,500 11,900 8,500 8,500 8,500 8,500 8,500 

Buildings Repairs & Maintenance 14,500 15,800 14,700 14,700 14,700 14,700 14,700 

Buildings Energy Costs 5,300 5,300 5,300 5,300 5,300 5,300 5,300 

Buildings Water Services 2,300 2,300 2,300 2,300 2,300 2,300 2,300 

Buildings Premises Cleaning 194,400 70,500 (46,216) (46,216) (58,576) (64,756) (70,936) 

Buildings Total 367,600 214,500 139,184 139,184 126,824 120,644 114,464 

Supplies & Services Office Expenses 2,200 1,200 2,200 2,200 2,200 2,200 2,200 

Supplies & Services Communication & Computing 16,600 11,600 11,700 11,700 11,700 11,700 11,700 

Supplies & Services Services 225,500 192,700 209,800 209,800 209,800 209,800 209,800 

Supplies & Services Equipment, Furniture & Materials 46,200 30,100 41,900 41,900 41,900 41,900 41,900 

Supplies & Services Total 290,500 235,600 265,600 265,600 265,600 265,600 265,600 

Benefits &  Transfer Payments Contributions Paid 3,000 0 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 

Benefits &  Transfer Payments Total 3,000 0 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 

Reserve-Revenue Transfers Reserve-Revenue Transfers (22,510) (88,100) 80,490 125,490 105,490 100,490 40,490 

Reserve-Revenue Transfers Total (22,510) 80,490 125,490 105,490 100,490 40,490 

Savings Target Savings Target 0 0 (4,343) (19,343) (13,343) 6,657 8,657 

Savings Target Total 0 0 (4,343) (19,343) (13,343) 6,657 8,657 

Grand Total 842,090 722,587 782,231 822,849 416,945 436,812 365,152 

The Built Environment 2020/21 to 2024/25 Subjective Analysis

Budget 

2019/20 

Forecast 

2019/20

Budget 

2020/21

Budget 

2021/22

Budget 

2022/23

Budget 

2023/24

Budget 

2024/25

Income & Fees Fees & Charges (426,200) (415,500) (467,200) (467,200) (467,200) (467,200) (467,200) 

Income & Fees Sales (2,500) (3,900) (2,500) (2,500) (2,500) (2,500) (2,500) 

Income & Fees Other Grants & Contributions (684,600) (685,200) (820,600) (909,600) (1,021,600) (1,043,600) (976,600) 

Income & Fees Interest (100) (100) (100) (100) (100) (100) (100) 

Income & Fees Total (1,113,400) (1,104,700) (1,290,400) (1,379,400) (1,491,400) (1,513,400) (1,446,400) 

Employees Salary 1,487,800 1,486,500 1,715,000 1,741,098 1,773,682 1,808,484 1,837,359 

Employees Hired Staff 91,800 176,000 91,800 91,800 91,800 91,800 91,800 

Employees Training 0 800 0 0 0 0 0 

Employees Travel Expenses 4,600 2,300 66 (134) (134) (134) (134) 

Employees Uniform & Laundry 13,700 11,400 13,700 13,700 13,700 13,700 13,700 

Employees Other Staff Costs 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 

Employees Total 1,598,900 1,678,000 1,821,566 1,847,464 1,880,048 1,914,850 1,943,725 

Buildings Rates 29,100 29,100 29,100 29,100 29,100 29,100 29,100 

Buildings Repairs & Maintenance 12,600 10,100 12,600 12,600 12,600 12,600 12,600 

Buildings Energy Costs 21,300 19,500 21,300 21,300 21,300 21,300 21,300 

Buildings Water Services 2,500 3,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 

Buildings Premises Cleaning 16,200 500 16,200 16,200 16,200 16,200 16,200 

Buildings Grounds Maintenance 18,500 34,800 15,500 15,500 15,500 15,500 15,500 

Buildings Total 100,200 97,500 97,200 97,200 97,200 97,200 97,200 

Supplies & Services Catering 500 300 500 500 500 500 500 

Supplies & Services Office Expenses 45,700 40,300 45,700 29,700 29,700 29,700 29,700 

Supplies & Services Communication & Computing 3,300 23,600 23,600 23,600 23,600 23,600 23,600 

Supplies & Services Services 405,900 382,500 400,300 400,300 400,300 400,300 400,300 

Supplies & Services Equipment, Furniture & Materials 68,600 56,200 72,000 68,000 68,000 68,000 68,000 

Supplies & Services Expenses 4,800 1,000 800 800 800 800 800 

Supplies & Services Total 528,800 503,900 542,900 522,900 522,900 522,900 522,900 

Transport Operating Costs 249,000 249,500 240,500 240,500 240,500 240,500 240,500 

Transport  Total 249,000 249,500 240,500 240,500 240,500 240,500 240,500 

Benefits &  Transfer Payments Contributions Paid 47,200 25,000 16,200 16,200 16,200 16,200 16,200 

Benefits &  Transfer Payments Grants 79,800 71,200 79,500 79,500 79,500 79,500 79,500 

Benefits &  Transfer Payments Total 127,000 96,200 95,700 95,700 95,700 95,700 95,700 

Reserve-Revenue Transfers Bad Debts 200 200 200 200 200 200 200 

Reserve-Revenue Transfers Reserve-Revenue Transfers 0 (5,000) 0 0 0 0 0 

Reserve-Revenue Transfers Total 200 (4,800) 200 200 200 200 200 

Savings Target Savings Target 0 0 (109,100) (109,100) (109,100) (109,100) (109,100) 

Savings Target Total 0 0 (109,100) (109,100) (109,100) (109,100) (109,100) 

Grand Total 1,490,700 1,515,600 1,398,566 1,315,464 1,236,048 1,248,850 1,344,725 

Community & Wellbeing 2020/21 to 2024/25 Subjective Analysis

~ Page 56 ~



 34 
 

Customer Services & Transformation 

 

 

 

Budget 

2019/20

Forecast 

2019/20

Budget 

2020/21

Budget 

2021/22

Budget 

2022/23

Budget 

2023/24

Budget 

2024/25

Income & Fees Fees & Charges (100) (100) (100) (100) (100) (100) (100) 

Income & Fees Total (100) (100) (100) (100) (100) (100) (100) 

Employees Salary 471,200 417,000 370,600 376,534 382,587 388,760 395,058 

Employees Travel Expenses 500 400 500 500 500 500 500 

Employees Uniform & Laundry 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 

Employees Total 472,700 418,400 372,100 378,034 384,087 390,260 396,558 

Buildings Rents 25,700 25,100 25,700 25,700 25,700 25,700 25,700 

Buildings Rates 12,000 12,000 12,000 12,000 12,000 12,000 12,000 

Buildings Repairs & Maintenance 1,200 2,500 1,200 1,200 1,200 1,200 1,200 

Buildings Energy Costs 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000 

Buildings Water Services 300 300 300 300 300 300 300 

Buildings Premises Cleaning 11,200 0 11,200 11,200 11,200 11,200 11,200 

Buildings Total 54,400 43,900 54,400 54,400 54,400 54,400 54,400 

Supplies & Services Office Expenses 2,600 200 (27,400) (32,400) (32,400) (32,400) (32,400) 

Supplies & Services Communication & Computing 49,600 47,700 49,600 49,600 49,600 49,600 49,600 

Supplies & Services Services 33,100 3,700 33,100 33,100 33,100 33,100 33,100 

Supplies & Services Equipment, Furniture & Materials 4,600 11,900 4,600 4,600 4,600 4,600 4,600 

Supplies & Services Total 89,900 63,500 59,900 54,900 54,900 54,900 54,900 

Savings Target Savings Target 0 0 (48,996) (48,996) (48,996) (48,996) (48,996) 

Savings Target Total 0 0 (48,996) (48,996) (48,996) (48,996) (48,996) 

Grand Total 616,900 525,700 437,304 438,238 444,291 450,464 456,762 

Customer Services 2020/21 to 2024/25 Subjective Analysis

~ Page 57 ~



 35 
 

3.0 CAPITAL  
 

The detailed Draft Capital Programme for the period 2020/21 to 2022/23 is shown in Table 12 below, 

along with the sources of finance. The revenue implications of the individual capital proposals are built 

into the revenue budgets discussed earlier in this report; the impact of the proposed programme on the 

2020/21 Minimum Revenue Position (MRP) is an additional £173k. 

 

 
 

Unsupported Borrowing (Internal Borrowing) – this is from internal cash resources (working capital) from within the balance 

sheet (cash, debtors and creditor).

Scheme

2019-20 

Total 

Budget

Forecast 

to Year 

End

Carry 

Forward 

to 20/21

2020-21 

Proposals

2019-20 

C/F

2020-21 

Total 

Budget

2021-22 

Total 

Budget

2022-23 

Total 

Budget

£

Funding Available B/F

Estimated Additions In Year

Total Funding Available

Housing Revenue Account

Central Heating  250,000  250,000  0  0 

Front & Rear Doors  100,000  100,000  0  0 

Car Hardstandings  20,000  20,000  0  0 

Decent Homes Work  150,000  150,000  1,500,000  0  1,500,000  1,500,000  1,500,000 

Major Adaptations  100,000  100,000  0  0 

Fire Safety  150,000  150,000  0  0 

Timber Window Replacement incl external entrance / fire doors Kings Drive Area  180,000  180,000  0  0 

Heating, Ventilation and Insulation  24,000  24,000  0  0 

New Housing Initiatives  526,800  526,800  0  0 

Communal Heating System William Peardon Court  110,000  110,000  0  0 

Kitchen Replacements Decent Homes, incl Bathrooms 2018/19  900,000  900,000  0  0 

Housing Block Improvements  320,500  320,500  0  0 

Asset Management System Upgrades  100,000  100,000  0  0 

Total - HRA  2,931,300  2,931,300  0  1,500,000  0  1,500,000  1,500,000  1,500,000 

General Fund - Service Delivery

Play Area Refurbishments  21,600  6,100 (15,500)  15,500  15,500 

Cemeteries - Memorial Safety  11,700  3,000 (8,700)  8,700  8,700 

Xmas Decorations  6,500  6,500  0  0 

Grand Union Canal Footbridge  129,500  0 (129,500)  129,500  129,500 

Brocks Hill Car Park Drainage  12,800  12,800  0  0 

Incorporating ex Scout Hut Land into Oadby Cemetery  20,000  20,000  0  0 

Horsewell Lane Pavilion  1,046,800  1,046,800  0  0 

Car Park Resurfacing  36,700  26,700 (10,000)  10,000  10,000 

Purchase of New Vehicles  128,200  128,200  0  0 

Recycling Wheelie Bins  68,400  68,400  0  0 

CCTV Cameras  3,700  3,700  0  0 

Air Monitoring Equipment  20,000  20,000  0  0 

Purchase and installation of allotment administration software  4,000  4,000  0  0 

Horsewell Lane Play Area  60,000  60,000  0  0 

3G Pitch Oadby  150,000  150,000  0  0 

Brocks Hill Additional Play Equipment  82,000  82,000  0  0 

Coombe Park Pavilion Extension  170,000  0 (170,000)  170,000  170,000 

Footpaths in Blaby Road Park  9,000  9,000  0  0 

Improvements to the entrance to Oadby Cemetery - Goddards Slang  35,000  35,000  0  0 

New Kitchen Sheila Mitchell Pavilion  4,000  4,000  0  0 

Outdoor Fitness Equipment for Wigston and South Wigston Parks  36,500  36,500  0  0 

Pitch Improvement Programme  80,000  0 (80,000)  80,000  80,000 

Private Sports Grants  150,000  25,000 (125,000)  50,000  125,000  175,000 

Repairs to play area surface various play areas  22,000  22,000  0  0 

Town Centre Wi-FI  30,000  30,000  0  0 

Willow Park Skate Park  15,000  15,000  0  0 

Crow Mill Fencing  5,000  5,000 

Freer Centre Boiler Replacement  6,000  6,000  0  0 

Margaret Capitalisation  25,000  25,000  0  0 

Mobile audio system for Council Chamber  35,000  35,000 

Purchase of replacement trailer shredder/wood chipper.  25,000  25,000 

Redeployable CCTV Camera Upgrade  30,000  30,000 

Trade lift truck replacement  165,000  165,000 

Total -Service Delivery General Fund  2,384,400  1,845,700 (538,700)  310,000  538,700  848,700  0  0 

TOTAL SERVICE DELIVERY  5,315,700  4,777,000 (538,700)  1,810,000  538,700  2,348,700  1,500,000  1,500,000 

General Fund - Policy, Finance & Development

Council Office Refurbishment  50,800  22,900 (27,900)  27,900  27,900 

IT Replacement Programme  44,300  30,000 (14,300)  14,300  14,300  20,000  20,000 

Upgrade of Contact Centre Telephones  16,000  16,000  0  0 

Mobile Working Devices  10,000  10,000  0  0  15,000 

New Income Management System  34,000  34,000  0  0 

Security infrastructure  7,000  7,000  0  0  10,000 

Document Management System Software  57,700  3,300 (54,400)  54,400  54,400 

Planning IDOX  3,300  3,300  0  0 

Orchard Server Replacement  10,800  10,800  0  0 

Licensing Service Software Review  35,300  35,300  0  0 

Corporate Folding and Enveloping Machine   6,300  6,300  0  0 

Network refresh  10,000  10,000  0  0  11,000  12,000 

South Wigston Shop Fronts  10,000  10,000  0  0 

Citrix upgrade  21,000  21,000  0  0 

Windows server migrations  10,000  10,000  0  0  13,000 

Restructure Capitalisation  196,100  196,100  0  0 

Bushloe House Chimney Stack  10,000  10,000 

Data Centre  0  16,500 

Enterprise for Uniform  13,700  13,700 

ICT Capitalisation  15,000  15,000  0  0 

Phones Capitalisation  35,000  35,000  0  0 

Systems Admin Capitalisation  90,500  90,500  0  0 

Wifi Refresh  0  10,000 

Total - Policy, Finance and Development  663,100  566,500 (96,600)  23,700  96,600  120,300  47,500  80,000 

PLANNED EXPENDITURE GRAND TOTAL  5,978,800  5,343,500 (635,300)  1,833,700  635,300  2,469,000  1,547,500  1,580,000 

FINANCING OF PLANNED EXPENDITURE

Unsupported Borrowing  2,198,600  544,000  47,500  80,000 

Grants & Contributions  160,000  180,000  0  0 

Open Spaces S106  87,600  245,000  0  0 

Usable S106 Interest Reserve  125,400  0  0  0 

Usable Capital Receipts - OTHER  772,200  0  0  0 

Major Repairs Reserve  1,949,700  1,500,000  1,500,000  1,500,000 

1-4-1 Reserve  50,000 

TOTAL  5,343,500  2,469,000  1,547,500  1,580,000 

Table 12 

~ Page 58 ~



 36 
 

4.0 TREASURY MANAGEMENT 

4.1 TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY AND PLAN 2020/21 

4.1.1 Introduction 

In accordance with the requirements of the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and 

Accountancy's (CIPFA) latest Code of Practice on Treasury Management and the Council's 

Treasury Management Policy Statement, a Treasury Strategy and Plan is prepared each year.  

For the purpose of this strategy, treasury management includes the management of all capital 

market transactions in connection with the cash and funding resources of the Council.  This 

covers all funds and reserves including the collection fund and includes the arrangement of 

leases. 

The strategy includes broad principles, which provide the framework within which the Council’s 

treasury management activities are conducted together with detailed plans for the management 

of the Council’s loans and investment portfolios.  The strategy includes those indicators 

required by the Prudential Code that relate to treasury management.  

4.1.2 Treasury Management Objectives 

 The primary objective of treasury management operations will be to maximise the revenue 

resources available to the Council whilst ensuring the effective management of risks associated 

with treasury management activities in accordance with the following principles: 

i. That the cost of borrowing is minimised commensurate with following a prudent funding 

policy. 

ii. That the most advantageous rates of return on investments are secured commensurate 

with the primary principle of maintaining the capital value of funds. 

iii. That the Council maintains flexibility in its borrowing and lending portfolios. 

iv. That the Council manages its borrowings and investments as a combined portfolio in order 

to achieve the optimum net debt position. 

The sections below provide a summary of the principal activities anticipated during the period 

covered. 

4.1.3 Balanced Budget Requirement 

It is a statutory requirement under the Local Government Finance Act 1992, for the Council to 

produce a balanced budget. In particular, it requires a local authority to calculate its budget 

requirement for each financial year to include the revenue costs that flow from capital financing 

decisions. This, therefore, means that increases in capital expenditure must be limited to a level 

of increase in costs to revenue from:- 

 Increases in interest charges caused by increased borrowing and, 

 Any increase in running costs from new capital projects 

to a level which is affordable within the projected income of the Council for the foreseeable 

future. 

 

~ Page 59 ~



 37 
 

4.1.4 Current Treasury Position 

The Council’s detailed treasury position is highlighted in the following table. 

31st March 2019 Rate Rate

GF HRA GF HRA

£ 000s £ 000s % £ 000s £ 000s %

Fixed Rate Debt PWLB 500 4.10 500 4.10

PWLB 0 18,114 2.98 0 17,108 2.98

PWLB 4,811 0 2.66 4,731 2.66

Market 6,000 2,000 0.68 8,000 2,500

Variable Rate Debt PWLB 0 0 0 0

Market 0 0 0 0

Total Debt 11,311 20,114 13,231 19,608

Other Long-term Liabilities 0 0 0

Total 11,311 20,114 13,231 19,608

Fixed Investments 0 0 0 0

Variable Investments 0 0 0 0

Total Investments 0 0 0 0

Net Borrowing 11,311 20,114 13,231 19,608

Actual

31st March 2020

Actual

 

4.1.5 Borrowing and Debt Strategy 

 General Fund 

As at 31st March 2019, the Council’s outstanding borrowing for General Fund purposes stood 

at a total of £11.3 million. This was made up of two loans from the Public Works Loan Board 

(PWLB), and £6m of short-term borrowing, as shown in the table at 4.0. 

Up until the end of 2015/16, the Council was able to utilise cash balances, held in the form of 

short-term investments, grants and capital reserves, to help in the funding of its capital 

programme. Consequently, the Council was able to avoid increasing its long term borrowing, 

despite carrying out ambitious schemes both in the General Fund and Housing Revenue 

Account. 

In 2016/17 the financing of the Council’s new leisure development was finalised. The Council 

borrowed £5 million from the PWLB, taken over 39 years. The remaining £5 million of the £10 

million project was funded by cash balances.  

During 2017/18, 2018/19 and 2019/20 the Council did not borrow any further funds long term 

and instead continued to take advantage of the very low short term rates to keep interest 

payments under control. It is proposed to continue this strategy in the medium term, so as to 

minimise the impact upon the general fund.  

By doing so, the Council is able to reduce net borrowing costs and reduce overall treasury risk. 

The benefits of short-term borrowing will be monitored regularly against the potential for 

incurring additional costs by deferring borrowing into future years when long-term borrowing 

rates are forecast to rise modestly.  

~ Page 60 ~



 38 
 

Short-term debt applicable to the General Fund is forecast to rise to £8m during 2019/20, in 

support of the current capital programme, with another £0.5m required in 2020/21.  

Total external debt relating to the General Fund for future financial years is expected to be:

   

 2020/21: £14.0 million 

 2021/22 : £14.0 million 

 2022/23 : £14.0 million 

The above estimates of borrowing are based on the current capital programme, and do not take 

account of the proposals for a Commercial Investment Strategy & Business Plan detailed in the 

Investment Strategy.  

If the proposals to invest in existing commercial property, significant property redevelopment 

schemes, and the private residential sector are pursued, considerable additional borrowing, 

both long and short-term, will be required. However, since the express purpose of the proposals 

is to generate income to support the General Fund, no such investment would be undertaken if 

it did not cover the cost of capital by an acceptable margin. To support this activity, a 

Commercial Investment Strategy & Business Plan will be developed. 

Housing Revenue Account (HRA) 

The self-financing settlement involved the Council taking on £18.1m of PWLB borrowing. The 

HRA business plan provides the repayment of HRA debt over its life. The initial borrowing was 

due to start repayment in 2020, however due to changes in government legislation which has 

impacted detrimentally on the financial position of the HRA; this debt repayment plan is now 

likely to need restructuring with a new plan being drawn up.  

In 2016/17 and 2017/18 the HRA used a total of £1.6m borrowing to fund its capital 

programmes. This initially was supported by internal balances, however £2.0m of short-term 

borrowing in 2018/19 can be attributed to the support of the HRA capital programme, and an 

additional £0.6m is forecast to be required in 2019/20. 

The Council’s initial investment of £18.1m which it borrowed for the new financial regime for 

housing in 2012 will start to be repaid at the end of 2019/20, at the rate of £1m per annum. In 

the medium-term, it is proposed to refinance this using short-term borrowing, so as to minimise 

the costs of servicing the debt. 

4.1.6 Prudential Indicators and Limits on Activity 

The purpose of these Prudential Indicators is to contain the activity of the treasury function 

within certain limits, thereby reducing the risk of an adverse movement in interest rates 

impacting negatively on the Council’s overall financial position. However, if these are set to be 

too restrictive they will impair the opportunities to reduce costs. 

4.1.6.1 Authorised Limit for External Debt 

This represents the limit beyond which borrowing is prohibited and needs to be set and 

revised by Council. It reflects the level of borrowing which, while not desired, could be 

afforded in the short-term, but is not sustainable. It is the expected maximum borrowing 

~ Page 61 ~



 39 
 

need with some headroom for unexpected movements. This is the statutory limit 

determined under section 3(1) of the Local Government Act 2003. 

 

 2019/20 

Estimate 

£ 000s 

2020/21 

Estimate 

£ 000s 

2021/22 

Estimate 

£ 000s 

2022/23 

Estimate 

£ 000s 

Borrowing 43,000 44,000 44,000 44,000 

Other Long Term 

Liabilities 

0 0 0 0 

Total 43,000 44,000 44,000 44,000 

The Chief Financial Officer (Section 151 Officer) reports that the authorised limits given 

above are consistent with the council’s current commitments, existing plans and the 

proposals in the capital programme report. The limits are also consistent with the 

Council’s approved treasury management policy statement and practices. Risk analysis 

of the key elements of the council’s cash flow forecasts has been undertaken to 

determine these limits. In due course, the Authorised Limit for External Debt will rise as 

the Commercial Investment Strategy is formalised, a further report to Council will be 

presented in due course to adjust these limits. 

4.1.6.2 Operational Boundary for External Debt 

This indicator is based on the probable external debt during the course of the year 

(allowing for peaks and troughs in cash flow and the impact of treasury management 

decisions). It is not a maximum and actual borrowing could vary around the boundary for 

short times during the year. It should act as an indicator to ensure the authorised limit is 

not breached. In due course, the Operational Boundary will rise as the Commercial 

Investment Strategy is formalised, a further report to Council will be presented in due 

course to adjust these limits. 

 2019/20 

Estimate 

£ 000s 

2020/21 

Estimate £ 

000s 

2021/22 

Estimate £ 

000s 

2022/23 

Estimate £ 

000s 

Borrowing 38,000 39,000 39,000 39,000 

Other Long Term Liabilities 0 0 0 0 

Total 38,000 39,000 39,000 39,000 

~ Page 62 ~



 40 
 

 

4.1.6.3 Limits in Interest Rate Exposure 

Upper Limits on Variable Rate Exposure – This indicator identifies a maximum limit 

for variable interest rates based upon net interest payments. 

Upper Limits on Fixed Rate Exposure – Similar to the previous indicator this covers a 

maximum limit on fixed interest rates. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4.1.6.4 Maturity Structure of Fixed Borrowing 

These gross limits are set to reduce the Council’s exposure to large fixed rate sums 

falling due for refinancing. 

 

  Lower  Upper 

  % % 

Under 12 months 0 50 

12 months to 2 years 0 50 

2 years to 5 years 0 50 

5 years to 10 years 0 100 

10 years and above 0 100 

4.1.6.5 Total Principal Sums Invested 

The purpose of this indicator is to control the Council’s exposure to the risk of incurring 

losses by seeking early repayment of its investments. The limits on the long-term 

principal sum invested to final maturities beyond the period end will be: 

 

 2020/21 

Upper % 

2021/22 

Upper % 

2022/23 

Upper % 

Limits on Fixed Interest Rates 100 100 100 

Limits on Variable Interest Rates 25 25 25 

~ Page 63 ~



 41 
 

Price Risk Indicator 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 

Limit on principal invested 

beyond year end  £10m £10m £10m 

 

4.1.7 Local Performance Indicators 

The Code of Practice on Treasury Management requires the Council to set performance 

indicators to assess the adequacy of the treasury function over the year. These are distinct 

historic indicators, as opposed to the Prudential Indicators, which are predominantly forward 

looking. The Council also sets local performance indicators which are as follows. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The results of these indicators will be reported as part of the Treasury Management Annual 

Report before 30th September each year. 

 

 

Local Indicator 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 

Average rate of interest on 

borrowing compared to the 

national average (*) 

Level Level Level Level 

Average rate of interest on 

investments compared to 

the national average (*) 

Level Level Level Level 

* Level = at the point of any deal being undertaken, it will not be 

expected that the rate of interest that the deal will be based will be 

significantly different to the prevailing rate in the national market. 

~ Page 64 ~



 42 
 

4.2 CAPITAL STRATEGY 2020/21 

4.2.1 Why is a Strategy Needed? 

4.2.1.1 Introduction 

This capital strategy is a new report for 2020/21, giving a high-level overview of how capital 

expenditure, capital financing and treasury management activity contribute to the provision of local 

public services along with an overview of how associated risk is managed and the implications for 

future financial sustainability. 

4.2.2 Capital Expenditure and Financing 

4.2.2.1 Capital Expenditure 

Capital expenditure is where the Council spends money on assets, such as property or vehicles, that 

will be used for more than one year. In local government this includes spending on assets owned by 

other bodies, and loans and grants to other bodies enabling them to buy assets. The Council has some 

limited discretion on what counts as capital expenditure, for example assets costing below £3,000 are 

not capitalised and are charged to revenue in year. 

 For details of the Council’s policy on capitalisation, see the Council’s Financial Regulations 

In 2020/21, the Council is planning capital expenditure of £2.5m as summarised below: 

Table 1: Prudential Indicator: Estimates of Capital Expenditure in £m 

 2018/19 

Actual 

2019/20 

Forecast 

2020/21 

Budget 

2021/22 

Budget 

2022/23 

Budget 

General Fund 

services 

3.040 2.412 0.989 0.048 0.080 

HRA Services 0.838 3.078 1.500 1.500 1.500 

TOTAL 3.878 5.490 2.489 1.548 1.580 

 

The main General Fund capital projects include Coombe Park Pavilion Extension (£170K), the Private 

Sports Grants scheme (£175K), and the replacement of the Trade Lift Truck (£165K). £1.5m is 

budgeted for major works within the Housing Revenue Account. 

4.2.2.2 Governance 

Service managers bid annually in August to include projects in the Council’s capital programme. Bids 

are collated by the Finance team who calculate the financing cost (which can be nil if the project is fully 

externally financed). Finance appraises all bids based on a comparison of service priorities against 

financing costs and makes recommendations to the Senior Leadership Team. The final capital 

programme is then presented to Committee in January and to Council in February each year. 

The capital project will be monitored through its lifecycle by the Project Management Governance 

Board. 

~ Page 65 ~



 43 
 

All capital expenditure must be financed, either from external sources (government grants and other 

contributions), the Council’s own resources (revenue, reserves and capital receipts) or debt (borrowing, 

leasing and Private Finance Initiative). The planned financing of the above expenditure is as follows: 

Table 2: Capital financing in £m 

 2018/19 

Actual 

2019/20 

Forecast 

2020/21 

Budget 

2021/22 

Budget 

2022/23 

Budget 

External sources 0.443 0.248 0.425 0.000 0.000 

Own resources 1.039 2.897 1.500 1.500 1.500 

Debt 2.396 2.345 0.544 0.480 0.080 

TOTAL 3.878 5.490 2.489 1.548 1.580 

 

Debt is only a temporary source of finance, since loans and leases must be repaid, and this is therefore 

replaced over time by other financing, usually from revenue which is known as minimum revenue 

provision (MRP). Alternatively, proceeds from selling capital assets (known as capital receipts) may be 

used to replace debt finance. Planned MRP and use of capital receipts are as follows: 

Table 3: Replacement of debt finance in £m 

 2018/19 

Actual 

2019/20 

Forecast 

2020/21 

Budget 

2021/22 

Budget 

2022/23 

Budget 

Own resources 0.730 1.009 0.819 0.849 0.836 

 

 The Council’s full minimum revenue provision statement is available as part of the MTFS report. 

The Council’s cumulative outstanding amount of debt finance is measured by the capital financing 

requirement (CFR). This increases with new debt-financed capital expenditure and reduces with MRP 

and capital receipts used to replace debt. The CFR is expected to increase by £1.6m during 2019/20. 

Based on the above figures for expenditure and financing, the Council’s estimated CFR is as follows: 

Table 4: Prudential Indicator: Estimates of Capital Financing Requirement in £m 

 2018/19 

Actual 

2019/20 

Forecast 

2020/21 

Budget 

2021/22 

Budget 

2022/23 

Budget 

General Fund 

services 

16.539 17.570 17.294 16.492 15.736 

HRA Services 19.628 20.229 20.229 20.229 20.229 

TOTAL CFR 36.167 37.799 37.523 36.722 35.965 

 

4.2.2.3 Asset management  

To ensure that capital assets continue to be of long-term use, the Council has various strategies to 

manage assets held by services 

 

 

~ Page 66 ~



 44 
 

4.2.2.4 Asset disposals 

When a capital asset is no longer needed, it may be sold so that the proceeds, known as capital 

receipts, can be spent on new assets or to repay debt. The Council is currently also permitted to spend 

capital receipts on service transformation projects until 2021/22. Repayments of capital grants, loans 

and investments also generate capital receipts. The Council plans to receive £0.4m of capital receipts 

in the coming financial year as follows: 

Table 5: Capital receipts in £m 

 2018/19 

Actual 

2019/20 

Forecast 

2020/21 

Budget 

2021/22 

Budget 

2022/23 

Budget 

General Fund Asset 

Sales 

0.129 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 

HRA Asset Sales 0.380 0.400 0.400 0.400 0.400 

TOTAL 0.509 0.400 0.400 0.400 0.400 

 

 

~ Page 67 ~



 45 
 

 

4.3  INVESTMENTS STRATEGY 2020/21 

4.3.1 Introduction 

  This strategy is written in accordance with guidance issued under section 15 (1) (a) of the Local 
Government Act 2003, the Department of Communities and Local Government (DCLG) 
Guidance on Local Authority Investments issued in April 2010, any revisions of that guidance, 
the Audit Commission’s report on Icelandic investments and the revised CIPFA Treasury 
Management in Public Services Code of Practice and Cross Sectoral Guidance Notes (2017). 
The objectives of this strategy are to: 

 Security - facilitate investment decisions which ensure that the Council’s investment sums 
remain secure 

 

 Liquidity - ensure the liquidity of investments so that the Council has sufficient cash 
resources available to carry out its functions at all times 

 

 Optimum Yield - achieve the maximum return on investments after taking into account 
security and liquidity 

 

4.3.2 Current Investments 

 Surplus funds arising from day to day operations are invested based on the most up to date 

forecasts of interest rates and in accordance with the Council’s cash flow requirements in order 

to gain maximum benefit from the Council’s cash position throughout the year. In the current 

financial climate only specified investments will be considered as set out below. 

4.3.3 Investments: Loans 
 

In accordance with relevant guidance, all investments will be placed with counterparties 

included on the Council’s approved list. Institutions with which specified investments will be 

made include: 

 UK government institutions and other local authorities 
 

 institutions which have been awarded a high quality credit rating by a credit rating agency 
 

The length of time an investment can be place for is specified below under each category of 

counterparty, normally this will be no longer than 364 days. 

 

Non-Specified Investments are any investment not meeting the definition of a specified 

investment above. The Authority does not intend to make any investments denominated in 

foreign currencies, nor any that are defined as capital expenditure by legislation, such as 

company shares. Non-specified investments will therefore be limited to long-term investments, 

~ Page 68 ~



 46 
 

i.e. those that are due to mature 12 months or longer from the date of arrangement, and 

investments with bodies and schemes not meeting the definition on high credit quality. 

The Council’s Treasury Management Practice note 1 (3) states that ‘The Section 151 Officer will 

be responsible for preparing for the Council a list of institutions in which the Council’s funds may 

be invested. This list will be supported by details of the criteria employed to assess the various 

credit standings of counterparties’. The following credit ratings will be considered: 

 Long-term ratings – these range from the highest rating of AAA to the lowest rating of D. As 
the title suggests, this indicator reflects the long-term stability of the institution.  

 

 Short-term ratings - These have a time horizon of less than 12 months and therefore place 
greater emphasis on the liquidity necessary to meet financial commitments in a timely 
manner. As most of the Council’s investments are expected to be for less than 364 days, this 
is of particular importance. The ratings are F1 (highest credit quality), F2 (good credit 
quality), F3 (fair credit quality) and B to D (representing various levels of potential default). 

 

 Individual ratings – These range from the highest of A to the lowest of F. This rating is only 
assigned to banks and attempts to assess how it would be viewed if it were entirely 
independent and could not rely upon external support. 

 

 Support ratings – These range from 1 to 5 with 1 being the highest. It is a judgement on 
whether a bank would receive support should this become necessary. It is assumed that any 
such support would come from the sovereign state or institutional owners. 

 

The Council’s counterparty list needs to provide security for the amounts invested whilst 

containing a sufficient number of institutions with which to place funds. For the purpose of this 

strategy in respect of Categories 1 and 2 below, only counterparties that meet all of the 

following criteria will be considered for investment. 

 UK banks   
 

 Building societies with asset bases in excess of £6 billion.  
 

 By reference to all three major credit rating agencies (Fitch, Standard and Poor’s, Moody’s) 
only those that reach the minimum standard for the lowest agency rating set out. 

 

Category 1 

The minimum ratings that will be considered for all agencies are set out below: 

Term Fitch Moody's S & P

Short F1 P1 A1

Long AA- AA3 AA-

Individual C D

Support 3

Credit Agency

 

~ Page 69 ~



 47 
 

For any organisation that meets the above criteria, up to £1.5m may be invested at any one 

time for a maximum duration of 364 days. 

Any building society that meets the above criteria must also have an asset base in 

excess of £6 billion. 

Category 2 

The minimum ratings that will be considered for all agencies are set out below: 

Term Fitch Moody's S & P

Short F1 P1 A1

Long A A2 A1

Individual C D

Support 3

Credit Agency

 

For any organisation that meets the above criteria, up to £1m may be invested at any one time 

for a maximum duration of 12 months. 

Any building society that meets the above criteria must also have an asset base in 

excess of £6 billion. 

Other counterparties that can be used and any restrictions applicable are set out below. 

Debt Management Office 

Investments of a maximum duration of 6 months can be made with this Government 

department. 

Public Authorities in England, Scotland and Wales 

Investments totalling up to £5m at any one time with a maximum duration of three years can be 

made with these bodies. These include local government, fire and police authorities. 

 

Money Market Funds 

Investments of up to £1.5m per fund at one time can be made provided they are AAA rated.  

Credit ratings are monitored on a daily basis using Sector’s credit rating service by the Section 

151 Officer who will determine the amendments to be made to the counterparty list when credit 

ratings change. 

Property Funds 

Investments up to £5m. Property Fund investment will be the Council’s only Non-Specified 

Investment and there is a limit of £5 million for this asset class. 

The proposed counterparty list for investments is held within Finance. 

The period for which investments are placed will be based on the Council’s cash flow forecasts 

and estimates of movements in interest rates. The Council generally does not expect to place 

investments for longer than 364 days although this situation will be kept under review by the 

~ Page 70 ~



 48 
 

Section 151 Officer should a longer term investment opportunity occur.  Long-term investments 

will only be made where it is clear that surplus cash resources are not required for the day to 

day financing of the Council’s activities. The maximum period for any long-term investments will 

be the three-year planning cycle covered by this strategy.  

4.3.4 Commercial Investments: Property 

MHCLG defines property to be an investment if it is held primarily or partially to generate a 

profit. 

The Council faces considerable financial challenges over the medium term. To achieve financial 

sustainability, it is proposed to adopt a Commercial Investment Strategy & Business Plan during 

2020/21. The Council will investigate the scope for investing in existing commercial property, 

significant property redevelopment schemes, and the private residential sector, both within and 

without the borough boundary, with the intention of generating income to fund public services. 

In accordance with government guidance, the Council considers a property investment to be 
secure if its accounting valuation is at or higher than its purchase price. So long as the 
expected recoverable value of the asset exceeds the value of the debt required to finance it, 
there is no requirement to charge MRP. Should the market valuation fall, however, there will be 
such a requirement. 

 

The Authority will assess the risk of loss before entering into and whilst holding property 
investments. The strategic objectives of the Commercial Investment Strategy are designed to 
mitigate risk by: 
  

 Having the fundamental aim of an income rather than capital return (although the latter 
is part of the strategy)  

 Adopting a portfolio approach so as to avoid concentration of risk in any one property, 
tenant or risk type  

  
In addition, CIS risk will be managed having regard to the following factors:  
 

1. A robust acquisition due diligence process and subsequent approvals  
2. Asset management plans and on-going reviews  

3. Liability management (reviews of debt levels and terms)  

4. Tenants (financial exposures, potential defaults, changing business plans, credit 
rating)  

5. Portfolio factors including occupancy levels, operating costs.  

6. Delivery partners (suitability, performance levels and financial stability)  

7. Market factors (with periodic advice from appropriate professionals)  

8. State Aid considerations  

9. Professional advisors  
 
Compared with other investment types, property is relatively difficult to sell and convert to cash 
at very short notice. To ensure that the invested funds can be accessed or liquidated the 
Council will review investments regularly to ensure rental income is maximised (through rent 
reviews and lease renewals) and undertake asset management (re-letting, repairs, 
improvements etc.) to ensure any proceeds from sale are maximised if assets are liquidated. 
Regular review of the property investment market will identify potential changes in market 
conditions and identify optimum opportunities to sell assets.  
 

~ Page 71 ~



 49 
 

To support this activity, a Commercial Investment Strategy & Business Plan will be developed; 
appropriate investment proposals and associated liabilities have yet to be determined. 

 

4.3.5 Policy on the Use of External Service Providers 

External advisors will be used when appropriate e.g. to undertake independent valuations prior 

to acquisition, asset valuation or when there is a lack of expertise in-house regarding an 

industry. 

The Authority uses Link Asset Services as an external treasury advisor but still recognise that 

responsibility for treasury management decisions remains with the Council at all times. Whilst it 

is recognised that undue reliance should not be placed on external advisors, it is valuable to be 

able to access specialist skills and resources. 

4.3.6 Scheme of Delegation 

Full Council 

 Approval of annual strategy 

 Review of treasury management policy and procedures, including making 
recommendations to responsible body 

 

Policy, Finance and Development Committee 

 Approval of annual treasury outturn report 

 Approval of mid-year treasury management updates 

 Mid year treasury management updates  
 

 Section 151 Officer 

 Day to day management of treasury management, within agreed policy 

 Appointment of external advisors, within existing Council procurement procedures and 
standing orders. 

 

4.3.7 Role of Section 151 Officer 

The Section 151 Officer has day to day responsibility for running the treasury management 

function. 

4.3.8 Ethical Investment Strategy 

 The Council aims to be aware of ethical issues within its investment strategy. Where any 

member of the Council becomes concerned about such issues, these matters should be 

reported to the Section 151 Officer. Where necessary, the Section 151 Officer will then present 

a response to the concerns raised to the next meeting of the Policy, Finance and Development 

Committee.

~ Page 72 ~



 50 
 

4.4 MINIMUM REVENUE PROVISION STATEMENT 2020/21 

 

4.4.1 Introduction 

 

4.4.1.1 Where the Council finances capital expenditure by debt, it must put aside resources to repay 

that debt in later years.  The amount charged to the revenue budget for the repayment of debt 

is known as Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP). Although there has been no statutory 

minimum MRP requirement since 2003, Councils are expected to make a prudent provision. 

The Local Government Act 2003 requires the Council to have regard to the Ministry of 

Housing, Communities and Local Government’s Guidance on Minimum Revenue Provision 

(the MHCLG Guidance) most recently issued in 2018. 

4.4.1.2 The broad aim of the MHCLG Guidance is to ensure that debt is repaid over a period that is 

either reasonably commensurate with that over which the capital expenditure provides 

benefits, or, in the case of borrowing supported by Government Revenue Support Grant 

(RSG), reasonably commensurate with the period implicit in the determination of that grant 

(although, as the Council no longer receives RSG, this approach is now mute). 

4.4.1.3 The MHCLG Guidance requires the Council to approve an Annual MRP Statement, and 

recommends a number of options for calculating a prudent amount of MRP. Further, as the 

Council operates both a General Fund and Housing Revenue Account, it has to states its 

MRP policies for each. With regard to the General Fund however, anticipating the Councils 

move to a more commercial approach to service delivery, for 2020/21 onwards the Council is 

introducing some new MRP policies. 

  

4.4.2 MRP Policy – General Fund (Debt to be financed up until 2018/19) 

4.4.2.1 For General Fund debt financed up until 2018/19, where borrowing is supported by 

Government RSG, MRP is calculated using the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) 

method. This method calculates MRP as 2% (previously 4%) of the non-housing CFR at the 

end of the preceding financial year (2% of the capital expenditure funded by supported 

borrowing).  This is consistent with the way in which supported borrowing costs are paid 

through RSG. 

 

4.4.3 MRP Policy – General Fund (Debt to be financed for 2019/20) 

4.4.3.1 During 2019/20 the Council did not receive any RSG – therefore the assumption is that any 

MRP has to be self-financed (i.e. unsupported by RSG). As per the Treasury Management 

Strategy for 2019/20, the Council had two MRP Policies dependent on the service being 

financed; for  

i. Leisure facilities, MRP is calculated using the Annuity Asset Life method. The Annuity 

Asset Life method requires that the MRP for each year be the amount presumed to be 

the principal element of the equal amounts that would be payable each year in respect 

of a loan at a specified rate of interest that would reduce the outstanding principal 

amount to zero at the end of the estimated useful life of the asset. This results in an 

MRP charge that rises over time. This is deemed to be particularly appropriate for assets 

which generate increasing revenues over time. 

 

~ Page 73 ~



 51 
 

ii. Other General Fund capital expenditure, MRP is calculated using the Asset Life 

method. The Asset Life method requires MRP to be made in equal annual instalments 

over the estimated life of the asset for which the unsupported borrowing is undertaken. 

4.4.4 New MRP Policies – General Fund (Debt to be financed for 2020/21) 

4.4.4.1 For 2020/21, as the Council starts a process of service transformation; it has to ensure that it 

has MRP policies that are duly flexible but appropriately targeted towards either: 

i. non-specified capital developments; i.e. those for general services 

ii. specified capital developments; i.e. those of a specific nature and purpose. 

4.4.4.2 Such flexibility and targeting will seek to ensure that the Council will deliver services to its 

customers in the most cost-effective and resilient way possible. As transformation progresses 

further flexibility may be needed and therefore Council should expect to agree in-year changes 

to its MRP policies. The aim of these MRP policies is to: 

 Firstly, ensure that the cost of borrowing is duly recognised and charged to services in a 

prudent manner, and 

 Secondly, ensure that the impact of MRP is kept to the absolute minimum without 

negating prudency. 

 Non-Specified Capital Developments 

4.4.4.3 With regard to MRP for general services, it is important that going forward certain MRP 

principles are agreed, these are shown below and are in line with accepted accounting 

practice. 

 capital assets; MRP will be chargeable in the year following the agreement of any final 
account. 

 capital investments; MRP will be chargeable in the following financial year. 

 capital expenditure incurred, MRP will be determined by charging the expenditure 
over the expected life of the relevant assets as the principal repayment on an annuity 
basis with an annual interest rate based on long-term borrowing rates, starting in the 
year after the asset becomes operational. MRP on: 
o purchases of freehold land will be charged over 50 years. 
o expenditure not related to fixed assets but which has been capitalised by 

regulation or direction will be charged over 20 years. 
 This policy will also be applied for General Fund capital expenditure incurred in 

2018/19 but where MRP is charged in the first year following (i.e. 2019/20.) 
 

 

 Specified Capital Developments 

4.4.4.4 Assets acquired by finance lease or the Private Finance Initiative (PFI), during the 

development of its service offer, it may transpire that the most cost-effective means of 

financing the associated assets may be by Finance Lease (or possibly PFI, though the latter 

option is unlikely). If the Council choses to finance assets via these methods then MRP will be 

determined as being equal to the element of the rent or charge that goes to write down the 

balance sheet liability. 

4.4.4.5 Loans to Organisations, in due course the Council may choose to provide finance to local 

organisations, with the Council sourcing the finance from a third party. However, the following 

principles will have to be complied with: 

~ Page 74 ~



 52 
 

 any such loan will have to be for asset creation purposes (i.e. capital expenditure; the 
finance cannot be used for revenue/day-to-day spend). 

 the Council will, generally, act as a passporting organisation, in that it will source finance 
from the market and pass this on to the local organisation. 

 the cost of such finance to the Council will be directly neutralised within the Councils 
balance sheet, 

 loans will only be provided where the organisation is providing a service that directly 
supports the Council in achieving its Corporate Plan. 

 loans will only be made in line with relevant legislation including State Aid. 

 loans provided will generate for the Council a fair, market representative yield (return). 

 In respect of the MRP policy for loans to organisations, these are as follows: 

a. Where loans are made to other bodies for their capital expenditure, and the principal 

repayments are received at least on an annual basis, no MRP will be charged, because 

the loan repayments will be applied to the CAA, so reducing the CFR in the same 

manner as MRP.   

b. If principal repayments are not being made then MRP will be charged at an annuity rate. 

 

4.4.4.6 Financing Commercial Property or Private Rental Sector Housing related expenditure 

with Annuity Loans, Equal Instalment of Principal (EIP) Loans or Maturity Loans, it is 

likely that in due course the Council will acquire commercial property (CE) or private rented 

sector (PRS) housing – such acquisitions could be via outright/direct acquisition or 

development. To undertake such acquisitions/ development, the Council will choose at the 

time of acquisition/development the most cost-effective means of financing. If the Council 

chooses to utilise: 

i. Annuity or EIP Loans, the aim of the MRP Policy for these loans is to ensure that the 

Council does not pay twice for the cost of the principal repayments. Therefore the actual 

policy is: 

 For commercial property or PRS related investments where it has been decided 

that an Annuity or EIP Loan is advantageous, the MRP that will be charged will be 

same/equal to the principal repayment for any loan finance supporting the 

investment (i.e. the principal repayment will be the MRP liability). 

ii. Maturity Loans, these are similar to interest only mortgages, in that only interest is paid 

during the life of the loan with the loan principal being repaid at the end of the term (by 

either the Council taking out a further loan or selling the asset and repaying the loan 

from the capital receipt; with a possible net capital gain). To minimize the MRP impact, 

specific safeguards will be included in the MRP Policy to ensure that the principles of 

prudency are maintained, these principles are noted in “a” and “b” below: 

 

a. The commercial property or PRS housing asset would be required to be directly 
linked to the loan finance; this could be agreed retrospectively by the Policy 
Finance and Development Committee following acquisition/development. 
However, the link could only be broken by a specific decision of Full Council. The 
Councils Constitution would be required to be changed to reflect this. 

 
b. The commercial property or PRS housing asset is valued on an annual basis, in 

line with the Councils Accounting Policy for Investment Assets. If it is established 

~ Page 75 ~



 53 
 

that the value of the asset is less than the loan, then for each year that the asset is 
less than the loan, an MRP payment will be required, based on an Annuity Loan, 
and the MRP payment will charged for each year thereafter. 

 

 The actual policy is: 

 For each commercial property or PRS housing asset undertaken, where it has 

been decided that a Maturity Loan is advantageous, no Minimum Revenue 

Provision shall be made providing that: 

i. The capital investment is directly linked to the Maturity Loan, with the stated 
intention that at loan maturity the asset is sold or replacement finance is 
provided. 

ii. Policy, Finance and Development Committee will record the decision in (i) 
above (this may be done retrospectively i.e. after an 
acquisition/development). The link between Asset and Loan can only be 
broken by a decision of Full Council. 

iii. There is annual revaluation of the commercial property or PRS housing 
asset in line with the Councils Accounting Policy in respect of Investment 
Assets. If it is established that an asset has a value less than the loan then 
for each year that the asset is less than the loan, an MRP payment will be 
required, based on an Annuity Loan, and the MRP payment will be charged 
for each year thereafter. 

iv. Even where the asset value exceeds the loan value the Council may decide 
to make a voluntary MRP.   

 

 The advantage of Maturity Loans for the Council is that over the life of the loan, the net 

benefit from the ongoing income stream would be greater as the Council would only 

have to repay interest on an annual basis and not meet annual principal repayments. 

The following example clearly demonstrates the revenue advantage of financing by 

Maturity Loan compared to an Annuity Loan; in that the additional revenue stream over 

the life of the asset is £7.0m. 

 If a CIS Asset of £10m was acquired with an annual income stream of £625k 

(pessimistic, giving a yield of 6.2%) and held for 20 years, the net revenue stream 

for a: 

o Maturity Loan would be £7.2m (£359k per annum). 
o Annuity Loan would be £140k (£7k per annum). 

 There the benefit for a Maturity Loan is £7.0m (£352k per annum). 
 

4.4.5 New MRP Policy – Housing Revenue Account 

4.4.5.1 There is no statutory requirement to make a MRP in the HRA. There is, therefore, no 

requirement to follow the DCLG Guidance when considering an appropriate provision for the 

HRA. Therefore, because 

 There is no statutory requirement, 

 Repayment of debt is due to begin in March 2020 and 

 Resources were required in the early years of the HRA business plan to fund the 
demands of the asset management strategy 

~ Page 76 ~



 54 
 

During 2019/20 overall HRA debt will be reviewed with the view of planning to restructure, as 

required, as repayments become due each year. In the medium-term, it is proposed to 

refinance this using short-term borrowing, so as to minimise the costs of servicing the debt. 

4.4.6 Capital Financing Requirement and MRP Summary 

 

Based on the Council’s latest estimate of its Capital Financing Requirement on 31st March 

2020, the budget for MRP has been set as follows: 

 

 

2020/21 

Estimated CFR 

£m 

2020/21 

Estimated MRP 

£m 

General Fund 17.294 0.819 

Housing Revenue Account 20.229 0.000 

Total  37.523 0.819 

 

~ Page 77 ~



 55 
 

4.5 FLEXIBLE USE OF CAPITAL RECEIPTS STRATEGY 

4.5.1 Introduction 

 As part of the November 2015 Spending Review, the Government announced that it would 
introduce flexibility for the period of the Spending Review for local authorities to use capital 
receipts from the sale of non-housing assets to fund the revenue costs of service reform and 
transformation. Guidance on the use of this flexibility was issued in March 2016 which applies 
to the financial years 2016/17 through to 2019/20. The Secretary of State has recently 
announced that this flexibility would be extended in to future years 

 

4.5.2 The Guidance 

 The guidance issued by the Secretary of State under section 15(1)(a) of the Local Government 
Act 2003 specified that; 

 

 Local authorities will only be able to use capital receipts from the sale of property, plant 
and equipment received in the years in which this flexibility is offered. They may not use 
their existing stock of capital receipts to finance the revenue costs of reform. 

 

 Local authorities cannot borrow to finance the revenue costs of the service reforms. 
 

 The expenditure for which the flexibility can be applied should be the up-front (set up or 
implementation) costs that will generate future ongoing savings and/or transform service 
delivery to reduce costs or to improve the quality of service delivery in future years. The 
ongoing revenue costs of the new processes or arrangements cannot be classified as 
qualifying expenditure. 

 

 The key determining criteria to use when deciding whether expenditure can be funded by 
the new capital receipts flexibility is that it is forecast to generate ongoing savings to an 
authority’s net service expenditure. 
 

 In using the flexibility, the Council will have due regard to the requirements of the 
Prudential Code, the CIPFA Local Authority Accounting Code of Practice and the current 
edition of the Treasury Management in Public Services Code of Practice. 
 

 The Council is also required to prepare a “Flexible use of capital receipts strategy” before 
the start of the year to be approved by Council which can be part of budget report to 
Council. 

 

The guidance sets out examples of qualifying expenditure which includes; 
 

 Sharing back-office and administrative services with one or more other council or public 
sector bodies; 
 

 Investment in service reform feasibility work, e.g. setting up pilot schemes; 
 

 Collaboration between local authorities and central government departments to free up 
land for economic use; 
 

 Funding the cost of service reconfiguration, restructuring or rationalisation (staff or non-
staff), where this leads to ongoing efficiency savings or service transformation; 

 

 Sharing Chief-Executives, management teams or staffing structures; 

~ Page 78 ~



 56 
 

 

 Driving a digital approach to the delivery of more efficient public services and how the 
public interacts with constituent authorities where possible; 

 

 Aggregating procurement on common goods and services where possible, either as part 
of local arrangements or using Crown Commercial Services or regional procurement hubs 
or Professional Buying Organisations; 

 

 Improving systems and processes to tackle fraud and corruption in line with the Local 
Government Fraud and Corruption Strategy – this could include an element of staff 
training; 

 

 Setting up commercial or alternative delivery models to deliver services more efficiently 
and bring in revenue (for example, through selling services to others); 

 

 Integrating public facing services across two or more public sector bodies (for example 
children’s social care, trading standards) to generate savings or to transform service 
delivery. 
 

 

4.5.3 The Council’s Proposals 
 

  
The Council has decided to use the flexibility this direction provides to fund the cost of 
redundancies required in order to deliver transformation of services (cost of redundancies and 
other transformational costs) under: 

 “Facing the Future 2” programme in 2019/20, amounting to an estimated £196k. 

 “Various Service Reviews”, amounting to an estimated £100k. 
 
 As a result of this decision, prudential borrowing in 2019/20 will be correspondingly higher, as 
will the Capital Financing Requirement. 

 
 The Council currently has no further plans to use capital receipts, if circumstances change then 

a revised strategy will be produced and approved.

~ Page 79 ~



 57 
 

4.6 PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS 2020/21 (including Capital Financing Requirement) 

4.6.1  The Prudential Code 

Part 1 of the Local Government Act 2003 and C.I.P.F.A.’s Prudential Code for Capital Finance 

in Local Authorities (the Code) set out a framework for self-regulation of capital spending, in 

effect allowing council’s to invest in capital projects without any limit as long as they are 

affordable, prudent and sustainable. This allows the Council to determine the appropriate level 

of capital investment to properly deliver quality public services, subject to affordability. 

The revenue costs of capital investment can be supported through the Revenue Support Grant 

(RSG) mechanism up to a certain level, known as Supported Capital Borrowing. However, 

since 2010/11 this support has not provided and will not be provided in future years as RSG is 

phased out in  

To facilitate the decision making process and support capital investment decisions the 

Prudential Code requires the Council to agree and monitor a number of Prudential Indicators. 

For housing authorities these are separated for the Housing Revenue Account and non-

Housing Revenue Account capital investment. 

These indicators are mandatory, but can be supplemented with local indicators if this assists 

interpretation. The indicators cover affordability, prudence, capital expenditure, external debt 

and treasury management and form the basis of in year monitoring and reporting. 

The indicators are purely for internal use by the Council and are not to be used as comparators 

between authorities, as any comparisons will be meaningless. In addition, the indicators should 

not be taken individually; rather the benefit from monitoring will arise from following the 

movement in indicators over time and the year on year changes. 

4.6.2 Capital Expenditure and the Capital Financing Requirement 

The Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) represents the Council’s underlying need to borrow 

for a capital purpose; the change year on year will be influenced by the capital expenditure in 

the year. In simple terms the CFR will increase by the amount of capital expenditure to be 

financed by borrowing less any amount set aside in the year to repay debt. 

The expected movement in the CFR over the next three years is dependent on the level of 

supported and unsupported capital expenditure decisions taken during the budgeting cycle. 

There are two main limiting factors on the Council’s ability to undertake unsupported capital 

expenditure: 

 Whether the revenue resource is available to support in full the implications of 
capital expenditure, both borrowing costs and running costs. Can the Council afford 
the implications of the unsupported capital expenditure? 

 The Government may use a long stop control to ensure that either the total of all 
local authorities’ plans do not jeopardise national economic policies, or in the event 
of an assessment by central government that local plans are not affordable at a 
particular council, it may implement a specific control to limit its capital expenditure 
plans. 

~ Page 80 ~



 58 
 

The Council’s expectations for capital expenditure and Capital Financing Requirement 

(CFR) in the next three years are shown in the following tables. These form two of the 

required Prudential Indicators. 

4.6.2.1 Breakdown of Capital Expenditure by Service 

The table below takes into account the Council’s estimates of available resources as set 

out in the Medium Term Financial Strategy and the HRA Business Plan as adjusted for 

any major changes during the budget setting process.  

 

 2019/20 
Estimate 
£ 000s 

2020/21 
Estimate 
£ 000s 

2021/22 
Estimate 
£ 000s 

2022/23 
Estimate 
£ 000s 

General 
Fund 

2,412 969 48 80 

HRA 3,078 1,500 1,500 1,500 

Total 5,490 2,469 1,548 1,580 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

~ Page 81 ~



 59 
 

4.6.2.2 Capital Financing Requirement 

The actual and estimated CFRs are set out below together with a split between 

supported and unsupported spending. 

 

 2019/20 
Estimate 

£ 000s 

2020/21 
Estimate 
£ 000s 

2021/22 
Estimate 
£ 000s 

2022/23 
Estimate 
£ 000s 

Capital Expenditure *     

Supported Spend 3,145 1,925 1,500 1,500 

Unsupported Spend 2,345 544 48 80 

Total Spend 5,490 2,469 1,548 1,580 

Financed By:     

Borrowing 2,345 544 48 80 

Capital Receipts 822 0 0 0 

Capital Grants 373 425 0 0 

Earmarked Funds 0 0 0 0 

Major Repairs Reserve 1,950 1,500 1,500 1,500 

Revenue 0 0 0 0 

Other Contributions 0 0 0 0 

Total Financing 5,490 2,469 1,548 1,580 

Capital Financing 
Requirement 

    

CFR – General Fund 17,570 17,294 16,492 15,736 

CFR – HRA 20,229 20,229 20,229 20,229 

Total CFR 37,799 37,523 36,722 35,965 

 

*These figures represent an affordable capital programme rather than the total of 

capital submissions put forward by budget holders. 

 

 

~ Page 82 ~



 60 
 

4.6.2.3 External Debt 

The following estimate of gross external debt is provided for information. 

 2019/20 
Estimate 
£ 000s 

2020/21 
Estimate 
£ 000s 

2021/22 
Estimate 
£ 000s 

2022/23 
Estimate 
£ 000s 

Borrowing 32,800 33,300 33,200 33,100 

Other Long Term 
Liabilities 

0 0 0 0 

Total Debt 31st Match 32,800 33,300 33,200 33,100 

 

4.6.3 Affordability Prudential Indicators 

The indicators that follow provide an indication of the impact of the capital investment plans on 

the overall Council finances.  

4.6.3.1 Ratio of Financing Costs to Net Revenue Stream 

The actual and estimates of the ratio of financing costs to net revenue stream identifies 

the trend in the cost of capital (borrowing costs net of interest and investment income) 

against the net revenue stream. The estimates of financing costs include current 

commitments and the proposals in the budget report. 

 

 2019/20 
Estimate 

% 

2020/21 
Estimate 

% 

2021/22 
Estimate 

% 

2022/23 
Estimate 

% 

General 
Fund 

14.0 16.6 17.0 16.9 

HRA 11.6 11.4 11.1 10.3 

 

 

 

 

 

 

~ Page 83 ~



 61 
 

4.6.3.2 Incremental Impact of Capital Investment Decisions on the Band D Council 

Tax 

The estimates of the incremental impact of capital investment decisions on the Council 

Tax indicator identifies the trend in the cost of proposed changes in the three year 

capital programme recommended in the budget report compared to the Council’s 

existing commitments and current plans. The figures are based on the assumptions 

included in the budget.  

  

 Budget 
2019/20 

Forward 
Projectio
n 2020/21 

Forward 
Projectio
n 2021/22 

2019/20 Programme 1.21 1.21 1.21 

2020/21 Programme 0.30 0.30 0.30 

2021/22 Programme 0 0 0 

Total 1.51 1.51 1.51 

 

4.6.3.3 Incremental Impact of Capital Investment Decisions on Housing Rent 

Levels 

The estimates of the incremental impact of capital investment decisions on housing rent 

levels are similar to the Council Tax calculation. This indicator identifies the trend in the 

cost of proposed changes in the housing capital programme recommended in the 

budget report compared to the Council’s existing commitments and current plans, 

expressed as a change in weekly rent levels.  

  

 Budget 
2019/20 

Forward 
Projectio
n 2020/21 

Forward 
Projectio
n 2021/22 

2019/20 Programme 0.08 0.08 0.08 

2020/21 Programme 0.0 0.0 0.0 

2021/22 Programme 0.0 0.0 0.0 

Total 0.08 0.08 0.08 

 

4.6.3.4 Prudential Indicators and Limits on Activity 

~ Page 84 ~



 62 
 

A key control over the Council’s activity is to ensure that over the medium term net debt 

will only be for a capital purpose. The Council needs to ensure that net debt does not, 

except in the short-term, exceed the total of the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR). 

The following table sets out the estimated net borrowing position in relation to the 

estimated CFR. 

 

 2019/20 
Estimate 
£ 000s 

2020/21 
Estimate 
£ 000s 

2021/22 
Estimate 
£ 000s 

2022/23 
Estimate 
£ 000s 

Borrowing 32,800 33,300 33,200 33,100 

Investment 0 0 0 0 

Net Debts 32,800 33,300 33,200 33,100 

CFR 37,799 37,523 36,722 35,965 

 

The Section 151 Officer reports that the Council complied with the requirement to keep 

net borrowing below the relevant CFR in 2019/20 and no difficulties are foreseen for the 

current year or in respect of net debt for future years. This opinion takes account of 

current commitments, existing plans and the proposals in this and the budget report. 

It is predicted that the HRA CFR will end 2019/20 at £20.229 million. At present the 

Council will endeavour to keep it this level steady for this three year cycle of financial 

planning. 

4.6.3.5 Treasury Management Prudential Indicators 

These indicators are shown within 4.1, Treasury Management Strategy & Plan. 

 

 

~ Page 85 ~



 63 
 

5.0 Housing Revenue Account 

5.1 The Housing Revenue Account includes any expenditure associated with the Council’s function 

as a social housing landlord and is shown in Table 13 below. The items that can be debited and 

credited to the account are determined by statute. This includes a average rent increase of 2.7% 

for 2020/21, taking it to £77.44 per week (increase of £2.03 per week). 

 

 

 

 2019/20 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2023/24 2024/25

Original Forecast Budget Budget Budget Budget

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

EXPENDITURE

Management 1,757 1,751 1,832 1,809 1,836 1,863

Repairs and maintenance 1,256 1,058 1,150 1,153 1,156 1,159

Council Tax 15 5 10 10 10 10

Debt Management 10 10 10 10 10 10

Depreciation (MRA cont.) 1,305 1,305 1,338 1,371 1,405 1,440

Provision for Bad Debts 109 79 100 100 100 100
Gross Expenditure 4,452 4,208 4,440 4,453 4,517 4,582

INCOME

Rents - Dwelling (4,620) (4,621) (4,763) (4,843) (4,924) (5,007)

Rents - Non Dwellings (89) (80) (89) (91) (93) (95)
Charges for Services and 

Facilities (202) (188) (190) (194) (198) (202)
Gross Income (4,911) (4,889) (5,042) (5,128) (5,215) (5,304)

Interest payable 562 555 580 605 630 655

Interest Receivable (12) (5) (5) (5) (5) (5)

Revenue Contribution to Capital 0 500 0 0 0 0

Transfers to/(from) Reserves 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total Capital Charges and 

Appropriations 550 1,050 575 600 625 650

(Surplus)/Deficit for the Year 91 369 (27) (75) (73) (72)

Opening Balances

Housing Revenue Account (1,083) (1,083) (714) (741) (816) (889)

Major Repairs Reserve (450) (450) 0 0 0 0

Regeneration Reserve (361) (361) 0 0 0 0

Universal Credit Reserve (140) (140) (140) (140) (140) (140)

Housing Levy (220) (220) (220) (220) (220) (220)

Bad Debt Provision (179) (179) (258) (358) (458) (558)

Closing Balances

Housing Revenue Account (992) (714) (741) (816) (889) (961)

Major Repairs Reserve 0 0 0 0 0 0

Regeneration Reserve (361) 0 0 0 0 0

Universal Credit Reserve (140) (140) (140) (140) (140) (140)

Housing Levy Reserve (220) (220) (220) (220) (220) (220)

Bad Debt Provision (288) (258) (358) (458) (558) (658)

Table 13 

Housing Revenue Account 2020/21 and over the Medium Term (to 2024/25) 

~ Page 86 ~



 64 
 

 

Service Statistics 

2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25

Average Number of Dwellings 1,205 2,000 1,195 1,192 1,186 1,183 1,180

Housing Rent

Rent per dwelling 76.17 75.41 77.44 79.38 81.36 83.40 85.48

Unpooled Service Charge 1.50 1.55 1.59 1.63 1.67 1.71 1.75

Total Rent 77.67 76.96 79.03 81.01 83.04 85.11 87.24

 

5.2 Specific Charges 

In addition to Dwelling Rents the HRA makes charges for other associated services offered to 

tenants. It is proposed that these increase by 2.7% which is in line with the rent increases 

CPI+1% for September 2019 

2019/20 

Current 

Charge

2020/21 

Proposed 

Charge

£ £

Garage Spaces

48 Week Basis 4.06 4.17

52 Week Basis 3.75 3.85

Lock up Garages

48 Week Basis 7.50 7.70

52 Week Basis 6.92 7.11

Caretaking Charge (Lower Rate)

48 Week Basis 3.23 3.32

52 Week Basis 2.98 3.06

Caretaking Charge (Higher Rate)

48 Week Basis 6.48 6.65

52 Week Basis 5.98 6.14

Heating and Hot Water Charges in 

Sheltered Schemes

Increase for 

2020/21

%

Chartwell House, Oadby 2.7

Marriott House, Oadby 2.7

William Peardon Court, Oadby 2.7

Mobility Scooter Garaging 2.7  

5.3 CAPITAL PROGRAMME 

The councils housing capital programme covers improvements to the housing stock and works 

to meet the ‘Decent Homes’ target. The Housing department is currently undergoing a detailed 

stock condition survey which will outline the major repair needs of the Housing stock. Currently 

the Housing Capital Programme totals £1.5million however once the condition survey is 

concluded and  analysed further work may be bought before members for approval. For the 

2019/20 programme any unspent balances or unfinished schemes will be determined at year 

end and bought to members to carry forward in the July cycle of meetings. 

 

~ Page 87 ~



 65 
 

 

5.4 HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT BUDGET BACKGROUND CONSIDERATIONS FOR THE 

REVENUE BUDGET CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2020/21 

5.4.1 BACKGROUND CONSIDERATIONS 

This provides commentary on the background considerations and key issues on which the draft 

budget and forward forecast have been prepared.  It also summarises the overall financial 

position.  The structure of this commentary is as follows: 

 

1. Basis for preparation of the draft budget. 
2. Rent Policy 
3. Changes in Stock Levels 
4. Treasury Management 
5. HRA Capital Programme 
6. Other budget considerations 

 

5.4.1.1.  Basis for preparation of the draft budget and forward forecast 

The revenue budget for 2020/21 sets out the costs of delivering current levels of service while 

taking into account the effect of current government legislations regarding changes to housing 

finance including the start of a five year cycle during which time rents may be raised by no more 

than CPI +1%. This follows four years of rent reductions imposed by the Government. 

The budget has been set assuming that a 2% pay award will be implemented for 2020 and that 

non contractual upward inflation will be 0% to encourage value for money. 

5.4.1.2.  Rent Policy  

2019/20 is the final year in which Councils had a 1% reduction in rent imposed on them by 

Government Policy. From 2020/21 the Council is be able to increase rents by CPI +1% (as at 

the September of the previous year) This allows the Council to increase rents by 2.7% for the 

2020/21 rent year which will increase the average rent by £2.03 per week taking it from £75.41 

to £77.44 which equates to an increase in annual rental income of around £97,000.  

The table below shows how this will affect rent levels in the Borough 

£ £ £ %

Highest Rent 94.22      96.76      2.54        2.7% 3 Bed House

Lowest Rent 56.19      57.71      1.52        2.7% Bedsit

Average Rent 75.41      77.44      2.03        2.7%

 

5.4.1.3.  Changes in Stock Levels 

When the Government revised the Right to Buy discount scheme the Council saw a pickup in 

sales to tenants, this however flattened off and then dropped slightly over the last couple of 

years. This together with the Council’s policy of purchasing properties to replenish the stock 

where possible through the 1-4-1 scheme suggests stock levels will only decline slightly over the 

next few years. 

 

~ Page 88 ~



 66 
 

There is a risk that stock losses do not follow the pattern assumed in the budget and forecast.  

This could mean that either savings in costs are made ahead of time or that that they are not 

made in time.  The Council’s Finance and Housing teams will monitor the developments in this 

area very closely.   

 

5.4.1.4.  Treasury Management 

The self-financing settlement involved the Council taking on £18.114m of borrowing.  The 

interest costs on this borrowing consume a significant proportion of the HRA’s resources and the 

management of these is therefore critical to the HRA budget. Now that the HRA borrowing cap 

has been lifted the Council will have greater flexibility around financing capital works. It is 

important to remember any borrowing needs to be costed and affordable to the revenue budget. 

When taking out financing the Council needs to factor the cost of borrowing into its revenue 

budget the UK has recently seen an unprecedented period of low interest rates. Interest rates 

have remained low with significant rises unlikely. Interest rate risk is fully borne by the Council 

and to mitigate this risk the vast majority of the HRA’s borrowing is for a fixed term at a fixed 

rate. The finance team will keep a close eye on the likely trajectory of interest rates over the next 

12 months particularly as there is still some uncertainty around arrangements for Brexit beyond 

the current transitional agreement. 

The original 30 year business plan provides the repayment of HRA debt over its life. In the first 

five years of the plan resources were required to fund the demands of the asset management 

strategy, therefore repayment was structure to begin from 2020 onwards. However due to 

changes in Government Policy the Council will not be able to start repaying debt as planned but 

instead will be forced to restructure the debt in a beneficial way. 

5.4.1.5 HRA Capital Programme  
 

The capital programme will continue to balance the need to maintain decent homes and other 

priorities such as health and safety, aids and adaptations, sustainability, energy efficiency and 

meeting tenants’ aspirations. The 2019/20 programme will see the original cycle of repairs 

coming to an end at which point a new a 30 Year Asset Management Strategy will be drawn up. 

Work on collecting the data for the plan is now concluding with the plan being available to assist 

in drawing up the 2020/21 programme and beyond. The cycle of works identified in the plan will 

be funded by the HRA, Capital receipts and borrowing. Careful planning of the capital 

programme will be needed, bearing in mind the uncertainty of Government Policy, to ensure that 

it not only meets the needs of the tenants but is also affordable and sustainable. 

5.4.1.6 Other Budget Considerations 
 

Provision for Uncollectible Debts and Collection Costs 

The provision for uncollectible debts at 31 March 2019 was £179,000. A provision for bad debts 

is made in respect of both former tenant arrears and current tenants. The Council included 

£109,000 in the 2019/20 budget and included £100,000 in 2020/21 and future years for further 

provision against write-offs of bad debt. This is considered to be a prudent measure against a 

back drop of the Government’s policy of Welfare Reform with Universal Credit going to ‘full 

~ Page 89 ~



 67 
 

service’ in June 2018 with migration to Universal Credit from legacy benefits over the next few 

years. 

In order to guard against the effect of Universal Credit the Council set up a special reserve that it 

could draw on to take whatever corrective action was needed to keep debt under control. 

General Fund Recharges 

In the light of accounting practices relating to recharges in the Council’s accounts, recharges to 

the HRA will be reassessed to make sure that these are correct and fair. 

Service Charges 

Tenant’s service charges for 2020/21 have been increased by 2.7%, which is the same increase 

as applied garage rents and other miscellaneous charges. 

30 year HRA Business Plan 

Integral to the transition from the subsidy system to the self-financing regime, and underpinning 

both the self-financing debt calculation and Council HRA planning, has been the development of 

a 30 year business plan a full update on which will be bought to Council once the ’30 Year Asset 

Management Plan’ is complete. 

 

~ Page 90 ~



 68 
 

6.0 Formal 2020/21 Council Tax Resolutions 

 
 

a

£17,520.50

b

(i) the aggregate of the amounts which the Council estimates for the 

items set out in Section 31A(2) (a) to (f) of the Act 

Gross revenue expenditure including benefits.

£18,249,028

(ii) the aggregate of the amounts which the Council estimates for the 

items set out in Section 31A (3) (a) to (d) of the Act  

Revenue income including reimbursement of benefits, specific and 

general grants, use of reserves and any transfers from the collection 

fund.

£14,228,073

(iii) the amount by which the aggregate at (i) above exceeds the 

aggregate at (ii) above in accordance with Section 31A (4) of the Act 

This is the “Council Tax Requirement” (item i minus item ii). It is the 

cash sum to be funded from District Council Taxes.

£4,020,955

(iv) the Council Tax requirement for 2020/21 divided by the tax base (T) 

in accordance with Section 31B (1) of the Act.

£229.50

(v) the aggregate of all “Special Items” referred to in Section 34(1) of 

the Act.

The total value of Parish/Town precepts included in i and iii above.

£0.00

(vi) the Basic Amount of Council Tax for 2020/21 being item iv less item v 

divided by the tax base (T) in accordance with Section 34 (2) of the 

Act.

The District Council’s Band D Tax for 2019/20

£229.50

c

d

e

That the Council note the Council Tax Base for the whole Council area as 

approved by the Chief Financial Officer and ratified by Policy, Finance and 

Development Committee on the 11 February 2020. 

The tax base (T) which is the amount anticipated from a District Council Tax 

of £1 is

That the following amounts calculated by the Council for 2020/21 in accordance with the 

requirements of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 as amended by the Localism Act 2011 

(the Act), the Local Government Finance Act 2012 and associated regulations :-

That the amounts of precept issued to the Council by Leicestershire County Council, 

Police and Crime Commisioner for Leicestershire, Leicestershire and Rutland Combined 

Fire Authority for each of the categories of dwellings listed in different valuation bands 

in accordance with Section 40 of the Act shown in para 6.3 attached be noted.

That, having regard to the calculations above, the Council, in accordance with Section 30 

(2) of the Act, hereby sets the figures shown in para 6.4 as the amounts of Council Tax for 

2020/21 for each of the categories of dwelling shown. This is the total Council Tax to be 

collected, incorporating the requirements of all of the relevant bodies.

The Council notes that, in accordance with Section 52ZB of the Local Government Finance 

Act 1992, the basic amount of its Council Tax for 2020/21 is not excessive.

The basic amount at b(vi) above is not excessive as defined by the Government.

~ Page 91 ~



 69 
 

6.1 Tax Base 2020/21 

 

 Based on the information contained within this report, it is recommended that pursuant to the 
joint report of the Finance Manager and Head of Revenues & Benefits and in accordance with 
the Local Authorities (Calculation of Council Tax Base) Regulations 2012, the amounts 
calculated by the Oadby & Wigston Borough Council as their (net) tax base for the whole 
District for the year 2020/21 be 17,520.5. The Council has no Town or Parish Councils within 
its District. 

 

6.2 2020/21 Council Tax by Property Band for each Precepting Authority and the 

Billing Authority 

 

TO BE COMPLETED WHEN PRECEPTS RECEIVED FROM OTHER LOCAL AUTHORITIES 

 

 
 

  

A B C D E F G H

6/9 7/9 8/9 9/9 11/9 13/9 15/9 1/9

0.67 0.78 0.89 1.00 1.22 1.44 1.67 2.00

£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £

Leicestershire County 

Council

Not yet 

notified

#VALUE! #VALUE! #VALUE! #VALUE! #VALUE! #VALUE! #VALUE! #VALUE!

Police and Crime 

Commisioner for 

Leicestershire

4,086,310 155.49 181.40 207.32 233.23 285.06 336.89 388.72 466.46

Oadby & Wigston Borough 

Council

4,020,955 153.00 178.50 204.00 229.50 280.50 331.50 382.50 459.00

Leicestershire and Rutland 

Combined Fire Authority

Not yet 

notified

#VALUE! #VALUE! #VALUE! #VALUE! #VALUE! #VALUE! #VALUE! #VALUE!

Total Council Tax Payable by 

Band

8,107,265 #VALUE! #VALUE! #VALUE! #VALUE! #VALUE! #VALUE! #VALUE! #VALUE!

Council Tax Base 17,520.5

Precept Band

~ Page 92 ~



 70 
 

 

 

7.0 Robustness of the 2020/21 Budget and Medium Term 

Financial Strategy 
 

Section 25 of Local Government Act 2003 requires me, as the Council’s Responsible Financial Officer, 

to report on the robustness of the 2020/21 budget and the adequacy of reserves to assist you in 

making your decisions on the Budget and the level of Council Tax. Further, this is an opportunity for me 

to provide some commentary in respect of the period covered by the Medium Term Financial Strategy 

(MTFS). 

 

At Section 1.0 (paragraphs 1.20 – 1.2), members will note some initial comments in respect of 

Reserves and the immediate use of Reserves to meet the current budget deficit to ensure a balanced 

budget is achieved. However, this commentary is to further ‘stress’ test the Council’s budget and 

reserves. 

 

General Fund: Robustness and Budget Setting 

 

At the time of writing, the 2019/20 Quarter 3 Budget Monitoring Report is reporting a ‘net’ forecast 

overspend of £53k compared to the budget; however, in respect of service expenditure this is 

forecasting an overspend of £179k – the difference is the application of grant, pooled NDR receipts and 

contributions from Reserves. Such a situation is a concern and one that will have an impact on 

financial sustainability if not addressed. However, the Council has taken affirmative action between 

Quarter 2 and Quarter 3; this is shown because: 

o Service expenditure has decreased by £52k, and the 

o Overspend itself has reduced by £38k 

 

With regard to preparing the 2020/21 Budget and MTFS, as in previous years the Senior Leadership 

Team and Heads of Service have reviewed their service and corporate expenditure, this has identified: 

o savings and invest to save proposals of £744k for 2020/21, increasing to £1.0m, by 2024/25, 

o income generation proposals of £808k for 2020/21 (although this will be £308k when the £500k 

selective licensing income is netted off), increasing to £754k by 2024/25. Although the latter 

years of the MTFS does include income from commercial and private rental sector (residential) 

property (£361k), and 

o growth of £816k for 2020/21, which decreases to £398k by 2024/25. 

 

As ever, the Finance Team has provided the central support to services and the whole process has 

been overseen by both the Chief Financial Officer (S151 officer) and the Finance Manager. 

 

In addition to the above, members should also note the Council: 

 

 continues to review its processes and practices through developing ‘digital’ e-forms.  

 continues to monitor the impact of the current Fair Funding proposals and any ‘new 

government’ Strategic Spending Review (expected in the summer of 2020), and 

 proposes to increase Council Tax by £5 (an increase of 2.23% and generates for the 

Council an additional £109k). 

 

 

~ Page 93 ~



 71 
 

 

Challenges Facing the Council 

 

The challenges that the Council faces are similar to those being faced by many councils across the 

local government community. The principal challenges that the Council is tackling are illustrated below: 

 

Public Sector Austerity – Cuts in grant funding 

 

For the past few years, the public sector has, as a whole, been facing the most significant austerity 

programme in a generation and as a consequence of the government’s ring-fencing of some 

government departments/services (i.e. NHS, Overseas Aid etc.); this has meant that local government 

has met a significant share of the austerity programme. More recently, independent insights into future 

government funding propositions are clearly showing a direction of travel that indicates an even more 

challenging financial environment – and with a new government now in place, their medium term 

agenda for local government will only become apparent in due course.  

 

Following the 2020/21 provisional settlement announced in January 2020, Table A clearly shows that 

the grant funding streams for the Councils MTFS for 2020/21 and for the period up to 2024/25 will 

move negatively when compared to the preceding year. After extrapolating the 2019/20 standstill 

budget over the following 5 years, in respect of: 

 

 2020/21 the total grant included in last year’s MTFS would have been £2.4m; 

following the provisional settlement this has marginally decreased 

by £6k (0.3%).  

 2021/22 the total grant included in last year’s MTFS would have been £2.4m 

but financial modelling is forecasting a reduction of £111k (4.7%). 

This reduction is primarily due to the potential impact of Fair 

Funding. 

 2022/23 onwards the impact of Fair Funding continues, with reductions in grant 

increasing to 8.8% in 2022/23 and 12.7% in 2024/25. Further, there 

are ongoing reductions in business rates in anticipation of the 

revaluation scheduled over the next couple of years. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

~ Page 94 ~



 72 
 

  

Programme of Service Review 

 

It is probably fair to say that all councils are undertaking some form of service review and seeking to 

ensure that services are provided with affordability and value for money at their core. As mentioned 

earlier, officers have reviewed their budgets from both a strategic and service perspective (Facing the 

Future 2, First Proposals and Second Proposals) and a Zero Based Budgeting review will be 

undertaken during 2020/21 to ensure all resources are aligned to priorities and service outcomes, and 

delivered to the requisite standard. 

 

Governance 

 

Noted within the 2018/19 Annual Governance Statement (AGS) both the Leader and the Chief 

Executive consider that: 

 

“This statement is intended to provide reasonable assurance. We propose that we continue to maintain 
the level of governance at the authority, whilst striving to improve wherever we can. Where issues have 

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

NDR (*) 1,349 1,368 1,387 1,406 1,426

S31 Grant (*) 767 767 767 767 767

Revenue Support Grant (*) 0 0 0 0 0

Other General Fund Grants (*) 110 110 110 110 110

Fair Funding Review (*) 0 0 0 0 0

New Homes Bonus (**) 264 135 94 0 0

Total 2,490 2,380 2,358 2,283 2,303

NDR 1,362 1,362 1,376 1,390 1,404

S31 Grant 767 767 767 767 767

Revenue Support Grant 0 0 0 0 0

Other General Fund Grants 110 110 110 110 110

Fair Funding Review 0 (86) (172) (257) (343)

New Homes Bonus 135 94 0 0 0

Total 2,374 2,247 2,081 2,010 1,938

NDR (6) (25) (30) (36)

S31 Grant 0 0 0 0

Revenue Support Grant 0 0 0 0

Other General Fund Grants 0 0 0 0

Fair Funding Review 0 (86) (172) (257)

New Homes Bonus 0 0 0 0

Total (6) (111) (202) (293)

NDR -0.4% -1.8% -2.1% -2.5%

S31 Grant 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

Revenue Support Grant 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

Other General Fund Grants 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

Fair Funding Review 0.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

New Homes Bonus 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Total -0.3% -4.7% -8.8% -12.7%

Table AComparison of Grant Assumptions

2019/20 Budget - to - 2020/21 Budget and MTFS (2021/22 to 2024/25)

2019/20 Budget & MTFS

2020/21 Budget & MTFS

Variance between Grant Assumptions

£

%

~ Page 95 ~



 73 
 

been identified in preparation of this report, we will ensure that they are effectively addressed and we 
will monitor their improvement as part of the next annual review.” 
 
The issues referred to include: 
 
Local Government Ombudsman (LBO); 4 issues were referred to the, 3 were either premature or there 
was insufficient evidence of fault. The 4th item was found against the Council in that it had been guilty of 
maladministration. 
Constitutional Matters: During 2018/19 the Council reviewed its Constitutions and the new Constitution 
was adopted by the Council on the 16th April 2019. 
 
Willow Park: In July 2018 there was an incident in Willow Park that resulted in the death of an elderly 
resident; this event was notified to the Health & Safety Executive, who served the Council with an 
Improvement Notice. All remedial works have been undertaken and as a result the Improvement Notice 
was considered to have been fully complied with. 
 
Code of Conduct: The Council’s Monitoring Officer supervised and dealt with a number of complaints 
against members during the year which resulted in sanctions being imposed. The sanctions ranged from 
the requirement to provide a formal apology to the complainant/s, a requirement to provide a formal 
apology to Full Council, letters of censure, removal of council facilities and removal from Committee 
 
It is worthy of noting that during 2018/19 no significant governance issues arose from Internal Audit 
review. 
 

 

Risks 

 

Because of the nature of the macro and micro environment that the wider local government family and 

the Council operates within, there are a whole host of risks that the Council faces on a day-to-day 

basis. In such an environment, budget setting is not a science but more a guide on how financial 

resources will be allocated to services over the forthcoming year and to give an indication into the 

medium term. There will always be items that emerge after the budget has been approved and these 

can range from a programme under or over achieving or an unexpected event occurring and changes 

in budget assumptions and estimates. 

 

Mitigation of Unforeseen Events 

 

The Council has always taken a very prudent position in ensuring that it maintains its General Fund 

(Unallocated) Reserve at an agreed percentage of 10% of Net Expenditure; this percentage has 

prevailed for some years.  

 

However, to help mitigate a situation whereby an event could occur that would potentially have a 

negative financial impact on the Council, the Council has for a long time had a clear process in place. 

Where a situation has occurred that is ‘service’ specific, the 

 first call for funding will be from compensating savings from elsewhere within the service, 

and if none are possible then savings from the wider Councils budget (service first, wider 

Council thereafter), 

 second call for funding will be general service reductions. Such an approach will inevitably 

have an impact on service delivery, 

 and finally, the use of General Fund reserves would be considered. 

~ Page 96 ~



 74 
 

 Where a situation arises that is ‘corporate’ in nature, then consideration will be given to the 

aforementioned first and second calls, but there is likely to be earlier considerations of using 

General Fund reserves. 

 

As noted within this report, the Council has now introduced the Budget Surplus Earmarked Reserve; 

the aim of this reserve is to “mop-up” service under or overspends that would cause the General Fund 

to be higher than or lower than the minimum threshold. This has been developed further to provide a 

means by which surpluses could be distinguished between those due to unspent NHB or in-services 

savings. With regard to: 

 

 Unspent NHB, such underspends are passported through to the Commercial Investment 

Earmarked Reserve. Therefore enabling the Council to ring-fence funds that are 

available for Commercial Investment and/or service development. 

 In-service savings, such underspends can be ring-fenced to provide a ‘smoothing’ fund 

to meet future years estimated deficits. 

 

The technical definition of General Fund Reserves includes the General Fund (Unallocated) Reserve 

as well as all ‘revenue’ Earmarked Reserves. In the context of making General Fund Reserve balances 

available to meet unforeseen events, the Council will self-limit this to the General Fund (Unallocated) 

Reserve itself as well as the Budget Surplus Earmarked Reserve. The (1) Projects & Risks, (2) 

Housing Investment and (3) Commercial Investment Earmarked Reserves are not included in the 

following risk modelling assessment as this is the means by which the Council is able to invest to 

provide medium term financial sustainability – to include these three reserves could give an overly 

‘optimistic’ view of financial resilience. Consequently, to mitigate such events and secure the delivery 

(and security) of day-to-day business, the schedule of call-off would be: 

 

 General Find (Unallocated) Reserve, and then the  

 Budget Surplus Earmarked Reserve. 

 

As an absolute last resort, only then would the three aforementioned Earmarked Reserves be applied. 

 

Risk Modelling 

 

It is essential that relevant risks are identified and appropriate sensitivity analysis applied to determine 

the impact of such risks on the Councils financial standing – and consequently the delivery of the 

Councils day-to-day business. The most significant potential risks to the budget are: 

 

 under achievement of savings. 

 higher inflation. 

 further reductions in income (mainly from fees and charges). 

 non-achievement of savings; including Shared Services. 

 level of retained business rates. 

 failure of a borrower (i.e. money lent to another organisation). 

 an emergency. 

 estate property enhancement/development. 

 increased demand on services (e.g. benefits and homelessness). 

 

Taking each of the above in turn: 

 

~ Page 97 ~



 75 
 

 Underachievement of Savings & Additional Income 

 The savings included within the budget total £1.6m. These savings and incomes cover a 

broad range of services; however as ever they are dependent on market demand, 

management and prevailing political conditions. It is therefore prudent to assume that 

some of these savings may not be achieved; after applying an assumption of 50% 

underachievement this equates to a cost of £776k. 

 

 Inflation 

 

With regard to: 

 

o Pay 

 The budget for 2020/21 includes an “across the board” pay increase of 2%. 

Considering basic pay, employer oncosts (national insurance and pension), this 

equates to a total cost of £6.3m; a further 1% for sensitivity equates to £63k. 

 

o Business Rates (those payable by OWBC) 

 The budget for 2020/21 includes a Business Rates budget of £191k. However, a 

marginal 5% change has been anticipated which has a sensitivity impact of £10k. 

 

o General Inflation 

 No general inflation has been included in the 2020/21 budget except where there 

are contractual price increases; although for the Council this is minimal as most 

services are “contracted in”. The working assumption is that services will absorb 

general inflation within their service budgets. Consequently no adjustment has been 

made for this. 

 

o Short-Term Investment/Borrowing 

 The budget for 2020/21 assumes a short-term borrowing cost of £126k (based on a 

rate of 1.05%). If this rate increased to the 10-year PWLB rate of 2.36%, the 

additional cost would be £157k; applying a 75% sensitivity impact this equates to 

£118k. 

 

 Reduced income: Fees and Charges 

 

Total fees and charges are £2.1m, therefore, for sensitivity analysis a 20% loss of income 

from fees and charges would amount to £417k. The largest income streams that are 

susceptible to variation include: 

 

o Leisure Centres, £510k 

o Garden Waste, £418m 

o Licensing (excl Selective Licensing), £235k 

o Planning Fees, £260k  

 

 

 Reduced income: New Homes Bonus 

 

For 2020/21 the Councils NHB is £135k; it is expected that the government will announce 

that the scheme will cease from 2022/23 onwards which is the budgeting assumption 

~ Page 98 ~



 76 
 

included in the MTFS. For sensitivity purposes the Council’s is including a 10% reduction 

in NHB, which equates to £14k. 

 

 Government Grant: Non Domestic Rates 

 

Since the localisation of Non Domestic Rates in April 2013 it has become increasingly 

clear that the levels that the authority will be able to retain are more and more difficult to 

forecast. Whilst there are some opportunities for estimating i.e. the development of new 

buildings, it is very difficult to judge when development will commence on allocated land 

even if planning permission has been granted. 

 

The Council has taken a prudent line by formulating its own assessment for NDR receipts 

for 2020/21(£1.4m), with no increase applied for 2021/22 (to reflect the potential impact of 

revaluation) and then 1% per annum thereafter. Directly linked to NDR are S.31 grants, 

this is government grant that compensates local government for it being required to 

exceed the minimum statutory regulations for certain thresholds as a consequence of 

government priorities (i.e. increasing the ‘small business relief’ limit above that required by 

law). The assessed S.31 receipts for 2019/20 are £0.8m. 

 

Although it is fair to say that any NDR reduction would be limited by the existence of the 

safety net (i.e. a statutory limitation to losses), it is fair to apply sensitivity to the gap 

between the safety net and the estimated NDR receipt. Losses can be accrued in a 

number of ways; reduced NDR receipts as a consequence of business failure, demolition 

or catastrophic event, and the impacts due to rating appeals – although these would be 

somewhat mitigated by the Collection Funds appeals provision (it should be noted that 

appeals can take many years to conclude). In respect of: 

 

o NDR, there is a very marginal gap between the estimated income (£1.4m) and the 

safety net (£1.4m), so an assumed difference of £100k is included, after applying a 

10% sensitivity reduction this gives an impact of £10k. 

o S.31, the Council is expecting to receive £767k in S.31 grant, a 5% sensitivity 

reduction will be applied giving £38k. 

 

As noted in Table 7 (paragraph 1.15-1.16), the Council’s share of the Collection Fund 

Deficit is £7k, a 50% sensitivity (£3.5k) will be applied to determine potential impacts of 

future fluctuations in NDR receipts. 

 

 Failure of a Borrower  

 

The current counterparty limit is lending of £5.0m to a single institution. 

 

The main “borrowing” risk rests where the lending is either on a short or long term basis. 

The £5.0m limit is restricted to bodies with a credit rating of F1+ or Building Societies with 

more than £2 billion in assets. The impact of a “failure of borrower” will be the loss of 

revenue cash flow and the potential costs involved of “making good” the lost investment. 

There are however, good governance arrangements around the Council’s Treasury 

activity and therefore the likelihood of loss is minimal. However, with Brexit date now 

passed and the UK is within the transition period, there is still some financial risk from a 

negative market reaction; it is therefore prudent to include some element of sensitivity in 

respect of cash flow. Therefore, the average amount lent to an institution short-term is 

~ Page 99 ~



 77 
 

around £11.5m; if this amount was lost and the Council had to borrow from the PWLB, at 

current rates (based on 10 year borrowing) would amount to a cost of £151k. This block 

amount is included in the sensitivity analysis. 

 

 Emergency 

 

As is normal for a business, different types of risk are mitigated in many difference ways 

Some risks are insured against, so losses are limited to the excesses payable and also, 

the Government’s Bellwin Scheme meets a large proportion, over a threshold, of the costs 

of any significant peacetime emergencies (e.g. severe flooding). Further, the Council does 

maintain its General Fund Reserves at a fair ‘minimum’ level. 

 

With the ever contraction in budgets it is anticipated that such ad-hoc (emergency) spend 

will not be easily accommodated so it would be prudent to include an element within any 

sensitivity to meet this cost. The Councils Financial Regulations do not impose limits of 

spend on the “rota’ed” Civil Emergencies officer (usually a member of the Senior 

Leadership Team or a duly nominated officer) to incur “emergency spend”. Consequently 

an amount of £250k has been included in the ‘costs’ and applying a 50% sensitivity 

analysis the assessed impact is £125k. 

 

 Estate property enhancement/development 

 

The Council holds onto an ‘aging’ Operational Estate so it is fair to include a risk in 

respect of future property enhancement. For sensitivity modelling purposes, the currently 

estimated cost of enhancement is £3m for Bushloe House, this would have to be 

borrowed and the estimated loss of interest based on a 4.5% return from a property fund 

is a cost of £135k, this is included as a block cost. However, there is ongoing 

maintenance and this again has been included as a block amount (£38k). 

 

 Increased demands on services 

 

Many of the services provided by the Council are susceptible to an increase in demand. 

However, over the past few years there have been significant revenue impacts relating to 

homelessness and Council Tax Support. 

 

With regard to homelessness, the budget for 2020/21 is £164K and for Council Tax 

Support is £10k; if there was a 10% increase in demand for each this would require an 

additional £17k. In addition, the cost of the LICTP is £626k, if say this cost increased 7% 

this would amount to £44k. 

 

 Council Tax 

 

The Council has chosen to increase Council Tax by £5 (2.23%) for 2020/21, the 

maximum allowable. This is a prudent step as it helps to maintain the financial foundation 

of the Council and awards it opportunities for future investment. A £5 increase represents 

additional Council Tax income of £109k, as this is a marginal increase no further 

sensitivity has been undertaken. 

 

 

 

~ Page 100 ~



 78 
 

Sensitivity for 2020/21 Budget 
 

Considering the risks noted above and the stated budget assumptions, the accumulated total cash risk 

is £2.0m. However, it is highly unlikely that all these risks will occur at the same time, so it is fair to 

apply “sensitivity” to each risk and then model the likelihood of occurrence. Table B shows this detailed 

analysis and in summary the additional pressure within 2020/21, based on the likelihood of occurrence, 

is as follows: 

 Pessimistic view, additional pressure of: £757k 

 Middle-View, additional pressure of:  £652k 

 Optimistic View, additional pressure of: £143K 

  

 
 

This analysis shows that if the most ‘pessimistic’ or ‘middle-way’ positions occurred, the Councils 

General Fund (Unallocated) Reserves alone would be insufficient to meet this additional cost (of 

course, slight movements in both the sensitivity impact and likelihood of occurrence percentages can 

alter the conclusion). However, in any given situation where the GFR was used to finance such risks, 

there is a statutory responsibility on the Council to ensure that the GFR was returned to a fully funded 

position, and this could be achieved by: 

 allocations from Earmarked Reserves, which would curtail any commercial investment or the 

delivery of services priorities, or 

 the imposition of necessary efficiencies and /or reprioritisation in service provision. 

Costs Included in 

2020/21 Budget

Risk

+/- Cost

£000 £000 Factor £000 Factor £000 Factor £000

1,552 Savings not achieved. 50% 776 0.5 388 0.4 310 0.1 78

Pay 6,307 Pay increase from 2% to 3% 1% 63 0.6 38 0.3 19 0.1 6

Business Rates (OWBC Payable) 191 Business Rates vary due to change 

in liability etc.

5% 10 0.6 6 0.2 2 0.2 2

Short-Term Investment/Borrowing 

Costs

157 Difference between Borrowing; 

increased from 1.05% (short-term) 

to 2.36% (10 year PWLB).

75% 118 0.2 24 0.5 59 0.3 35

Fees & Charges 2,083 Reduction in income. 20% 417 0.4 167 0.5 208 0.1 42

New Homes Bonus 135 Reduction in NHB following change 

to "needs" system and 

consequential redistribution.

10% 14 0.3 4 0.4 5 0.3 4

NDR (Difference between Safety Net 

and Budgeted Receipts)

100 Reduced NDR receipts. 10% 10 0.6 6 0.3 3 0.1 1

S.31 Grant 767 Not all grants received. 5% 38 0.6 23 0.3 12 0.1 4

Collection Fund (Surplus)/Deficit 7 Collection Fund Deficit greater 

than expected.

50% 4 0.6 2 0.3 1 0.1 0

Failure of Borrower 151 Difference in cost of short term 

borrowing and PWLB (10 years) if 

the Council lost £11.5m it has lent 

short-term.

100% 151 0.2 30 0.5 75 0.3 45

Emergency 250 Immediate use of funds in the 

event of a local emergency.

50% 125 0.2 25 0.5 63 0.3 38

Redevelopment of Bushloe House 135 Opportunity cost of £3m 

enhancement cost and lost 

investment interest based on a 

property fund at 4.5%.

100% 135 (0.2) (27) (0.9) (122) (0.9) (122)

Property Maintenance and 

Enhancement

38 Estate property 

enhancement/development.

100% 38 0.8 30 0.1 4 0.1 4

Homelessness 164 Increase in demand. 10% 16 0.4 7 0.5 8 0.1 2

ICT 626 Additional service requirement. 7% 44 0.8 35 0.1 4 0.1 4

Council Tax Support 10 Increase in demand. 10% 1 0.4 0 0.3 0 0.3 0

1,958 757 652 143

612 612 612

1 1 1

613 613 613

Conclusion of Sensitivity i.e. Estimated Reserves less Sensitivity

No No Yes

No No Yes

(145) (40) 469

-2.4% -0.7% 7.7%

Risk Determinant Sensitivity Impact

Pessimistic Middle-Way Optimistic

Likelihood of Occurrence

* Note: OWBC has set a minimum level of General Fund (Unallocated) Reserves of 10%. However, in a 'crisis' situation, as well as having the GFR available, it will also have the Budget Surplus Reserve 

available; therefore for this 'Sensitivity Exercise' both Reserves will be considered. 

- Upon comparing 'Total Sensitivity' (A) to the Minimum Level (B) of General Fund (Unallocated) Reserves (10% of Net Expenditure), does 

Reserve remain positive?

- Upon comparing 'Total Sensitivity' (A) to Total Estimated Reserves (C), do Reserves remain positive? (*)

        - the % of the General Fund (Unallocated) Reserve to Net Service Expenditure?

Estimated General Fund (Unallocated) Reserve at 31 March 2020 (Minimum Level of GFR) (B)

Budget Surplus Reserve at 31 March 2020

Maintenance

Government Grant

Increased Demand 

of Services

Table BSensitivity of Risks to 2020/21 Budget & Funding Options

Total Estimated Reserves at 31 March 2020 (C) (*)

OVERALL TEST FOR BUDGETARY RISK

Total Sensitivity (A)

- If the 'Total Sensitivity' (A) Risk occurred, what would be:

        - the balance in the General Fund (Unallocated) Reserves without allocations from Earmarked Reserves?

Achievement of Savings & Additional Income

Inflation

Reduced Income

~ Page 101 ~



 79 
 

 

Revenue Reserves 

 

Reserves for 2020/21 and the MTFS Period (2021/22 to 2024/25) 

 

There is no statutory minimum level of reserves; however, the Council has an agreed minimum level of 

10% of Net Expenditure for the General Fund (Unallocated) Reserves. The primary aim of the General 

Fund is to provide a safety net for unforeseen expenditure. 

 

In addition to the General Fund, and as discussed in paragraph 1.2.5 the Council operates a number of 

other revenue reserves; including the Budget Surplus Reserve, the Projects & Risk Reserve, the 

Housing (Private Sector) Reserve and the Commercial Investment Reserve. 

 

However, to ensure the adequacy of the Councils Reserves (i.e. their robustness) it is essential to 

determine if the Councils revenue reserves are sufficient to meet the assessed risks (Table B). To 

determine this, a two stage comparison will be undertaken in that the “likelihood of occurrence” of a risk 

will be compared to two sets of reserves. The detailed analysis is shown in Table C and relevant 

commentary is shown below. 

 

 Stage 1 – The Primary Test of Financial Resilience 

 The “likelihood of occurrence” of the assessed risks will only be compared against the General 

Fund (Unallocated) Reserve. In this way the Budget Surplus Reserve and the other three 

Earmarked Reserves can be used, over the life of the MTFS to meet current risks and corporate 

priorities, as well as support the acquisition of commercial property (which will generate a long 

term revenue stream). 

 

 As shown in Table C below, the GFR will be insufficient to meet the assessed Pessimistic and 

Middle-Way risks throughout the MTFS period. 

 

 Stage 2 – The Secondary Test of Financial Resilience 

 The Stage 2 assessment is a ‘complete’ test, in that it also brings into the assessment the 

Budget Surplus Reserves, the Housing (Private Sector) and Commercial Investment Reserves; 

it excludes the Projects & Risks Reserve as this reserve is needed to meet agreed projects and 

to mitigate individual service risks. 

 

The Secondary Test shows that the Council would have sufficient resources to meet the 

modelled risks. 

 

~ Page 102 ~



 80 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

General Fund Reserve c/f (*) 612 647 607 624 621

612 647 607 624 621

Pessimistic Middle-Way Optimistic Pessimistic Middle-Way Optimistic Pessimistic Middle-Way Optimistic Pessimistic Middle-Way Optimistic Pessimistic Middle-Way Optimistic

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Reduction in Reserves (in year) 757 652 143 757 652 143 757 652 143 757 652 143 757 652 143

Estimated Reserves c/f (145) (40) 469 (110) (5) 504 (150) (45) 464 (133) (28) 481 (136) (31) 478

- Do Reserves remain above Minimum 

Level of Reserves

No No Yes No No Yes No No Yes No No Yes No No Yes

General Fund Reserve c/f (*) 612 647 607 624 621

Budget Surplus Reserve c/f 1 1 1 1 1

Housing Investment Reserve c/f 129 129 129 129 129

Commercial Investment Reserve c/f 615 631 1,049 1,348 1,599

1,357 1,408 1,786 2,102 2,350

Pessimistic Middle-Way Optimistic Pessimistic Middle-Way Optimistic Pessimistic Middle-Way Optimistic Pessimistic Middle-Way Optimistic Pessimistic Middle-Way Optimistic

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Reduction in Reserves (in year) 757 652 143 757 652 143 757 652 143 757 652 143 757 652 143

Estimated Reserves c/f 600 705 1,214 651 756 1,265 1,029 1,134 1,643 1,345 1,450 1,959 1,593 1,698 2,207

- Do Reserves remain above Minimum 

Level of Reserves

Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

* = The minimum level of reserves is 10% of Net 'Budgeted' Expenditure.

General Fund Reserve and Budget 

Surplus Reserve

General Fund Reserve, Budget Surplus 

Reserve, Housing Investment Reserve £000 £000 £000 £000

2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25

£000 £000 £000 £000

£000

2020/21

£000

2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/252020/21

Table CImpact of 2020/21 Sensitivity of Risks on the MTFS General Fund Reserves Profile

~
 P

age 103 ~



81 
 

CIPFA Resilience Index 

 

CIPFA has recently launched its Council Resilience Index and I am obliged to 

provide some commentary in respect of the findings of the index; a graphical 

representation is shown below for the two indicator sets. 

 

The way that the index works is that each Council is compared to similar Councils 

(known as the neighbour group); however members may wish to reflect on the 

following: 

 these indicators are based on 2018/19 and earlier information, so it is at least 

12 months out of date. 

 there is no reflection on actions taken by the Council over the past few months 

to tackle financial resilience, and that 

 future Council actions or ambitions are again not reflected. 

 

Indicator Set 1 

 
Commentary: 

Indicator Set 1 shows that compared to ‘neighbours’ that: 

 the level of reserves is low, but that there has been an increase in reserves 

over preceding years so risk is reducing, 

 for an HRA authority, the indicators show that gross external debt is “middle of 

the pack”, which is a fair place to be, but 

 fees and charges are relatively low, but of course such a general indicator set 

cannot reflect local markets. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

~ Page 104 ~



82 
 

Indicator Set 2 

 
 

Commentary: 

Indicator Set 2 shows that compared to ‘neighbours’ that: 

 

 General Fund Reserves (GFR) are low and that there has not been any change 

in the level of GFR, which is to be expected as the Council has held the GFR at 

10% for a few years. 

 Both Earmarked Reserves and HRA Reserves are on the higher risk side of 

“middle of the pack”. However, as noted within this report, 

o the Council is committing to use its Earmarked Reserves to meet the 

estimated budget deficit for 2020/21 and 2021/22 but the usage is 

negated by the Council removing New Homes Bonus from its base – so 

the deficit is being actively managed. 

o the HRA Reserve balance remains about the amount included in the 

business plan. 

 

Conclusion of S.25 Robustness Statement 

 

 2020/21 Budget 

 

Considering all the factors noted within the “Robustness” statement in respect of 

2020/21, I consider that the combination of the: 

 

o Councils commitment to continue to find service efficiencies, 

o the direction of travel in relation to governance, 

o it’s clear intention to invest in services, and 

o it’s prudent position relating to income recognition (including raising Council 

Tax and commercial development of services),  

 

shows that the Council has made good endeavours to overcome a number of 

relatively significant budget challenges in 2020/21, so Members should not have any 

significant concerns over the Council’s financial position. However, the modelling has 

shown that with only relative small changes in sensitivity the Council could face some 

financial challenges; it is therefore essential going forward that the Council continues 

to: 

o strongly challenge costs and keeps them to a minimum, 

o manages its commitments effectively, and 

o seeks opportunities to increase its potential for further income generation. 

 

~ Page 105 ~



83 
 

 Medium Term Financial Strategy (2021/22 to 2024/25) 

 

With regard to the period covered by the MTFS; the Council does face some future 

funding risk with the: 

 

o expected removal of NHB, 

o the implications of Fair Funding, and 

o the ongoing issues pertaining to the localisation of Business Rates. 

 

However, during this budget setting cycle the Council has addressed some significant 

budget challenges with relative innovative changes to service delivery; however 

these positive endeavours will not come to fruition for a couple of years so it is 

imperative that the MTFS is closely monitored and where possible further efficiencies 

are introduced as soon as possible. Only with this continued pressure on controlling 

costs and delivering additional income will the Council meets its financial ambition of: 

 

Financial Sustainability & Resilience that will enable Community Investment 

 

Clive Mason FCPFA 

Responsible Financial Officer (Section 151) 

 

 

~ Page 106 ~



 

Full Council 
Thursday, 20 

February 2020 

Matter for 
Information and 

Decision 

 

Report Title: Pay Policy Statement (2020/21) 

Report Author(s): Anne Court Chief Executive and Head of Paid Service 
 

Purpose of Report: The Localism Act 2011 (“the 2011 Act”) requires every local authority 
to produce and publish a Pay Policy Statement (“the Statement”) for 
each financial year from 2012/13. This report sets out the Council’s 
proposed Pay Policy Statement for the coming financial year 2020/21. 

Report Summary: The Council is committed to transparency and fairness in its pay and 
remuneration of all its employees. The 2011 Act requires the Council 
to produce an Annual Policy Statement that covers a number of 
matters concerning the pay of the Council’s staff, namely its Chief 
Officers and its comparison to the authority’s lowest paid employees. 

Recommendation(s): A. That Council approves the Pay Policy Statement for 
2020/21 (as set out at Appendix 1); and     

B. That Council approves the continued commitment to 
paying the Real Living Wage for 2020/21.                                            

Senior Leadership, 
Head of Service, 
Manager, Officer and 
Other Contact(s): 

Anne Court (Chief Executive / Head of Paid Service) 
(0116) 257 2602 
anne.court1@oadby-wigston.gov.uk  

Corporate Priorities: Providing Excellent Services (CO3) 

Vision and Values: “A Strong Borough Together” (Vision) 
Accountability (V1) 
Respect (V2) 

Report Implications:- 

Legal: Adherence to pertaining legislation and polices as set out in the report 
will prevent challenge to the Council. 

Financial: The Council’s staffing bill is budgeted for each year as part of the 
budget setting process 

Corporate Risk 
Management: 

Decreasing Financial Resources / Increasing Financial Pressures (CR1) 
Reputation Damage (CR4) 
 
Failure to apply the nationally agreed rates could affect the ability to 
recruit the best candidates. 

Equalities and Equalities 
Assessment (EA): 

There are no implications arising from this report. 
EA not applicable. 

Human Rights: There are no implications arising from this report. 

~ Page 107 ~

Agenda Item 11

mailto:anne.court1@oadby-wigston.gov.uk


Health and Safety: There are no implications arising from this report. 

Statutory Officers’ Comments:- 

Head of Paid Service: As the author, the report is satisfactory. 

Chief Finance Officer: The report is satisfactory. 

Monitoring Officer: The report is satisfactory. 

Consultees: None. 

Background Papers:  Equality Act 2010 
 The Localism Act 2011 
 ‘Openness and Accountability in Local Pay: Guidance under 

Section 40 of the Localism Act’ Guidance 

Appendices: 1. Proposed Pay Policy Statement (2020/21) 
2. Salary Pay Grades (2020/21) 
3. Senior Leadership Team (SLT) Organisation Chart (2020/21) 
4. SLT & Corporate Management Team Organisation Chart (2020/21) 

 

1. Information 

1.1 The proposed Statement meets the requirements of the 2011 Act, taking into account 
guidance issued by the Secretary of State for Housing, Communities and Local Government: 
‘Openness and Accountability in Local Pay: Guidance under Section 40 of the Localism Act’. 

1.2 The proposed the Statement for 2020/2021 is attached at Appendix 1.  

1.3 The Council’s current salary pay grades are attached at Appendix 2.  

1.4 The Council’s management structure is attached at Appendices 3 and Appendix 4. 

1.5 The Salary Pay Grades apply from the 1 April 2020. No national pay awards beyond the end 
of March 2020 have yet been agreed. The Statement will be amended during the course of 
the year as necessary, for approval by Council.  

1.6 The Real Living Wage (RLW) which the Council is committed to paying will increase from 1 
April 2020 to £9.30 per hour. The lowest hourly rate paid to Council employees in this 
financial year is £9.00 per hour. This will be increased as from 1 April to £9.30 in line with 
the increase to the RWL.  

1.7 In accordance with the Council’s commitment to openness and transparency, its SLT pay is 
published on the Council’s website, identifying those Officers whose earnings exceed £50,000.  

1.8 If approved by Council, the proposed Statement shall take immediate effect, superseding the 
2019/20 Statement. 

 

 

~ Page 108 ~

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2010/15/contents
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2011/20/contents/enacted
http://www.gov.uk/government/publications/openness-and-accountability-in-local-pay-guidance
http://www.gov.uk/government/publications/openness-and-accountability-in-local-pay-guidance


 

 

OADBY AND WIGSTON BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 
Pay Policy Statement 2020/2021 
 
1. Introduction 

 
1.1  Oadby and Wigston Borough Council recognise that remuneration at all levels needs 

to be adequate to secure and retain high quality employees dedicated to the service 
of the public. However, in the context of managing scarce public resources with ever 
decreasing funds and further spending cuts to be made, such remuneration needs to 
avoid being unnecessarily generous or otherwise excessive. 

 
1.2  It is important that local authorities are able to determine their own pay structures in 

order to address local priorities and to compete in the local labour market. 
 
1.3  In particular, it is recognised that senior management roles in local government are 

complex and diverse functions in a highly politicised environment where often 
national and local pressures conflict. The Council’s ability to continue to attract and 
retain high calibre leaders capable of delivering this complex agenda, particularly 
during times of financial challenge, is crucial if the Council is to retain its current high 
performance levels. 

 
2.  Legislation 
 
2.1  Section 38 of the Localism Act 2011 requires local authorities to produce a Pay      

Policy Statement for each financial year thereafter, by the 31 March. 
 
2.2  In determining the pay and remuneration of all of its employees, the Council will 

comply with all relevant employment legislation. This includes the Equality Act 2010, 
Part Time Employment (Prevention of Less Favourable Treatment) Regulations 
2000, The Agency Workers Regulations 2010, The Fixed Term Employment 
(Prevention of Less Favourable Treatment) Regulations 2002, and where relevant, 
the Transfer of Undertakings (Protection of Employment) Regulations 2006. 

 
2.3  With regard to the equal pay requirements contained within the Equality Act 2010, 

the Council ensures there is no pay discrimination in its pay structures and that all 
pay differentials are objectively justified through the use of an equality-proofed job 
evaluation mechanism, which directly relates salaries to the requirements, demands 
and responsibilities of the role. 

 
2.4  The Localism Act 2011 and supporting statutory guidance provides details of matters 

that must be included in this statutory pay policy but also emphasises that each local 
authority has the autonomy to take its own decisions on pay and pay policies. 

 
2.5  The format of this policy statement was approved by Full Council in April 2012 and is 

subject to review in accordance with the relevant legislation prevailing at that time, 
currently annually. 
 

3.  Scope 
 
3.1  This Pay Policy Statement includes a policy on:- 

 
(a) The level and elements of remuneration for each Chief Officer; 
(b) The remuneration of the lowest paid employees; 

~ Page 109 ~

Appendix 1



 

 

(c) The relationship between the remuneration of Chief Officers and other officers; 
and 

  (d) Other specific aspects of Chief Officer remuneration, fees and charges and other 
discretionary payments. 

 
3.2  Remuneration in this context is defined widely to include not just pay but also 

charges, fees, allowances, benefits in kind, increases in enhancements of pension 
entitlements and termination payments. 

 
4.  Senior Pay 
 
4.1  In this policy the senior pay group covers posts in the top two tiers of the Council.  
 

These include the Chief Executive, the Deputy Chief Executive (formerly Director of 
Finance and Transformation/151 Officer post) 

 
4.2  The numbers in the above posts are as follows:- 

 
Chief Executive (1) 
Deputy Chief Executive (1) 

 
4.3  The policy for each group is as follows:- 
 
4.4  Chief Executive 
 

(a) The Chief Executive’s pay is a locally agreed and the Pay Grade is 
currently in the following range:- 
C1 - 3 £93,026 – £102,381 
(b) This salary was approved by Full Council and no additional bonus, performance, 
honoraria or ex gratia payments have been made. 
(c) Salary is subject to annual cost of living increases agreed by Joint Negotiating 
Committee for Chief Officers (JNC) for Local Authority Chief Executives national 
conditions. 
 

4.5  Deputy Chief Executive  
 

(a) The Deputy Chief Executive’s post has been evaluated externally and 
independently under the HAY Job Evaluation Scheme and the pay grade for the 
post is currently in the following range:- 

 
 D4 – 6    £79,563 - £84,240 
 
(b) This salary was approved by Full Council and no additional bonus, performance, 
honoraria or ex gratia payments have been made. 
 
(c) Salary is subject to annual cost of living increases agreed by Joint Negotiating 
Committee for Chief Officers (JNC) for Local Authority Chief Executives national 
conditions. 

 
 
4.6  Heads of Service 

 
(a) The Heads of Service posts have been evaluated using the Greater London 
Provincial Council Job Evaluation Scheme and the Management Levels 1-4 were 
agreed locally and are currently within the following range:- 

~ Page 110 ~



 

 

 

Heads of Service Management Levels 1 – 4  £50,335 to £70,502 (5) 
 
(b) Salary is subject to annual cost of living increases agreed by the National Joint 
Committee (NJC) for Local Authority Services. 

 
4.7 Electoral fees 
 

(a) Fees are paid for Returning Officer duties with regards to fulfilling Election duties. 
 This does not form part of the post holder’s substantive role and  these fees are 
 payable as required and can be made to any senior officer appointed to fulfil the 
 statutory duties of this role. The Returning Officer is an Officer of the Borough 
 Council who is appointed under the Representation of the People Act 1983. The  role 
 of the Returning Officer involves and incurs personal responsibility and 
 accountability  and is statutorily separate from duties as an employee of the Borough 
 Council, hence the additional remuneration which is paid. As Returning Officer, the 
 employee is paid a separate allowance for each election for which they are 
 responsible.   

 
5.  Lowest paid employees 
 
5.1  The National Living Wage to be paid from 1st   April 2020 is £8.72 per hour for ages 25 

years of age and over. The National Minimum Wage to be paid from 1st April 2020 is 
£8.20 per hour for 21 to 24 year olds and £6.45 for 18 to 20 year olds. There are 
different rates that apply for those employees classed as an apprentice these rates 
are set out below. It is compulsory that employers pay the National Living Wage and 
National Minimum Wage to employees. 

 
5.2  However on 15 March 2013, Councillors resolved to implement the Real Living 

Wage. The Real Living Wage is distinct from the National Living Wage and National 
Minimum Wage and is calculated by the Centre for Research in Social Policy which 
is an independent third party. The Centre for Research in Social Policy focuses on 
the wage rate that is necessary to provide workers and their families with a basic but 
acceptable standard of living. The minimum standard of living is socially defined and 
is often intrinsically linked to other social goals such as the fulfilment of care 
responsibilities. Any increase to the Real Living Wage is announced on an annual 
basis. In December 2019 the Real Living Wage rate was set at £9.30 per hour, this is 
an increase of 3.4% compared to the Real Living Wage rate set in November 2018 
which was £9.00 per hour. 
 

5.3 The lowest pay band within the council is Band 1 Scale Points 1 - 3, currently paid 
from £17,364 - £18,065 as a full time salary. The Real Living Wage is £9.30 per hour 
and the Council’s minimum pay will be increased from £9.00 to £9.30 to meet the 
Council’s commitment to pay The Real Living Wage. The Council currently employs 
10 staff on Band 1 

 
5.4  The Council also operates an apprenticeship programme that is designed to give 

young people the opportunity to gain a relevant qualification through study and on-
the-job training. The training opportunities afforded to individuals through the 
apprenticeship programme are not directly comparable to other positions filled by 
employees within the Council. These apprentices are employed under the 
Government’s National Minimum Wage legislation dependent on their age rather 
than the flat apprentice rate of £4.15 per hour. The pay scale ranges under the 

~ Page 111 ~



 

 

legislation range from £4.55 per hour for under 18 years of age to £8.72 per hour for 
over 25 years of age.  

 
6.  Pay Structure 
 
6.1  The pay structure for all employees except the Chief Executive, Deputy Chief 

Executive and Heads of Service is established using NJC for Local Authorities 
Services National Pay Spine. Please see Appendix 2 for a copy of the Council’s 
current pay structure. 

 
6.2  All posts bar those of the Chief Executive and the Deputy Chief Executive are 

evaluated using the Greater London Provincial Council Job Evaluation Scheme, 
which is recognised by employers and trades unions nationally. This Scheme allows 
for robust measurement against set criteria resulting in fair and objective evaluations 
and satisfies equal pay requirements.  

 
6.3  Job evaluation has been carried out in partnership with Trade Unions and in 

consultation with employees at all levels across the Council. Every post on the 
establishment has been evaluated and ranked using the Greater London Provincial 
Council Scheme (Green Book employees) and Hay (Chief Officers and Chief 
Executive). Both schemes were approved at the Full Council meeting in December 
2003. 

 
6.4  Following the outcome of the rank order exercise, a new pay and grading structure 

was designed, agreed and adopted by Full Council on 23 February 2006. Full 
implementation was achieved in May 2006 and backdated to 1 April 2005. Thereafter 
all subsequent new or altered jobs have been evaluated by the same scheme. 

 
6.5  Progression within the band for all staff is subject to satisfactory performance on 1st 

April each year, provided that the employee has completed a minimum of 6 months 
service when an increment is awarded up to the maximum of the band. If the 
employee has not completed 6 months service, the increment will be payable in the 
employee’s 6th month with the Council subject to satisfactory performance. 

 
7.  Payments/Charges and Contributions 
 
7.1  From 1st April 2014, there have been significant changes to the Local Government 

Pension Scheme. 
 
7.2  All employees automatically become a member of the Local Government Pension 

Scheme, unless they exercise the opt-out clause. They will automatically be enrolled 
onto the “main scheme”, where they meet the qualifying criteria. 

 
7.3  The level of contribution payable by an employee in the “main scheme” will depend 

upon their actual salary received, rather than a full time equivalent. This means that 
part-time employees would only pay against their actual gross salary per annum and 
would not be expected to pay the higher rate of their full time equivalent. The 
employee contributions range from 5.5% to 12.5 %. 

 
7.4  As an alternative to the “main scheme”, employees have the option to enrol onto the 

“50/50 scheme”. If they opt to join the “50/50 scheme” then, rather than making the 
full contributions as set out above, they will only have to contribute one half of what 
they ordinarily would in the “main scheme”; however, the Council continues to pay a 
full contribution as though the employee were in the “main scheme”. This will 
obviously reduce the amount of contributions made by the employee to their pension 

~ Page 112 ~



 

 

which will have an effect on the overall value of the benefits due to them under the 
Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) when they retire. Members of the LGPS 
can switch between the main scheme and 50/50 scheme at any time and the 
appropriate form to do so can be obtained from the Human Resources Team. 

 
7.5  Under the 2014 regulations of the LGPS, employees who meet the qualifying criteria 

will automatically be enrolled into the scheme and can only opt-out when they have 
become an active member. Employees, who elect to opt out of the scheme, must 
obtain a form to opt out directly from Leicestershire County Council (the scheme 
providers). The Council cannot opt any employees out of the scheme under the new 
ruling, nor can it provide the form to do so. 

 
7.6  The Council makes employer’s contributions into the scheme; the current rate is 

22.2% of the whole time salary. 
 
7.7  Employees who are not automatically enrolled onto the 2014 scheme because they 

did not meet the qualifying criteria can elect to join the scheme at any time by 
requesting a membership form from the Human Resources Team. The membership 
will be effective from the next payroll date. 

 
7.8  Employees who had already opted-out of the scheme on or after the Council’s 

staging date (1 April 2014) will automatically be enrolled under the 2014 ruling on 1 
October 2017. This is the final date on which the Council is able to postpone auto-
enrolment. Once an employee has become an active member of the LGPS they can 
still choose to opt-out as per the process set out above.  This auto-enrolment process 
will be repeated every three years. 

 
 
8.  Multipliers 
 
8.1  Publishing the pay ratio of the organisation’s top earner to that of its lowest paid 

earner and median earner has been recommended to support the principles of Fair 
Pay (Will Hutton, 2011) and transparency. 

 
8.2  From the 1st April 2020, the Chief Executive’s post, which is the highest paid post at 

the Council, will be paid £82928.81 (0.8 FTE) per annum. This is 3.21 times the 
average earnings in the Council which is £25,801. The Chief Executive’s pay is 4.6 
times the lowest pay which is £17,940 

 
9.  Discretionary Payments 
 
9.1  The policy for the award of any discretionary payments is the same for all staff 

regardless of their pay level. The following arrangements apply: 
‘Redundancy payments under regulation 5 of the Local Government (Early 
Termination of Employment) (Discretionary Compensation) (England & Wales) 
Regulations 2006.’ 

 
9.2  The Council has based redundancy payment calculations on an unrestricted week’s 

pay but using the statutory age and service related redundancy scale to determine 
the number of weeks to be used in the calculation. This is payable to employees 
made redundant with two or more years local government service. 

 
9.3  Severance payments under regulation 6 Redundancy – The Council has not elected 

to pay any additional discretionary compensation in excess of the redundancy 
payment. 

~ Page 113 ~



 

 

 
9.4  Regulation 18 of the Local Government Pension Scheme (Benefits, Membership & 

Contributions) Regulations 2007 – Requirements as to time of payment (Flexible 
Retirement) The Council had agreed to consider applying discretion when a scheme 
member who is over 55 reduces their hours and/or grade and wishes to receive their 
accrued pension benefits without having retired from employment. However, under 
the changes to the Local Government Pension Scheme which came into effect from 
1 April 2014, the employee will be advised that early retirement will have an adverse 
effect on their entitlement to benefits used under the Scheme, and such benefits will 
be significantly reduced. Under the 2014 Regulations, employees will only be entitled 
to full benefits under the LGPS when they have reached state pension age. 

 
9.5 No additional membership for revision purposes under regulation 12 of the Local 

Government Pension Scheme (Benefits, Membership & Contributions) Regulations 
2007 is awarded. 

 
9.6  No additional pension under regulation 13 of the Local Government Pension Scheme 

(Benefits, Membership & Contributions) Regulations 2007 is awarded. 
 
 
10.  Decision Making 
 
10.1  Decisions on remuneration are made as follows:- 

(a) Chief Executive Officer local pay level approved by Full Council; 
Pay structure for all other posts approved by Full Council. 

 
11.  Disclosure 
 
11.1  This Pay Policy Statement is published on the Council’s website. In addition in line 

with the Code of Recommended Practice for Local Authorities on Data Transparency 
published in September 2011, the names and salaries of employees who earn more 
than £58,200 will be published as part of the Council’s final accounts at the end of 
July each year. 
 
The posts are as follows:- 
Chief Executive  
Deputy Chief Executive 
Head of Law and Democracy  
Chief Finance Officer  

 
12.  Performance related pay 
 
12.1  There are no performance related pay schemes in place. 
 
13.  Equality and Diversity 
 
13.1  This Pay Policy Statement will assist the Council in monitoring remuneration across 

the Council and provide a fair system which avoids discrimination. 
 
 
 
For further information please contact:- 
Anne Court, Chief Executive / Head of Paid Service 
Telephone: (0116) 257 2702 
E-mail: anne.court1@oadby-wigston.gov.uk 

~ Page 114 ~



1st April 2020 Hourly Rate

SCP £ £

Band 1 1 17,940 9.30

2 17,940 9.30

3 18,065 9.36

Band 2 3 18,065 9.36

4 18,426 9.55

5 18,795 9.74

Band 3 5 18,795 9.74

6 19,171 9.94

7 19,554 10.14

Band 4 7 19,554 10.14

8 19,945 10.34

9 20,344 10.54

10 20,751 10.76

11 21,166 10.97

Band 5 12 21,589 11.19

13 22,021 11.41

14 22,462 11.64

15 22,911 11.88

16 23,369 12.11

17 23,836 12.35

Band 6 18 24,313 12.60

19 24,799 12.85

20 25,295 13.11

21 25,801 13.37

22 26,317 13.64

23 26,999 13.99

Band 7 24 27,905 14.46

25 28,785 14.92

26 29,636 15.36

27 30,507 15.81

Band 8 28 31,371 16.26

29 32,029 16.60

30 32,878 17.04

31 33,799 17.52

Band 9 32 34,788 18.03

2020/21 SALARY GRADES

N

J

C

 

f

o

r

 

L

o

c

a

l

 

G

o

v

e

r

n

m

e

n

t

 

E

m

p

l

o

y

e

e

s

 

(

G

r

e

e

n

 

B

o

o

k

)

~ Page 115 ~

Appendix 2



33 35,934 18.63

34 36,876 19.11

35 37,849 19.62

Band 10 36 38,813 20.12

37 39,782 20.62

38 40,760 21.13

39 41,675 21.60

40 42,683 22.12

Band 11 41 43,662 22.63

42 44,632 23.13

43 45,591 23.63

Management Level 1 Level a 50,335 26.09

Level b 51,361 26.62

Level c 52,388 27.15

Level d 53,417 27.69

Management Level 2 Level 2 59,657 30.92

Management Level 3 Level 3 65,079 33.73

Management Level 4 Level 4 70,502 36.54

Director D4-6 D4 79,563 41.24

D5 81,901 42.45

D6 84,240 43.66

Chief Executive C1 93,026 48.22

C2 97,074 50.32

C3 102,381 53.07

Locally 

agreed Mgt 

Grades

Hay salary 

grades

Hay salary 

grades

Locally 

agreed Mgt 

Grades

N

J

C

 

f

o

r

 

L

o

c

a

l

 

G

o

v

e

r

n

m

e

n

t

 

E

m

p

l

o

y

e

e

s

 

(

G

r

e

e

n

 

B

o

o

k

)

Locally 

agreed Mgt 

Grades

~ Page 116 ~



 
 
 
 

 

                                 SENIOR LEADERSHIP TEAM (SLT) (2020/21) 

 

 

  

Chief Executive 
Anne Court 

Statutory Post - Head of Paid Service 
 

Deputy Chief Executive 
Stephen Hinds 

Head of Law & 
Democracy 
David Gill 

Statutory Post – 
Monitoring Officer 

 

Head of Community 
& Wellbeing 
Avril Lennox 

 

Chief Finance 
Officer 

Clive Mason 
Statutory Post  
– 151 Officer  

Head of Customer 
Service & 

Transformation 
Philippa Fisher - 

Interim 

Head of Built 
Environment 

Adrian Thorpe 
 

~
 P

age 117 ~

A
ppendix 3



SENIOR LEADERSHIP TEAM (SLT) & CORPORATE MANAGEMENT TEAM (CMT) (2020/21) 

 

 

Chief Executive 
Anne Court 

Statutory Post - Head of Paid Service 
 

Deputy Chief Executive 
Stephen Hinds 

Head of Law & 
Democracy 
David Gill 

Statutory Post – 
Monitoring Officer 

 

Head of Community 
& Wellbeing 

Avril Lennox MBE 
 

Chief Finance 
Officer 

Clive Mason 
Statutory Post  
– 151 Officer  

Head of Customer 
Service & 

Transformation 
Philippa Fisher - 

Interim 

Head of Built 
Environment 

Adrian Thorpe 
 

Corporate Project 
Lead(s) 

Trish Hatton and 
Ben Wilson 

 
Customer Service 

Centre (CSC) Manager 
Rachel Maidment 

Revenues & Benefits 
Manager 

Vacant 
 

Financial Services 
Manager 

Chris Raymakers 
 

Corporate Asset Manager 
Margaret Kind 

 

Electoral & Democratic 
Services Manager / 
Deputy Monitoring 

Officer 
Steven Tucker 

 
Regulatory Services 

Manager 
Tony Cawthorne 

Housing Manager 
Leah Montia 

 
Development Control Manager 

Richard Redford 
 

Planning Policy Manager 
Jamie Carr 

 
Economic Regeneration 

Manager 
Alex Ward 

 

Depot Manager 
Brian Kew 

 
Community & 

Wellbeing Manager 
Kane Radford 

 

Managers 

Marketing and 
Insight Manager 

Vacant 
 

HR Manager 
Vacant 

 

~
 P

age 118 ~

A
ppendix 4



 

Full Council 
Thursday, 20 

February 2020 
Matter for 

Information 

 

Report Title: Report of the Local Government & Social Care Ombudsman  

Report Author(s): David Gill (Head of Law & Democracy / Monitoring Officer) 
 

Purpose of Report: To inform Members of the receipt of a report from the Local 
Government & Social Care Ombudsman (“the Ombudsman”).  

Report Summary: This report sets out the receipt of a report from the Ombudsman 
and the response of the Council to that report. 

Recommendation(s): That the contents of the report and appendix be noted. 

Senior Leadership, 
Head of Service, 
Manager, Officer and 
Other Contact(s): 

Stephen Hinds (Deputy Chief Executive) 
(0116) 257 2681 
stephen.hinds@oadby-wigston.gov.uk  
 
David Gill (Head of Law & Democracy / Monitoring Officer) 
(0116) 257 2626 
david.gill@oadby-wigston.gov.uk 

Corporate Objectives: Providing Excellent Services (CO3) 

Vision and Values: Accountability (V1) 
Respect (V2) 
Customer Focus (V5) 

Report Implications:- 

Legal: There are no implications directly arising from this report. 

Financial: The implications are as set out at paragraphs 2.1-2.2 of this report. 

Corporate Risk 
Management: 

Decreasing Financial Resources / Increasing Financial Pressures (CR1) 
Reputation Damage (CR4) 
Regulatory Governance (CR6) 

Equalities and Equalities 
Assessment (EA): 

There are no implications arising from this report. 
EA not applicable. 

Human Rights: There are no implications directly arising from this report. 

Health and Safety: There are no implications arising from this report. 

Statutory Officers’ Comments:- 

Head of Paid Service: The report is satisfactory. 

Chief Finance Officer: The report is satisfactory. 

Monitoring Officer: As the author, the report is satisfactory. 

~ Page 119 ~

Agenda Item 12

mailto:stephen.hinds@oadby-wigston.gov.uk
mailto:david.gill@oadby-wigston.gov.uk


Consultees:  Leader of the Council (Councillor John Boyce) 
 Chair of Service Delivery Committee (Councillor Bill Boulter)  

Background Papers:  Council’s Constitution (Last Revised July 2019) 

Appendices: 1. Report of the Local Government & Social Care Ombudsman dated 
5 February 2020 (Complaint Ref. 19 009 723) 

 

1. Background 
 
1.1 On 11 December 2019, the Council was informed that the Ombudsman was investigating a 

housing related matter referred to him by Miss X. 
 
1.2 Miss X said the Council offered her and her young family unsuitable accommodation when  
          she applied to the Council as homeless in November 2017. Miss X also said that when she 

appealed the Council’s decision; it failed to properly review her case.  
 
1.3 The Ombudsman has said that there is fault with the way that the Council carried out its review, 

and with the advice it provided Miss X over the past two years. Members should  
 note that the review was carried out by an external independent housing consultant.  
 
2. Ombudsman’s Recommendations  

 
 The Ombudsman has recommended that: 
 
2.1 The Council pays Miss X £500 for the avoidable time, trouble and distress she experienced whilst 

contesting her housing allocation and pursuing the complaint; 
 
2.2 Pay Miss X £2400 to remedy the injustice of her family living in unsuitable accommodation 
           for two years after the fault occurred during the review of the Council’s decision; and 
 
2.3 Backdate Miss X’s Band 2 priority on the housing register to the date of the review decision 
 (6 February 2018) to ensure she receives priority for suitable accommodation. 
 
3. Review and decision on the recommendations  
 
3.1 On Tuesday 21 January  2020 the council received a draft copy of the investigators report that 

required a response by 5:00pm on Wednesday 5 February i.e. confirmation that the Council 
accepted the findings and recommendations.  

 
3.2 Following internal consideration of the report by officers, the Statutory Officers (The Head of Paid 

Service, the Chief Finance Officer and the Monitoring Officer) advised the Leader of the Council 
and the Chair of the Service Delivery Committee that whilst the compensation payments were on 
the high side there was no basis on which to challenge the findings of the investigator.  

 
4. Report to Council  
  
4.1 Under Part 3 Section 6 Paragraph 1.4.10 of the Council’s adopted Constitution the Chief Executive 

(as Head of Paid Service) has delegated authority to ‘To consider and report on any report of the 
Local Government Ombudsman and to decide on and implement the action to be taken’. 

 
4.2 In addition under Part 5 Section 12 of the Constitution (Monitoring Officer Functions) the 

monitoring officer is required under Section 5 of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989 to 
report to Council where any maladministration or injustice has been identified by the Ombudsman 
following an investigation. 

 

~ Page 120 ~

https://moderngov.oadby-wigston.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=352&MId=1851&Ver=4&Info=1


4.3 The report of the Ombudsman is attached at Appendix 1 for Members information and 
consideration. 

~ Page 121 ~



1

5 February 2020 

Complaint reference: 
19 009 723

Complaint against:
Oadby & Wigston Borough Council

The Ombudsman’s final decision
Summary: Miss X said the Council offered her and her young family 
unsuitable accommodation. She said when she appealed the 
Council’s decision, it failed to properly review her case. There is fault 
with the way the Council carried out its review, and with the advice it 
provided Miss X over the past two years. The Council has agreed to 
remedy Miss X’s injustice.

The complaint
1. Miss X complained the Council offered her and her young family unsuitable 

accommodation. 
2. She said when she appealed the Council’s decision, it failed to properly review 

her case. 
3. Miss X thinks she should be placed in a higher priority banding. She said this 

would give her a better chance of finding a suitable property for her family. 

The Ombudsman’s role and powers
4. We cannot investigate late complaints unless we decide there are good reasons. 

Late complaints are when someone takes more than 12 months to complain to us 
about something a council has done. (Local Government Act 1974, sections 26B and 34D, as 
amended)

5. The law says we cannot normally investigate a complaint when someone could 
take the matter to court. However, we may decide to investigate if we consider it 
would be unreasonable to expect the person to go to court. (Local Government Act 
1974, section 26(6)(c), as amended)

6. We investigate complaints about ‘maladministration’ and ‘service failure’. In this 
statement, I have used the word fault to refer to these. We must also consider 
whether any fault has had an adverse impact on the person making the 
complaint. I refer to this as ‘injustice’. If there has been fault which has caused an 
injustice, we may suggest a remedy. (Local Government Act 1974, sections 26(1) and 26A(1), 
as amended)

7. If we are satisfied with a council’s actions or proposed actions, we can complete 
our investigation and issue a decision statement. (Local Government Act 1974, section 
30(1B) and 34H(i), as amended)

~ Page 122 ~

Appendix 1



    

Final decision 2

How I considered this complaint
8. I have considered 

• Miss X’s complaint and supporting information;
• the Council’s responses to Miss X’s complaint; and
• the Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman’s Guidance on Remedies 

that is available to view on our website.
9. I have written to Miss X and the Council with my draft decision and considered 

their comments.

What I found
Background

10. The Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman would not normally 
investigate a complaint where the complainant had the opportunity to take the 
matter to court. I have exercised my discretion in Miss X’s case. This is because 
she was admitted to hospital with a heart condition after giving birth at the time 
she would have had to appeal. Therefore, I do not consider it reasonable for Miss 
X to have appealed in February 2017 when she received the Council’s review 
decision.

11. We would not normally investigate late complaints (more than 12 months after the 
event) unless we decide there are good reasons. Given Miss X’s ongoing issues 
with her accommodation, it was not reasonable to expect her to complain to us 
sooner. Therefore, I have decided to consider Miss X’s complaint starting from 
when she submitted a homelessness application in September 2017.

The Council’s Housing Allocation Policy

The banding scheme
12. The Council operates a banding scheme. It considers and assesses the housing 

needs of each household. It will place all home seekers who are eligible to join 
the register in one of four priority bands. These are Low Housing Need (band 4), 
Medium Housing Need (band 3), High Housing Need (band 2) and Priority 
Housing Need (band 1). Each band has a set of criteria that a home seeker must 
meet to be eligible for that band.

13. There are different categories in each band. For example, in band 3, the 
categories are:

1. homeless households; 
2. those living in poor housing conditions; 
3. those with a medical need to move; 
4. those with a welfare need to move; and 
5. those in short term accommodation.

14. There are also criteria under each of the categories.
15. A home seeker who has been assessed as having two or more needs from the 

first four categories of Medium Housing Need, could move up to Higher Housing 
Need.

~ Page 123 ~



    

Final decision 3

Moving between bands
16. The Council’s allocation policy says a home seeker’s housing band will change if 

their level of need changes.  It says when a home seeker moves up to a higher 
housing need band, their effective date will change to the date they moved into 
the higher category. 

What happened

Accommodation offer
17. In September 2017, Miss X made a homelessness application and the Council 

accepted it. The Council acknowledged it had a duty to provide Miss X and her 
family with suitable accommodation. 

18. In November, the Council made a first and final offer to Miss X. The property was 
a second floor maisonette. Miss X said it was not suitable due to the flights of 
external stairs. Following advice, Miss X felt she had no option other than to 
accept the accommodation and then ask for a review. The Council wrote to Miss 
X and said as she had accepted the property, its homelessness duty had ceased. 

The Council’s review
19. In December 2017, Miss X asked the Council to review its decision that the 

accommodation was suitable. She wanted to be placed on a higher priority 
banding due to her, and her children’s medical issues. She said the difficulty in 
managing three young children with sight problems, and a pushchair up and down 
two flights of external stairs whilst she was heavily pregnant made her heart 
condition worse.

20. On 6 February 2018, an independent assessor working on behalf of the Council 
contacted Miss X. He said he had considered all the information available and 
had reviewed the Council’s decision about the suitability of Miss X’s 
accommodation. 

21. He said the reasons Miss X gave for the accommodation being unsuitable, were 
not significant enough. The assessor said he appreciated once Miss X gave birth, 
she would have four children to look after and as a single parent this would no 
doubt be a challenge. He went on to say that she could purchase a baby carrier to 
leave her hands free and it would get easier as the children became older and 
more independent. He also suggested she bought her groceries online and had 
them delivered to avoid carrying heavy bags up the stairs with the children. 

22. The assessor concluded he was satisfied that the property was suitable for 
Miss X and it was also reasonable for her to have accepted the offer. He upheld 
the Council’s decision to offer permanent accommodation in this property. 

Miss X’s complaints
23. Over the following months, Miss X contacted the Council on a number of 

occasions to report:
• her child finding a needle in the communal garden of the property; 
• general disrepair of the communal areas of the property including a broken 

door with screws protruding;
• the conduct of a housing officer;
• her continued difficulty managing the stairs with four children and a heart 

condition; and

~ Page 124 ~



    

Final decision 4

• the Council’s handling of her transfer application and the banding in which she 
had been placed.

24. On the advice of her local MP, in June 2019, Miss X made a formal complaint 
covering all the issues above and provided the Council with further letters from 
medical professionals.

25. In July 2019, the Council dealt with Miss X’s complaint in two ways: 
• through the corporate complaints process; and
• as a service request to prioritise her housing banding on medical grounds. 

Complaint process
26. The Council addressed the issues raised by Miss X. It said Miss X had missed the 

opportunity to appeal to county court about her review decision so it would not 
deal with the issues she had raised in relation to this. It said there was no 
evidence that the housing officer did anything wrong. It advised it had informed 
the relevant Council departments to deal with issues surrounding the 
maintenance and repair of the property. The Council explained the housing 
department was considering her new medical information in relation to her 
banding. 

27. Miss X escalated her complaint to Stage 2.
28. In its stage 2 response, the Council maintained its refusal to revisit the review 

decision as Miss X had missed the 21 day appeal period.

Council’s review of Miss X’s medical information
29. The Council said it had considered all the letters including those from the 

cardiology department about Miss X’s heart condition, and those from an 
optometrist about her children’s eye conditions. The Council decided it would not 
increase the banding on her housing application as the letters did not confirm how 
her current address was affecting her, or her children’s medical conditions. 

30. Miss X wrote to the Council to disagree with the decision the medical information 
she provided did not meet the requirement to increase her banding. 

31. In August 2019, the Council dealt with Miss X’s disagreement as a request for a 
review of the decision. It considered the same medical information against the 
Council’s Housing Allocations Policy.  It upheld the Council’s original decision; the 
information did not qualify Miss X’s application for an increase in banding on 
medical grounds.

32. The Council went on to consider Miss X’s other comments regarding the 
difficulties she has getting all four children, a pushchair and other heavy items up 
the stairs and into the property safely. It considered Miss X’s comments that the 
strain of this worsens the symptoms of her heart condition. For these reasons, the 
Council decided to move Miss X’s application into the medium band under the 
following section of the allocations policy:
• Band 3: Medium Housing Need

5. Short term housing

(5) Transfer home seekers seeking a like for like transfer who have a medical, 
mobility or social need to move.

33. The Council concluded its policy did not allow for a further review of this decision 
where the facts remain the same. It said if Miss X had additional information, she 
could submit it for assessment. 

~ Page 125 ~



    

Final decision 5

34. Miss X submitted a further medical letter to the Council in September 2019. In 
response to this, the Council decided her heart condition met the criteria for the 
Medium Band on medical grounds as follows:
• Band 3: Medium Housing Need

3. Medical need to move

(1) Verified high medical need where a move will improve or prevent the 
deterioration of a condition. This will apply when a home seekers condition is 
currently directly affected by their accommodation and a move is needed to have 
a positive effect on their condition, or whereas as a result of their condition their 
current accommodation is not suitable to their needs.

35. It confirmed Miss X’s banding on her choice base lettings would remain on 
Medium as Medium Medical band cannot be combined with her existing Medium 
Banding for being in short term accommodation. Miss X was unhappy with this 
and could not understand why the categories could not be combined so that she 
could be moved to the High Housing Band 2.

My findings

Miss X’s review
36. The independent assessor said he considered the information provided by Miss X 

including letters from medical professionals. He concluded Miss X’s 
accommodation was suitable. His reasons included the fact that as her children 
get older and more independent, it will be easier to manage the flights of external 
stairs. 

37. There is fault with this. The assessor should base his decision on Miss X’s 
circumstances at the time of the review, not what they might be in the future.

38. In a later review, the Council decided to move Miss X into a higher banding based 
on her circumstances. On the balance of probabilities, if the assessor had 
correctly reviewed Miss X’s case at the time, she would have been moved to 
Band 3 in February 2018. 

Conclusion
39. The initial review of Miss X’s housing allocation decision was flawed as the 

assessor failed to base his decision on Miss X’s current situation. This failure 
resulted in Miss X and her young family living in unsuitable accommodation for a 
longer period than necessary. 

40. If the Council had reviewed Miss X properly, she would not have been put to time 
and trouble in pursuing the Council for higher priority. 

41. The Council should have been clearer when it said it required medical evidence 
from Miss X. The Council’s latest decision to move Miss X on medical grounds 
shows that her heart condition should have qualified her for medical priority in 
2017 as her condition has not changed. The Council did not make it clear what 
medical information it required. 

42. The homeless priority can be considered with the medical priority which would 
likely have resulted in the Council placing Miss X’s application in Band 2 from 
February 2018.

Agreed action
43. Within 4 weeks of my final decision, the Council will:

~ Page 126 ~



    

Final decision 6

• Pay Miss X £500 for the avoidable time, trouble and distress she experienced 
whilst contesting her housing allocation and pursuing the complaint;

• Pay Miss X £2400 to remedy the injustice of her family living in unsuitable 
accommodation for two years after the fault occurred during the review of the 
Council’s decision; and

• Backdate Miss X’s Band 2 priority on the housing register to the date of the 
review decision (6 February 2018) to ensure she receives priority for suitable 
accommodation.

Final decision
44. I have found fault with the way the Council handled Miss X’s review and the 

advice it gave. This resulted in Miss X and her young children remaining in 
unsuitable accommodation for nearly 2 years.

Parts of the complaint that I did not investigate
45. In Miss X’s case, the fault occurred during the independent review of the Miss X’s 

housing decision. 
46. I have not therefore investigated the actions of the Council after this point. I have 

referred to events after the review to illustrate what the Council would have been 
likely to do if it had not been for the fault. 

Investigator’s decision on behalf of the Ombudsman 

~ Page 127 ~



 

 

 

Full Council 
Thursday, 20 

February 2020 

Matter for 
Information and 

Decision 

 

Report Title: Appointment of a Member Representative to Outside Bodies 

Report Author(s): Samuel Ball (Trainee Solicitor) 
 

Purpose of Report: To appoint a single Member representative to represent Oadby and 
Wigston Borough Council (“the Council”) on the ‘Oadby & Wigston 
Environmental Forum’ and the ‘Plastic Free Oadby Steering Group’ 
(collectively referred to hereafter as “the Outside Bodies”). 

Report Summary: 
 

The appointment of a Member representative to each of the Outside 
Bodies will allow the Council, as an important stakeholder within the 
Borough, and its interests to be represented and furthered in import-
ant environmental matters. This will strengthen its collaborative and 
partnership approach in such matters and will contribute towards the 
delivery of and progress made in achieving its own Key Performance 
Indicators (KPI’s) under the Council’s Corporate Plan (2019-2024). 

Recommendation(s): That the Chair of the Council’s Environment Working Group 
for the time being be appointed as the single Member 
representative to each of the Outside Bodies known as the 
‘Oadby & Wigston Environmental Forum’ and the ‘Plastic Free 
Oadby Steering Group’ respectively with immediate effect. 

Senior Leadership, 
Head of Service, 
Manager, Officer and 
Other Contact(s): 

David Gill (Head of Law & Democracy / Monitoring Officer) 
(0116) 257 2626 
david.gill@oadby-wigston.gov.uk  
 
Steven Tucker (Democratic & Electoral Services Manager) 
(0116) 257 2605 
steven.tucker@oadby-wigston.gov.uk 
 
Samuel Ball (Trainee Solicitor) 
(0116) 257 2643 
samuel.ball@oadby-wigston.gov.uk 

Corporate Objectives: Building, Protecting and Empowering Communities (CO1) 

Vision and Values: “A Stronger Borough Together” (Vision) 
Accountability (V1) 
Respect (V2) 
Teamwork (V3) 
Innovation (V4) 
Customer Focus (V5) 

Report Implications:- 

Legal: There are no implications arising from this report. 

Financial: There are no implications arising from this report. 

Corporate Risk No corporate risk(s) identified. 

~ Page 128 ~

Agenda Item 13

mailto:david.gill@oadby-wigston.gov.uk
mailto:steven.tucker@oadby-wigston.gov.uk
mailto:samuel.ball@oadby-wigston.gov.uk


 

 

Management:  

Equalities and Equalities 
Assessment (EA): 

There are no implications arising from this report. 
EA not applicable. 

Human Rights: There are no implications arising from this report. 

Health and Safety: There are no implications arising from this report. 

Statutory Officers’ Comments:- 

Head of Paid Service: The report is satisfactory. 

Chief Finance Officer: The report is satisfactory. 

Monitoring Officer: The report is satisfactory. 

Consultees: Environment Working Group 
Oadby & Wigston Environmental Forum 
Plastic Free Oadby Steering Group 

Background Papers:  Council’s Constitution (Last Revised July 2019) 
 Council’s Corporate Plan (2019-2024) (Adopted April 2019) 
 Agenda Item(s) entitled ‘Engagement and Consultation with Other 

Public Groups’ and ‘Oadby & Wigston Environmental Forum’ to 
Environmental Working Group on 21 November 2019 (Private) 

 Motion on Notice entitled ‘Supporting Plastic Free Oadby’ to Full 
Council (Council Tax and Budget Setting) on 20 February 2020 

Appendices: None. 

 

1. Background  

1.1 In accordance with the Council’s Constitution, the appointment of representatives to Outside 
Bodies - external organisations which have invited the Council to nominate representative(s) 
to serve on its governing and/or management body - is a function reserved to Full Council. 1 

1.2 The adopted Corporate Plan (2019-2024) recognises the importance of the Council’s role in 
delivering environmental sustainability, in particular, ‘to maintain and enhance the natural 
environment and [to] work with partners to sustain this’ under Corporative Objective One.2 

1.3 A Motion on Notice, as proposed by Councillor D M Carter and seconded by Councillor G A 
Boulter, entitled ‘Supporting Plastic Free Oadby’ has been received which is due to be 
considered and resolved at this same meeting of the Full Council on 20 February 2020.3 

2. Information 

2.1 Invitations have been received from the ‘Oadby & Wigston Environmental Forum’ and the 
‘Plastic Free Oadby Steering Group’ (“the Outside Bodies”) inviting the Council to nominate a 
Member representative to serve on both their respective governing or management bodies. 
 

(Continued overleaf) 

                                                 
1 Council's Constitution (July 2019), Part 2, Article 4.4.5 (at page 26) and Part 3, Section 3, paragraph 1.1.5 (at page 65) 
2 Council’s Corporate Plan (2019-2024) (April 2019), Corporate Objective One: Building, Protecting and Empowering Communities 

(at pages 8-11), with particular reference to KPI BPE 22 (at page 11). 
3 See Agenda Item 6a of the Agenda Reports Pack (at page 12), with particular reference to paragraph 1.2.  

~ Page 129 ~

https://moderngov.oadby-wigston.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=352&MId=1851&Ver=4&Info=1
https://moderngov.oadby-wigston.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=352&MId=1851&Ver=4&Info=1
https://www.oadby-wigston.gov.uk/pages/the_corporate_plan
http://ow-pr-modgov01.owbc.net:9070/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=368&MId=1818&Ver=4&$LO$=1
http://ow-pr-modgov01.owbc.net:9070/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=368&MId=1818&Ver=4&$LO$=1
http://ow-pr-modgov01.owbc.net:9070/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=368&MId=1818&Ver=4&$LO$=1
https://moderngov.oadby-wigston.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=115&MId=1716&Ver=4
https://moderngov.oadby-wigston.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=115&MId=1716&Ver=4


 

 

2.2 From information either provided to and/or garnered by the Council, it is understood that: 

2.2.1 ‘Oadby & Wigston Environmental Forum’ 

This is a forum which ‘meets once a term, bringing together community, faith, school 
and statutory groups with a shared interest in supporting environmental issues’ - such 
as “zero-waste”, plastic reduction, supporting wildlife, recycling, litter, sustainable 
travel and school eco-clubs - and ‘aim[s] to network in order to add value by working 
together with a complementary and partnership approach’.4  

2.2.2 ‘Plastic Free Oadby’ Campaign  

This is a localised campaign led by the Rotary Clubs of Oadby and Oadby Launde, 
who have jointly-formed a Steering Group, which adopts the ‘Plastic Free 
Communities Scheme’, spearheaded by the ‘Surfers Against Sewage’ (SAS), a national 
charity based in Cornwall, whereby communities work towards reducing their use of 
single-use plastics and in doing so, achieve a “Plastic Free Community” status.5 

3. Recommendation(s) 

3.1 The appointment of a Member representative to each of the Outside Bodies will allow the 
Council, as an important stakeholder within the Borough, and its interests to be represented 
and furthered in important environmental matters attracting ever-increasing public eminence. 

3.2 The appointment(s) will also strengthen the Council’s collaborative and partnership approach 
in pro-actively addressing such matters and will contribute towards the delivery of and 
progress made in achieving its own KPI’s under the Council’s Corporate Plan (2019-2024). 

3.3 As such, it is therefore recommended that the Chair of the Council’s Environment Working 
Group for the time being - currently Councillor David M Carter - be appointed by Full Council 
as the single Member representative to each of the Outside Bodies with immediate effect.  

 

                                                 
4 Facebook (August 2019) Oadby & Wigston Environmental Forum [Online] Available at: https://www.facebook.com/pages/category 
/Community-Service/Oadby-Wigston-Environmental-Forum-108913510459810 [Accessed 10 February 2020] 
5 For more information, see Surfers Against Sewage (January 2020) Plastic Free Communities [Online] Available at: 
https://www.sas.org.uk/plastic-free-communities [Accessed 10 February 2020] 

~ Page 130 ~


	Agenda
	4a. Tuesday, 17 December, 2020
	4b. Tuesday, 04 February, 2020 (Extraordinary)
	5b. Tuesday, 04 February, 2020 (Extraordinary)
	6a. Supporting Plastic Free Oadby
	8a. List of Official Mayoral / Deputy Mayoral Engagements
	10 2020/21 Budget (including approval of Council Tax and Housing Revenue Account Rents) & Medium-Term Financial Strategy (2021/22 to 2024/25)
	Appendix 1 - Budget 2020/21 and Medium-Term Financial Strategy (2021/22 - 2024/25)

	11 Pay Policy Statement (2020/21)
	Appendix 1 - Proposed Pay Policy Statement (2020/21)
	Appendix 2 - Salary Pay Grades (2020/21)
	Appendix 3 - Senior Leadership Team (SLT) Organisation Chart (2020/21)
	Appendix 4 - SLT & Corporate Management Team Organisation Chart (2020/21)

	12 Report of the Local Government & Social Care Ombudsman
	Appendix 1 - Report of the Local Government & Social Care Ombudsman dated 5 February 2020 (Complaint Ref. 19 009 723)

	13 Appointment of a Member Representative to Outside Bodies

